AGENDA
REGULAR DRAINAGE MEETING
Wednesday, February 26, 2020 9:30 AM

1. Open Meeting
2. Approve Agenda
3. Approve Minutes

Documents:

02_19 20 - DRAINAGE MINUTES.PDF
02_19 20 - DRAINAGE MEETING W PRIVATE TRUSTEES.PDF

4. DD 9 - WO 229 - Discuss W Possible Action - Set Date For Bid Letting

Documents:

DD 9 - WO 229 1 PLAN SET - 4. 6735..PDF

DD 9 - WO 229 SPECIFICATIONS BOOK 1 OF 2 -1. 6735.1.PDF

DD 9 - WO 229 GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS BOOK 2 OF 2 - 2. 6735.1.PDF
DD 9 - WO 229 - BID FORM 3. 6735.1.PDF

6735.1 -DD 9 MAIN TILE ENGRS REPORT.PDF

6735.1 -DD 9 MAIN TILE SUPP ENGRS REPORT.PDF

5. DD 55-3 - WO 201 - Discuss W Possible Action - Notice To RR Of Damaged Box Culvert

Documents:
DD 55-3 NOTICE TO RAILROAD, DAMAGED BOX CULVERT.DOCX

6. DD 158 - WO 285 - Discuss W Possible Action
DD 158 - WO 285 - Clint Miller reports ground intake on W side of road has silted in w
debris and intake is boiling out, water is flowing overland to culvert, goes under road, and
continues overland once it is on E side of road. Clint thinks intake may need cleaned out
and standpipe installed.

Documents:

DD 158 WO 285.PDF
DD 158 - WO 285 MAP.PNG

7. DD 165 - Discuss W Possible Action - Canvass Date For DD 165 Special Election

8. Discuss W Possible Action -Wind Turbine Ordinance And Drainage Utility Permit Language
& Process

9. Other Business

10. Adjourn Meeting


https://www.hardincountyia.gov/0180e3ef-e822-4a8a-8de5-77fbbbbf2463

REGULAR DRAINAGE MEETING
February 19, 2020 9:30 AM

2/19/2020 - Minutes

. Open Meeting

Hardin County Drainage District Chairperson, Lance Granzow opened the meeting. Also present were Trustee BJ
Hoffman; Trustee Renee McClellan; Lee Gallentine of Clapsaddle-Garber Associates; Landowner Curt Groen; and
Drainage Clerk, Denise Smith.

. Approve Agenda
Hoffman motioned to approve the agenda. Second by McClellan. All ayes. Motion carried.

. Approve Minutes
Motion by McClellan to approve the minutes to Regular Drainage Meeting dated 02-12-20 and DD 34 Landowners
Meeting dated 02-12-20. Second by Hoffman. All ayes. Motion carried.

. DD 9 - Discuss W/ Possible Action - ROW Easement

DD -9 - A signed copy of the DD 9 ROW easement has been returned from the landowners, the Sailers.

Motion to direct Trustee Lance Granzow to sign said easement in front of the notary, Angela Silvey at the
conclusion of today's meeting. Second by McClellan. All ayes. Motion carried.

Upon signing the easement, it will be filed in the Recorder's Office. It was discussed that there will be a bid letting
needed for this project to move forward. It was discussed that the project may need to have televising and or
mandrel testing and this should be an alternate on the bid. The Trustees would like to give the contractor time
enough to complete the project and possibly do a two stage bid - with a price for getting it done sooner and a price
for getting it done later, and recognize they hate to have the field sitting for another year. This will be added to next
week's agenda to set a date and time for bid letting.

. DD 25 - Discuss W Possible Action - Crop Damage Claim Update

DD 25 - It was discussed that payment would be made for areas in which work was actually done by contractors,
not in additional areas that were flooded out. Motion by Hoffman to approve crop damages in the amount of
$353.49 to Jason Marten for DD 25 on WO 209 & WO 001. Second by McClellan. All ayes. Motion carried.

. DD 55-3 - WO 201 - Discuss W Possible Action

DD 55-3 WO 201 - This project that goes under the tracks had been televised, but found the tile plugged on both
east and west sides, with dirt, debris and tree roots. Last week it was discussed that we need to request
permission to jet clean the tile. Gallentine had reread the file and we do have a permission letter, granting
permission to jet until June of this year to do that, we would need to meet all the railroad's requirements to have
flaggers, insurance, and all that is needed. Smith wanted to make sure the letter we send out was not asking
permission if we already had it, but that we are notifying the RR that we are ready to jet clean. Gallentine asked if
the Trustees were willing to meet the RR's requirements, all were in agreement that they are prepared to meet
those requirements. Galantine will get the jet cleaning and requirements organized.

Gallentine noted that the RR would still need notification of the damaged box culvert.

. DD 56 - WO 3 - Discuss W Possible Action - Reclassification Report

DD 56- WO 3 - Reclassification report is complete, the report splits the district into two districts if the current
project moves forward. This is ready for a hearing date to be set. Gallentine stated the Engineer's Report is
complete and was at the original hearing that triggered the reclassification. It was discussed that the Public
Hearing for the Reclassification Report will be held, with the Public Hearing on the repairs put forth in the
Engineer's Report to immediately follow, so that the reclassification can be discussed, a then the repairs can be
discussed with landowners there for both hearings.

Motion by Hoffman to hold the Public Hearing on the DD 56 Reclassification Report on Wednesday April 1, 2020 at
10:00 AM in the large conference room at the Courthouse. Second by McClellan. All ayes. Motion carried.



Motion by Hoffman to hold the Public Hearing on the DD 56 Engineer's Report on Wednesday April 1, 2020 at
10:15 AM, immediately following the Reclassification Report Hearing, on Wednesday April 1, 2020 at 10:15 AM.
Second by McClellan. All ayes. Motion carried.

8. DD 25 WO1 - Discuss W/ Possible Action, Update On RR Crossing

DD 25 WO 1- Smith updated the Trustees that attorney Mike Richards sent out notice to the railroad on Tuesday,
February 18, 2020 that construction on this project will commence.

Gallentine reached out to McDowell to let them know that we have the RR permit and to see when they can begin
construction. McDowell would like to work on the project in July and would like a completion date extension to
October 31, 2020. The Trustees, have not typically been granting long extensions, it was noted that the
Contractors have been given shorter extension times and if a contractor needs more time they can ask. Gallentine
stated before it goes into a change order, he wanted to make the Trustees aware of the situation. Granzow stated
it is difficult, because McDowell is working with a jack and bore company. Granzow stated we should take it month
by month as long as McDowell is working on it. Gallentine noted that McDowell is working on two projects, and
hoped to have the DD 1 project done by the first of April. Current completion date is April 1, 2020, Gallentine
stated he will let McDowell know that if he needs an extension he will need to make the request.

It was noted that McDowell had already received an extension from the original completion date of December 31,
2019, and the change to up-size the tile and subsequent delay by the Railroad were delays not caused by
McDowell. It was recognized that was a difficult spot for the contractor.

9. Other Business

10. Adjourn Meeting
Motion by Hoffman to adjourn.Second by McClellan. All ayes. Motion carried.



DRAINAGE MEETING WITH PRIVATE DRAINAGE TRUSTEES
Wednesday, February 19, 2020 12:30 PM

2/19/2020 - Minutes

1. Open Meeting
Hardin County Drainage District Chairperson, Lance Granzow opened the meeting. Also present were Trustee BJ
Hoffman; Trustee Renee McClellan; Private Trustees George loger, Westhenry loger, Harold Roske, Harold Muller,
Steve Marten, Jeff Roberts, Leonard Penning, John Kix, Russell Smith, Art Hensing; Landowners, Adam Seward,
Craig Froning, Kay Froning, Curt Groen; Brad King, Vice President, Midwest Development of RWE Renewables;
Josh Odom, Senior Development Manager, RWE Renewables; Bette Dossman, RWE Renewables; Tom Miller,
Westwood Professional Services; Mark Buschkamp, lowa Falls Economic Development Director; Darrell Meyer,
County Attorney; Lee Gallentine, Clapsaddle-Garber Associates; James Sweeney, Clapsaddle-Garber Associates;
and Drainage Clerk Denise Smith.

2. Approve Agenda
Motion by McClellan to approve the agenda. Second by Hoffman. All ayes. Motion carried.

3. Introductions/Attendance
Introductions were made and attendance was verified.

4. Discuss W Possible Action -Wind Turbine Ordinance And Drainage Utility Permit Language & Process

Granzow introduced that we have had a Utility Permit Application, and some of the things that we are discussing
changing on these Permits, with the windmills proposing, we have asked for a moratorium on new windmill
construction, so that we can take the time to review these permits and have an updated permit and process in
place. A lot of the reasons we are updating the policy is to protect our drainage facilities. We have invited you all in
today to discuss these policies for the whole county not just where the new windmills are being proposed.

Gallentine stated that the drainage permit policy was put in place a few years ago. There is a code section of lowa
Drainage Law that states if a utility crosses a drainage district they need to get an easement. So as an extension
of that, Hardin County came up with this permit process. The way the permit process is supposed to work is that
when the construction is occurring, the Utility would contact the Drainage District or their representative, which is
typically CGA. CGA would come out, observe as the Utility contractor uncovers the drainage district tile, while they
are crossing it, the Ultility is required to cross underneath district tile, and then CGA would document that and that
they had not impacted the tile and that they maintain the clearance level. CGA then reports that back to the district
Trustees. The Utility is also typically required to install a sign there, sometimes that isn't feasible if it is in the road
ditch bottom, etc. So that is typically how the Drainage Utility Permit Process typically happens, and that has had
varying degrees of success. Some local utilities, like Heart of lowa are very good and do their own work, some
other utilities contract the work out, and it gets sub-contracted out multiple times, and by the time they get to the
job the contractor doesn't have a clue he is supposed to call/notify anyone and may not even have a clue what
drainage tile is. Gallentine assumes a wind turbine would fall under the same Utility Permit process scenario.

Granzow stated that usually when we grant a Utility permit, it is in the road right of way, with wind turbines, the
work would not be in the right of way. Granzow went on that the Private Trustees are Trustees of their own
districts, and the wind turbine companies should be coming to the Private Trustees as well for permitting. Granzow
stated we have been looking at changing the Utility Permit process, for wind turbines to tunnel under our drainage
tile may not be feasible in all cases as we have tile buried 12' to 14' deep. One of the concerns, was that if the
WEC transmission lines go over the top of tile, it should not cost the drainage districts any more for added costs.
Gallentine stated the under the current process, the utility company is supposed to pay for the engineer's oversight
costs, not the drainage district. That has met some resistance with some utilities who state we are careful, just
trust us, some companies are better to work with and recognize that as a cost of doing business, however
accidents do happen sometimes, and sometimes people are not aware of what tile is, there are some good
installations out there too.

Granzow stated we want to make sure that the process goes smoothly and we do not interrupt drainage to our
landowners, so that is why we called everyone in, to review our policies, to see if you have suggestions, or if you
want to follow the same policy we use. Hoffman stated the public education of the people in the drainage districts
are paramount to making this process work. When Hoffman had been contacted as a Supervisor about drainage,
the knowledge level is all over the spectrum. When explaining how the percent of benefit works, and how what one
landowner pays compared to another landowner may be different, and explaining how the percent of benefit
works, people may be unaware how and why they pay different amounts for a project. For people outside of



drainage districts, that have never had an assessment, that may become quite a point of contention. Hoffman
stated his family owns property in a district but has only had one assessment in 30 years, and were unaware that
drainage districts were a thing. Hoffman wants to make sure that although we can't protect people from
themselves, we want to make sure that as Private Trustees, you have the information you need to answer
questions and provide your landowners the best information possible. It was noted by Hoffman, that our absentee
landowners and their tenants need to be kept well aware of what is going on. Hoffman continued that we should be
happy we still have some local control and governance to utilize that control, and it is important for all the private
Trustees as leaders, to gather as much information as they can, to make educated and informed decisions.

It was asked by George loger, if each drainage district could write their own permit or were they required to use the
one used by the county. Gallentine noted that Code states the utility is just required to get an easement from the
district. It was discussed that the Private Trustee districts could take the county's permit and modify it to their liking
and use that. Smith stated no alterations have been made to the current Drainage Utility Permit yet, that we were
seeking Private Trustee input before doing so. Granzow stated the permit needs revision, as it may not fit each
situation as it is currently written. Gallentine stated the big issue is that a lot of contractors and subcontractors view
this as, the contractor will plow in their utility and if water pops up the contractor will come back and fix it.
Gallentine stated we should just avoid damaging the tile to start with, drainage was here first and the new utilities
can put their lines in around it.

County Attorney Darrell Meyer stated that if each district wanted to adopt this permit as their policy, they could just
file something with the Drainage Clerk that states we have adopted this document as our policy. Meyer noted that
it is great that the WEC's promised to fix any issues, but the Private Trustees should view themselves as landlords
and that there will be a tenant on that land for 30 years, do you want some damage deposit money upfront or do
you want to chase them at the end of the lease, Meyer stated he believes it is better risk management to have a
sufficient deposit upfront that the WEC's must maintain so that you have to fix the problem upfront that you identify,
then if it is disputed, the WEC's are just arguing if they will get their money back rather than worrying if there was
enough money there to fix it to begin with. Smith stated that if the Trustees choose to make this or any document
their policies, the Private Trustees just need to write up their meeting minutes, with signatures for all 3 Trustees,
stating that they have chosen this as their policy so it can be added to the District's records. It was asked if this
needed to be an official meeting with all landowners present. Smith stated it could just be a meeting with a quorum
of their Trustees for that district.

It was asked if neighboring counties have a similar policy. Hoffman stated he spoke with Grundy County
Supervisor Barb Smith this past week, and Supervisor Smith asked Hoffman to keep an open mind on the WEC's.
Hoffman stated that what Supervisor Smith failed to realize was that Grundy County is unique compared to Hardin
County in that Grundy County has 1 drainage district, no state parks, no greenbelt, and fewer conservation areas.
Supervisor Smith agreed we have different variables and Grundy County's policy may not meet the needs of
Hardin County, everything we do here is unique to Hardin County. Gallentine spoke to Franklin County, in which
they just finished a wind turbine project by Latimer. The Franklin County Supervisors, acting as Trustees, had a
separate agreement with the WEC that anytime a transmission line crossed a district facility, which is mostly tile in
that area, they had CGA on site, the contractor had to expose the tile and CGA had to verify the transmission line
was buried underneath the tile. Gallentine went on to say the 2 largest cranes used on the project would cross that
tile line with a crane walk, CGA had to be on-site to watch that area during the crane walk. The contractor would
put out mats that are 12" to 18" thick, when the crane is pulled up onto the mat, they can compress flush with the
ground, and when the crane comes back off it, the mat comes right back up out of the ground. That Franklin
County Attorney recommit the utility pay the costs of observation, however they did not have the utility pay CGA
directly, but instead they recommend CGA submits their bills directly to the county so it is clear that CGA is
working for the County and the drainage constituents, so CGA is not receiving compensation directly from the
utility company. Gallentine stated when that crane mat goes down 12" to 18", he can't tell you what gave way
underneath, whether if it is dirt or tile. It was asked if we currently have language for observation for heavy
equipment traversing over the top of tile lines in our permit. Granzow stated we did not, that language would have
to be added to the permit.

Granzow suggested we have tile televised before WEC construction and again after WEC construction, so that we
can determine if damage was done during WEC work or if it was already broken, this would remove all doubt of
when the damage occurred. Gallentine stated that Franklin County had a second WEC project near Bradford,
while there are fewer districts near Bradford, and now, ten years later, they are still finding issues that need fixed
because they did not have anyone in the field during construction as a District representative. It was noted that the
issues being discussed are just with district tile and does not include any possible impacts or regulations on private
tile.

The moratorium was discussed, it was asked if Madison County had a ban on new WEC's. Hoffman stated that his
colleague, Phill Clifton, Madison County Supervisor, stated they did not have an ordinance at all, and if WEC's got
a conditional use permit they could build new wind turbines. So Madison County placed a moratorium on new



construction, and Clifton voted no because it was an indefinite moratorium. It was thought that if the moratorium
was indefinite, the WEC's would just go away. Clifton hoped to develop a 6 month moratorium while they
developed an ordinance, so instead of taking all county board's and committee's inputs, they have just halted all
new development. Jessica Sheridan, stated they are working on developing a new ordinance in Madison County.

It was asked how much interest there was in the county for new turbine construction, Hoffman stated we need to
keep the meeting cordial, and that we can have an open dialogue with the developers that are here today. It was
asked if each district could have it's own moratorium. Gallentine stated the each district has its own Trustees that
are in charge of it, so it is up to those Trustees to grant that permit request or not. If those Trustees are the
Supervisors, they can put a moratorium on everything as Supervisors, but they have no authority as Trustees in a
Private district, they have authority as Supervisors, but not the Drainage Trustees. Granzow asked that if an
individual district says that if they don't want a wind turbine, they can not approve any permits. Gallentine stated
that there can be windmills, but the Trustees have the authority to not allow the WEC's to cross their tile lines, if
they can put up a turbine where they never cross your tile, the WEC's can still do that, the Trustees only have
authority over the tile or the open ditch, and noted he was not an attorney.

Westhenry loger asked is Private Trustees have the right to not issue the permit. Gallentine stated yes but all that
is stopping is their right to cross the tile line, and recommended if a Trustee is thinking of doing that, they should
consult with an attorney first. Jessica Sheridan, stated that you should make sure your objections are based on
drainage and not personal feelings. James Sweeney stated that with the new ordinance, there is a review by the
Board of Adjustment, Jessica Sheridan stated that any applicant for a new turbine has to get approval from each of
the Boards and Commissions on the list before they can even submit a conditional use application to the County.
One of those groups on the list are the Drainage Trustees and also the Drainage Clerk, because the clerk needs to
ensure the project is not going through a drainage ditch. It was noted that by default, the Supervisors are the
Drainage District Trustees for all districts within Hardin County. If landowners wish to have control of their district,
the majority of landowners can petition for Private Trustee management, and that the Private Trustees present
today, represent districts, that sometime in their 100 year old history, have voted to do.

Brad King, Vice President of Midwest Development, of RWE Renewables, along with Josh Odom, Senior
Development Manager of RWE Renewables introduced themselves, and stated they were here to answer any
questions and concerns the group might have. They have been working on the project here in Hardin County for
the last two years. Kings stated they have seen a lot of support but as part of the normal development process
there is a lot of questions or concerns relative to drainage. King states their private agreements address that, and
there is about a page of language that states that if we break it, we fix. As part of a best practices plan, they
usually look to put together a drainage agreement, with counties or private landowners, very similar to what the
Hardin County application spells out, with the appropriate language that spells out their obligations as part of that
construction insight and process. It was asked if any of their lines would be plowed in. King stated that no they
were not, it was all installed with an open trench, either a 16" or 18" open trench. Typically, during the collection
line installation, anytime they identify a tile location, they stop, mark it, take a picture and GPS the location, then
the repair crews come in, and then the tile line gets repaired as those lines go in. Any damage gets repaired with a
rigid structure prior to that ditch being filled back in.

It was asked how much of an issue will the RWE fix, for example, drainage issues that don't show up right away
may include a break in pattern tile, which could become silted in, how much of the tile would actually be repaired.
King replied some companies will put a sunset on repairs in their agreements, but RWE will have maps that show
where their collection lines went, that also includes crane walks, but they commit to repairs for life of the project. If
it is damage that they did, that results in loss of production or loss of yield, they would address that and fix it.
Granzow asked if they break a tile and flood out 160 acres, would they pay those damages, and King stated they
would. Gallentine asked if they would be open to boring under district tile, because going over private tile may be
ok, especially smaller tile, but he did not think that RWE would want to open cut over a 36" flowing concrete tile,
because their trench would fill in so quick. King stated if it were district tile, RWE would come to the county and
ask where all of their district tile is, and try to design their collection around that so as to avoid it as much as
possible. Beyond that King stated they would bore under those larger tile lines. Gallentine stated in Franklin
County the contractor was given a digitized copy of their 100 year old drainage maps, and said at this coordinate,
there should be a tile, despite the location being on top of a hill. Those contractors were from Georgia and had no
experience with drainage tile, to know to look at the bottom of the hill rather than the top of the hill. Eventually they
would find it, but of all the crossings in Franklin County the turbine company only hit two tile, due to last minute
changes. Gallentine stated if the contractor takes the effort on the front end, it can be a nice process.

King stated they have built lots of projects in the midwest, they have one in Indiana and several in lllinois, and they
are well versed in working around tile, so they should be able to figure out the language and technical specification
to identify any concerns that folks might have. Gallentine stated that Franklin County's project did try to utilize

ground penetrating radar to locate tile lines, with very little success, it did not produce much good data. King stated
they would like the landowner and their own tile person to be present when they do the work, to ensure that if a tile



is damaged, it is repaired to the landowners satisfaction. King went on that they do a lot of consultation ahead of
time so they have a construction schedule that tells them where they will be on any given day, and reach out to
those landowners, and then they map and GPS all the tile locations that are then provided to landowners post
construction. Josh Odom, stated they usually give landowners three options for tile repair, RWE's contractor can
repair it, the landowner can fix it on their own, and RWE will reimburse them for their equipment and materials to
do that, or if there is a local tile installer and they can do the repair and RWE will pay the bills.

Gallentine stated that the landowners know their fields better than anyone, and their information and knowledge is
invaluable to any contractor doing work in their field. Granzow stated he is aware that when working on tile and
RWE has an easement, but if there are additional engineering costs for Districts to work around wind turbine
installations, when Districts do a new project those additional costs should not be passed on to our district
landowners, those additional costs should be paid by RWE. Gallentine stated that with erosion on an existing tile,
and we do a repair that requires the new tile to be laid deeper, and if the wind turbine's cables or the tile need to
be moved because of our deepening, who bears that cost. King stated if there are an additional cost to landowners
because of their facilities, that is something that RWE would look to reimburse for.

Granzow stated that we are asking, because we have seen increased costs for engineering due to our issues with
the railroads, and we hope to not pass those costs on to landowners. King stated we have had to reroute turbine
lines if there is a specific facility that is in the way, and they try to avoid district tile as much as is possible.
Granzow expressed concern that landowners that have not signed up for an easement with RWE, should not bear
additional costs because their neighbors have agreed to a turbine easement. King noted that if they break it they
fix it, so that they restore those drainage characteristics, so that if we break it your property, we fix it so the
neighbor next door is not having an adverse effect. It was asked how deep the turbine lines are buried, King states
they bury to 4' of overhead cover, and have gone down to 5' of overhead cover based on county regulations.

The were questions about RWE's development plan in Hardin County. King stated right now there are no
expansion plans in Hardin County, and that they have been working on a project in Hardin County. The ordinance
and permitting process is separate than some of the other agreements that go into a project development. These
projects are usually permitted with a conditional or special use permit which then has conditions to prior to building
permit receipt, and those include your road use agreements which dictate repairs and improvement, drainage
district agreements, decommissioning agreements. Those are all things RWE will look at and enter into with a
county, to make sure that it spells it out to RWE what their protections are and it spells out to the County and
landowners what RWE's commitment is to them. Odom shared that RWE is independent of any previous turbine
projects in the county, they currently have over 21,000 acres leased with landowners in the area, which cover 121
individual leases in the project area, and that they worked with the landowners to assuage their concerns over tile
damage. Any damage that RWE causes, they will fix over the lifetime of this project, because sometimes tile
issues don't pop up right away. If it does pop up years later, and RWE knows it was caused by them, they will
come back and fix it. King stated there is a lot of scary misinformation out there, and he thanked the group for
allowing RWE to be there and answer their concerns.

King went on that RWE has lots of projects in the midwest they have worked with and wanted to ensure that the
group was informed and comfortable with RWE obligations, technical specifications and financial assurances to
make sure that they are well informed as they craft this permit. McClellan asked about RWE's company having
changed hands over time, and what impact that may have on their easement agreements and obligations, should
the company change ownership or have a bankruptcy in the future. King stated there was a merger between Eon
and RWE Renewables, and that does not change any of their obligations in their existing agreements. Landowners
asked what happens to those obligations if this company is sold off two or three times in the future. King assured
that historically they have been a developer and owner operator of projects and state hypothetically if a project
were sold, the buyer would be contractually obligated to all of their existing contracts. One of the questions folks
most often have go back to decommissioning, if RWE were no longer here, 15 to 20 years from now, what would
happen to the project. All of the contracts have clauses in them that carry over to any assignees or buyers, and
that contract would go along with that sale. There is a decommissioning plan and post decommissioning
assurance that says if something were to happen to RWE there would be economic funds set aside to
decommission the project. Jessica Sheridan stated there is language in our ordinance to cover that possibility.
McClellan wanted to ensure if there were bankruptcy or foreclosure that the decommissioning were still covered.
King replied yes.

Sheridan asked about a local RWE contact who can make decisions about drainage issues, she stated that there
was a landowner who has a friend in western lowa with drainage problems as a result of wind turbine installation
that struggled to make contact with the turbine company to get it repaired, and the local contact in Omaha had no
actual authority to get the drainage issue approved for repair. Smith stated that the landowner who reports a
drainage issue may not be the landowner with the signed easement with RWE and may not have access to any
contact information for someone at RWE. King stated that each project will have a local maintenance and
operations building, with maintenance and operations staff. Those offices are open during regular business hours,



and they do have a 24/7 dispatch center number that can be reached in an emergency, there will be an on-site
construction manager whose information can be provided as well that a broken tile line could be reported to during
construction. Once construction is complete and it goes into operation, there will also be an on-site site supervisor
that issues can be reported to as well. It was asked if our ordinance currently states that those contact numbers
need to be provided. Sheridan stated it is not now but will be added to the ordinance.

It was asked what townships will be involved in the current project under development. Odom stated it will be in
Alden, Buckeye, Sherman and Tipton townships. It was asked if this would be an expansion of the Radcliffe site.
Odom stated no, this will be construction of new turbines. McClellan asked if they know now how many turbines
will be built. Odom stated they do not have an exact number right now but they anticipate between 66 and 100
units depending on the size of the actual turbine. It will be up to a 200 megawatt project. It was asked where the
closest transmission line will be. Odom stated it is north of lowa Falls and goes into Franklin County. George loger
inquired as to the timeliness of damage payments, and stated he has neighbors that are 2 years plus spent trying
to get their damage payments from another turbine company. King stated he was not sure if it was specifically
spelled out but their damage payment is within 45 days of confirmation of damage reported, they will do calculation
on acres, crop prices, and within 45 days of verification payment will be made. Odom state they have already paid
one damage claim arising from trucks installing the meteorological tower, leaving ruts in a just planted field, and
they waited till the crop came up and determined the landowner lost 1/4 of an acre of corn. Odom said the process
took about 3 weeks until the time the landowner reached out about the damage in the field and the time the check
was cut.

It was asked by Sweeney if there was an fund established by the new ordinance, that would be used for damages,
and though it was $50,000, and once a claim was filed and the fund depleted it would be replenished by the
turbine company. King stated that RWE company policy stated that there is money to be held to be paid to the
recipient of any damage. Sheridan stated for that each WEC application that includes an area with a public
drainage system, the applicant shall provide and maintain a security deposit in the amount of $50,000 to be held
by Hardin County and to be used by Hardin County to make repairs during the productive life of the WEC. King
states if there is damage that done by RWE that they don't fix themselves, and there is loss or damage due to that
there is a separate fund to pay those damages. Sweeney states it is worth noting that there is difference between
the RWE company policy, this is airtight or well written and up to the farmer and Trustees that the agreement they
entered into themselves is well written but that the company still has to adhere to this county ordinance.

McClellan asks if there is a disagreement as to who caused the damage, who bears the burden of proof on
whether RWE caused the damages or not. King stated that there is some dispute resolution language in their
easements/contracts that specifies a third party dispute resolution process. McClellan asked if a drainage
complaint is made with RWE, how long does it take them to come out and investigate if it was their problem or not.
King stated usually a matter of days, since they have on-site staff, it was noted that when they are trenching in tile,
any damage is photographed and GPS location noted, and a map will be provided to the landowner, so that they
can look at it together later and figure out the drainage issue. In King's experience, he has not seen a drainage
issue not be resolved and have to go to dispute resolution. McClellan asked if RWE would provide those GPS
locations of damage on district tile to the county for our records. King stated they would. It was discussed who a
mediator would be, and it was discussed that perhaps the Drainage Utility permit would be the best place to
include dispute resolution language and who would pay for that. Landowners suggested perhaps the losing side
has to pay for the winning sides attorney fees, because that makes things more reasonable before a lawsuit gets
started.

It was asked what type of cabling was buried by RWE. Odom stated the turbines underground cabling consists of
bundles of triplex (3 wires), above that is communications cable and fiber-optic cable and above that is warning
tape, so if there is ever excavation in the area you would hit that warning tape before impacting any other cables.

Smith stated that we had received many questions in phone calls from landowners about decommissioning of wind
turbines, and asked if King could address what that process looks like for a landowner that may not the one with
the turbine site, but may be his neighbor, so that the neighbors may understand that process as they don't see the
company's easements and contracts to have that information. King stated decommissioning was way in the future
and a common question. When they start a project they do a decommission analysis and a decommissioning plan
that basically says here are our specifications, and we will remove everything down to 5' below ground surface and
as part of the plan, there is a third party engineer that says what is the price of decommissioning and salvage.
RWE will look at that delta and then put into place financial assurances based on that, and then they revisit that
every 5 years to see if decommissioning has gotten more expensive, have materials gotten cheaper or more
expensive to make sure the appropriate amount of money is in place to do the decommissioning. The plan itself
will spell out what needs to be decommissioned, typically they don't recommend decommissioning deeper than
where their cable is buried, because that would force them to cut all the tile again to get it out. So typically if we
bury to 5' depth, we would decommission down to that 4' depth, and remove everything down to that depth,
whether it is 4' or &', typically the cable stays in the ground. King states RWE would remove the majority of the



foundation to that depth. Access roads can be kept by the farmer if they choose, if the farmer does not want to
keep the access roads, it can be removed by RWE. Odom stated will remove access roads unless requested by
the owner, some owners find they like the access roads to use to load out crops.

It was asked if the new ordinance has decommissioning language in it, Sheridan stated it has 130% of
decommissioning costs. King stated that if they go in too deep for removal it causes double damage due to heavy
equipment. It was asked how deep are the foundations. Odom state the typical foundation is 60" across by 16'
deep depending on ground conditions, it is a large spreadfoot foundation, reinforced with rebar. The round
pedestal base you see above ground is about 3' tall, the entire base contains about 35 tons of rebar and 300 to
400 cubic yards of concrete. There were questions about what is the deepest reasonable depth of removal, as
some of the concerns we heard from farmers were that the removal needs to be as deep as possible. King replied
that removal depth on most projects in the country are 4' and the last project they did in lllinois was 5' removal
depth. RWE was the first signatories of a state level agricultural impact agreement with the Illinois Department of
Agriculture and that specified 5' removal depth. Gallentine asked how deep their cable was, King replied their
cable was 5' deep and they removed to just 5' of overhead cover, and the cable trench is 6' deep, so the cable
remained in the bottom of the trench. Sheridan asked if we specified a 6' depth, would they bury cable to 6' depth.
King replied that every foot we go deeper, adds significant costs. Granzow asked if we are decommissioning if we
could have a different depth for the pedestal removal than the cable removal. King stated what has historically
driven the pedestal removal, is how much do you need to remove to make that ground tenable again. Sheridan
asked if King agreed that the land where the pedestal lies would no longer be tenable. King stated there would be
a yield difference but you could still plant on it, Gallentine stated it would be much like demoing an acreage, you
can still plant on it but there may always be a yield difference.

Sweeney asked if a pedestal base was made shorter or taller based on county ordinances. King replied that
pedestal would be gone, and it would depend on costs and code requirements on how much further they would
remove foundation. King stated that with their negotiations with lllinois Department of Agriculture, they felt that the
5' depth they specified would be reasonable, and RWE was one of the first companies to sign on with that depth,
and now it is the standard within the state. King stated the pedestal would remain the same height based on
engineering designs, and then they would just remove additional foundation material to meet the 5' depth of
removal. Sheridan asked if in their agreements with landowners, does RWE only remove the above ground 3' of
the pedestal and the landowner removes the further amounts or is RWE responsible to remove all material to that
4' or 5' depth. Odom stated that their contracts obligate them to remove to the 4' depth, and everyone who has
signed on with us are comfortable with that. King says their lease says 4', and if he county decides it should be 5'
they will not go back to the landowner and say well our lease only goes to 4', they would do 5' removal consistently
across the project.

King stated one of the things RWE would ask is what requirements they will have going forward, and they would
like this to be as consistent as possible. They would like the county drainage requirements be consistent county
wide. McClellan stated we need to look out for our future farming generations, is 4' enough of a removal depth
when considering erosion and what kind of farm equipment will we have by then. King stated generational
considerations are why we do what we do, looking at climate change, and environmental benefits and also the
economic benefits that wind turbines can provide to a community to allow family farming to continue, those
concerns are spot on.

Granzow asked about concerns about vibrations the turbines put off with clay tiles. King stated they continuously
consult with US Fish and Wildlife and DNR for environmental impacts. Granzow stated he is specifically concerned
with 100 year old clay drainage tiles, if these turbines are vibrating, what is keeping those vibrations from
damaging clay tile, shortening the life of the tile and collapsing it. King stated that he has not seen any correlations
between vibrations and damage to tile.

Granzow asked if there was any specific language in our ordinance that the private Trustees would like to see
accepted in their ordinance. Westhenry loger addressed the Supervisors acting as Drainage Trustees, and fellow
Trustees, to remind them to talk to the farmers in their districts, to keep listening to them, and it is appreciated.
Westhenry loger went on to thank the RWE representatives for being here, but stated they will not come here and
tell us that this is a bad idea, they are trying to sell this project to the farmers. loger asked the Trustees to talk to
some of the other farmers who have been tied up for 2 years with WEC's trying to get their tile/crop damage
reimbursement money out of them, and encouraged the Trustees to see what problems those farmers have had,
so that we can put that in our agreement, to try and avoid those problems in the future. We do not want to go the
route that a lot of our neighbors have with these problems. loger continued that another big concern he has is
WEC going into bankruptcy, he says that they can put repair money in escrow accounts and if RWE goes bankrupt
that money may be gone, and who would pay your damages then, and the big expense of getting a turbine out of
your field. He would like to see stricter regulations in place now, to ensure farmers can get access to repair money
in the event of a RWE bankruptcy. Drainage law is very complicated and he has a concern that anytime there is an
issue with these large corporations, you would need to get a lawyer involved, and we are little guys compared to



these large corporations, you can win but legal costs are high, and it may not be worth it. loger, would like the
WEC's to pay their fair share of legal costs in any lawsuit related to drainage, especially if the WEC is determined
to be at fault.

Granzow asked how many districts RWE is proposing to go through. Granzow stated it is a common cause for a
small district, that small district may only have 5 landowners, and there is no way they could absorb those high
legal costs, they would not be able to contend if there is a disagreement. Granzow pointed out that RWE would not
be talking just to the Supervisors as Trustees, but to every district in the county, of which there are over 200 in this
county, and to those private Trustees as well. King stated it was an understandable concern, and asked they they
not all be lumped together as wind developers. There are good wind developers, and they have seen some
projects that have not been developed as responsibly as they should have, but RWE is here and will continue to
be here, and are committed to working with you. Westhenry loger stated, he appreciates that King is willing to
work with them but in 5 years it will most likely be someone else in King's place, and who knows what your
company will look like in 10 to 20 years. King states that the language you feel comfortable with will protect you
throughout the life of your contract.

Adam Seward stated he is suspicious of the harmonics caused by the vibrations with the relationship to clay tile,
and he states that while RWE does not see the relationship, Seward asked if there is any other way besides
televising that we could go in and get an idea of what tile looks like before turbine construction to create a baseline
record before damage occurs. Gallentine stated the questions with harmonics is the same as with any cause of tile
failure, you can do televising and there is a laser scanning technique that you can do that will create a 3D model of
the tile interior. This would allow you to actually measure any tile deflection over time, compared to a previous
scan. However the cost of this laser scanning would be about 20 times the cost of televising a tile, beyond that
Gallentine is not aware of any other options to record tile conditions. Seward is concerned with added vibrations of
wind turbines, along with heavy equipment may be too much for old clay tiles, and there may need to be better
verbage in the permitting process, and this could end up with very costly repairs to districts.

One landowner brought up concerns about wildlife impact, he stated he found a woman parked on a turbine
access road in his field, and he asked her what she was doing, she replied she was looking for dead bats under
the turbine. King stated from a security standpoint, they typically don't gate their access roads, but if a landowner
would like them gated they can do that. King stated one of the common questions they get is about bird and bat
mortality. King stated RWE does extensive preconstruction avian analysis to determine if there are conditions in
this area, that will in create a negative impact to local bird and bat species. To confirm their findings they go back
post construction, once a turbine is operating, they will go back and reanalyze to see if what they thought is
accurate and make sure they are not having an adverse effect. King stated that statistically, cars, cats and tall
buildings kill more birds than wind turbines. Odom stated we are doing avian surveys right now, they have
employed biologists to go out with binoculars to go out and observe and record wild bird species counts and build
that database of what is in the area. McClellan stated we have Conservation areas that have bird watching
facilities and that is a tourism draw for Hardin County.

Granzow stated we will put a drainage application package together and we will hand it out to each of the Private
Trustees, so that they can review it , approve it or adopt as they see fit for their districts. We just want to make sure
that our concerns for protecting district tile facilities are ensured. Gallentine stated the Franklin County project
involved only Supervisor controlled districts, there were no private districts involved, and that is how the
Supervisors, acting as Drainage Trustees, were able to sign all of the wind turbine permit applications as they were
in charge of all the districts.

Sheridan stated if anyone has comments or concerns as to what they would like in the utility permit application,
they have time to get those into the Drainage Clerk, as the Ordinance will have reference to the permit, but they
have time to put together and edit the permit. Smith stated if you have comments or concerns, you can email those
to the Drainage Clerk and she will share them with the Supervisors, and those can be included in the revision of
the permit.

Landowner Steve Marten, stated if repair costs due to turbine constructions were ever assessed to landowners, it
should be respective of who has those wind turbines on their property and who does not. Gallentine stated that
current lowa Drainage Code states that anything done in a district has to be assessed based on the current
assessment schedule, which is based off of drainage benefits, there is a little room in there is benefits are based
off of preventing erosion, but it is all drainage and water related. Marten states if someone is going to be assessed
for repairs on a project, and they receive financial benefits from those wind turbines, they should have to pay their
fair share. Granzow stated as part of the permitting, those costs caused by the WEC's should be paid by the
WEC's. Marten stated the process should be in place to prevent those costs being passed on to the landowner
from happening. One of the landowners expressed concerns about the WEC's working in too wet ground
conditions, and doing additional damage to tile or fields, and that there should be some language in place to allow
the landowner some protections. King stated there are weather days built into the contracts with landowners to



make sure they are not constructing when they should not be. Gallentine stated in Franklin County, there were a
lot of crane walks that were postponed due to wet conditions.

Granzow asked if all the parcels in the project were being leased or purchased. King stated they are all leased with
the exception of ground purchased for a collector substation where the ground lines come in and the ground for
the switch yard interconnect has been deeded to the utility, otherwise there have been no purchases. Seward
asked if there were maps available as to where they will locate or would like to locate. Odom stated we are done
with land acquisition at this time, so they will work with landowners going forward on how sites will be connected.
Seward asked if RWE had a copy of a landowner lease they could share. Odom stated he did not have one with
him. Smith asked where would the local operations center for this project be located. Odom stated it would be
centrally located and that location is to be determined, and it is usually with our collector substation, which is also a
purchased parcel. It was asked if the leases are recorded at the Courthouse, Odom replied there is a
memorandum at the Courthouse.

It was mentioned there was another separate meeting with RWE and the Board of Adjustment to follow this one,
and anyone that wishes to attend may do so.

. Other Business

. Adjourn Meeting
Motion by Hoffman to adjourn, second by Granzow. All ayes. Motion carried.



PA\6735,1\CADD\CDS\6735.1-COVER.dwg - COVER - 01-02-20 - 11:19am - 25343

PROJECT
LOCATION

:

UPPER MAIN TILE DIVERSION
DRAINAGE DISTRICT NO. 9
HARDIN COUNTY, IOWA

R
| 150mHsT

H AVE

\

2

1507,

3

160TH ST /’//f

e
5 T
gCO HWY D25
; ST
180TH ST é :
VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

Des Moines

LOCATION

Waterloo

Aes Mashalltown

LOC

ATION MAP

Cedar
Rapids

Dubugue

2020

IOWA=
®ON! CALL

1-800-292-3989 |

www.iowaonecall.com | eggaem

CGA

A —  ————

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

Toll Free (800) 542-7981
www.cgaconsultants.com

INDEX OF SHEETS

SHEET DESCRIPTION
1 COVER SHEET
2 LEGEND, NOTES, AND ABBREVIATIONS
3 PLAN AND PROFILE
4 DETAILS

NOTES:

1. THE PLANS & SPECIFICATIONS PREPARED BY CGA SHALL GOVERN.
ALL WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH THE DETAILS & SPECIFICATIONS

REFERENCED.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT IOWA ONE-CALL TO OBTAIN UTILITY

LOCATES PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION.

3. ATTENTION IS DIRECTED TO THE FACT THAT THESE PLANS MAY HAVE
BEEN REDUCED OR INCREASED IN SIZE BY REPRODUCTION. THIS

MUST BE CONSIDERED WHEN OBTAINING SCALED DATA.

4. ALL ELEVATIONS SHOWN ON THESE PLANS ARE BASED ON 2019

SURVEY.

Sy,
g 7
grav ey

N
Q
\\\
\,\\\\\

N

i JONR

£ \
i

£/ Lo 2%

S€! GALLENTINE (M S

2= 18745 ‘D §. Signature

EL ) ‘% § Lee O. Galientine, PE
RN SRS
"'.'_f‘—a S N lowa License Number 15745

Pages or sheets covered by this seal: AS SHOWN ON INDEX

| hereby certify that this engineering document was
prepared by me or under my direct personal supervision
and that | am a duly licensed Professional Engineer
under the laws of the State of lowa.

_/Z%ﬁz&z@z@

My license renewal date is December 31, 2020

CGA PROJECT NO. 6735.1

SHEET 1 OF 4 J




I PLAN SHEET LEGEND
NOTES: EXISTING | PROPOSED
EXISTING DITCH e - — Street Sign Post
(PER ORIGITAL mg 1. CA:lélNTlglngcl)_gNggia Sé—lé)WN ARE THROUGH ALL STRUCTURES. HOWEVER, - - — Sign Post
TYP! PAID ONLY FOR ACTUAL PIPE LEN
IN COMPLETED SYSTEM. GTH INSTALLED ﬁ% % — Ommamental Bush
I — Deciduous Tree
2. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL TREES (INCLUDING LIMBS) SHOWN IN i
— Conif
’ THE PROJECT PLANS UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. ALL TREES SHALL BE % % oniferous Tree
I /7 PROTECTED FROM DAMAGE TO TRUNKS, BRANCHES AND ROOTS. NO corer| ppppr o) Anenr
EXISTING DISTRICT T I / EXCAVATING, FILLING, GRADING, HAUL ROUTES OR MATERIAL STORAGE _P%E’ _,‘QEP — Power Pole, w/Trans, w/Light,
(P o w'\'ﬁE) y; 5 SHALL BE WITHIN THE DRIP LINE OF THE TREE(S) UNLESS OTHERWISE &E §, & X, w/Trans & Light
(TYPICAL) / INDICATED. IF REQUIRED, CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE BRANCH AND 9
ROOT PRUNING REQUIRED FOR THE MEANS AND METHODS PROPOSED — Telephone Pedestal
\ Y 4 FOR THE NEW WORK BY A REGISTERED ARBORIST IN ADVANCE OF B g — Telephone Service
\ . / /, S/%l\éiTFl?%JECM'I'ION. COST SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE ASSOCIATED NEW oFLEC | FLEC — Electric Pedestal
w TR \ / ll / o 3 E1 — Electric Panel
= ] / o 3. SOME UTILITIES ARE PLOTTED ON THESE PLANS. THERE MAY BE OTHER, XX ot — Light Pole
| THE EXISTENCE OF WHICH MAY BE KNOWN OR UNKNOWN. THE §V< % — Gas V.
# CONTRACTOR SHALL USE THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS IN CONJUNCTION os Valve
Y WITH THE IOWA ONE—CALL SERVICE FOR THE ENTIRE PROJECT PRIOR TO ~ Gos Meter
- STARTING ANY CONSTRUCTION TO ALLOW REVIEW FOR POSSIBLE UTILITY @i ﬁ — Fire Hydrant
CONFLICTS. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT ONE—CALL TO OBTAIN UTILITY p< N — Water Va!
LOCATES PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION. WHERE PROPOSED ater Valve
agrégmggglor\l SHALL CROSS EXISTING UTILITIES, SERVICE, AND TILE o % = Water Shut=0ff
, TRACTOR SHALL LOCATE AND EXPOSE SAID UTILITIES, SERVICE — Sanit S M
AND TILE LINES AT LEAST 24 HOURS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION TO ' % © cnitary Sewer Manhole
ALLOW REVIEW FOR POSSIBLE UTILITY CONFLICTS. © ~ Storm Sewer/Tile Intake
4 ATTENTION IS DIRECTED TO THE F N T puried Ter Opte Hne
. ACT THAT THESE PLANS MAY HAVE — — —OE — —OE— - ic Li
BEEN REDUCED OR INCREASED IN SIZE BY REPRODUCTION. THIS MUST Overhead Electric Line
BE CONSIDERED WHEN OBTAINING SCALED DATA. - ~ Fence Line
CO. HIGHWAY D25 —— — — —6— — Gas Line |
- o) =V == — Water Main
C}— o o — Water Main Service Line
&QY — - — Sanitary Sewer Line
4 — — — Sanitary Sewer Service Line
X LJ
\39 Y ABBREVIATIONS mmmmmmmm=®  _ Storm Sewer/Tile Line
& L ADMG  —  AMERICAN DISABILITIES ACT ACCESSIBILITY GUIDELINES — Future Storm Sewer Line
N BM —  BENCHMARK bl b — Tile Removal
BOC —  BACK OF CURB mmmmm  — Tile Abandoned |
CDS — CUL DE SAC @ — Structure/Intake Removal
cL —  CENTERLINE ~— ne—t— n—  — Property Line
U.S. HIGHWAY 20 EG - EXISTING GROUND E = ok R/¥— — Right—0f—Way Line
VISUAL INDEX EP —~  EDGE OF PAVEMENT —*—  _ Contour Line
NOT TO SCALE FG = FORM GRADE —_— = — Baseline/Centerline
FL —  FLOW LINE —_— — Sawcut Line
PIPE MATERIAL ABBREVIATIONS g
HP —  HIGH POINT — Proposed Concrete Surface
BEN CHM ARKS: ACP —  ASPHALT COATED PIPE INV — INVERT : — Existing Concrete
— e AWWA —  AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION LP —  LOW POINT L A Surface/Removal
HARDIN COUNTY GPS MONUMENT NO. 8016 CMLC —  CEMENT MORTAR LINED AND COATED MAX —  MAXIMUM — Proposed Gravel Surfac
2019 SURVEY ELEVATION = 1169.72' CMP —  CORRUGATED METAL PIPE MIN - MINIMUM °
DIP DUCTILE IRON PIPE MUTCD MANUAL OF - Gravel Surface/Removal
- - UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES
HARDIN COUNTY GPS MONUMENT NO. 8024 ELL ~  ELLIPTICAL PC —  POINT OF CURVATURE ~ Proposed ACC Pavement
2019 SURVEY ELEVATION = 1181.52 HDPE —  HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE PCC —  PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE B - Emtmg A;:C
) PPL B . B Lot S avement/Removal
15"@ VCP EXISTING MAIN TILE OUTLET FLOWLINE PVC _ POLMNYLYI;E:_ZRT:EE PR POINT  OF REVERSE CURVATURE — Existing Surface N
2019 SURVEY ELEVATION = 1127.85’ PT = POINT OF TANGENCY i
RCP —  REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE R/W —  RIGHT OF WAY Milling/Overlay
RCEC —  REINFORCED CONCRETE ELLIPTICAL PIPE TOC —  TOP OF CONCRETE — Existing Brick/Stamped
VCP —  VITRIFIED CLAY PIPE TYP —  TYPICAL Concrete
DRAWN BY: ZJS | aeprovin BY: LOG REVISIONS: i ADDRESS:
owre: 07—22-2019 | prov. uo.:w8735.1 C]al;nszggfeﬁﬁa::gs?m:g:i fne 739 PARK AVENUE e S e i
e ‘ ; Mershalltown, lowa 50158 ACKLEY, IOWA 50601 DRAINAGE DISTRICT #9
6735 T CAOONGORNE7338 - EGENbWG: 17272020 ——— v cgacons s com PH 641-847-3273 FAX 641-847-2303 HARDIN COUNTY, IOWA 2019 LEGEND, NOTES AND ABBREVIATIONS 2 oF 4




pETrr— — -
1 r 4
STA: 17+65 < i
g NSTAL CONRETE Ol W TTe+00— 6og—gmg; /Y To ore e T e
: o 21400 W LATERAL 1 TILE
3 ADJUST ALIGNMENT < > am 2248 23700 J/M \ //
0 80 4o 00 25400125470 EXISTING /
: A - 4 LATERAL 3 TILE
L r/w R/ O M G Ve - 2/
STA: 8+88 R/W ’/"JE)OR/ " 41500 | 12400 g 13+00 §lxo0 : /
INSTALL CONCRETE COLLAR 9+00 > : N |
OR FACTORY FITTINGS TO R
ADJUST ALIGNMENT g - g I
R/W R/W R/W
Skl e !
0 200 N N ]
o £ STA: 7+49% /
._—_-:. o INSTALL 12" HICKENBOTTOM INTAKE
b3
Scale: Feet Xy /
NS . EXISTING
Ny N\"N— CONTRACTOR TO REBUILD
&g % EXISTING TERRACE LATERAL_2 TILE \
< /
3 / \
STA: 0+40 o / |
INSTALL CONCRETE s S / /
COLLAR AT SIZE CHANGE e @
by STA: 3+95% / /
STA: 0400 3 INSTALL 12" HICKENBOTTOM INTAKE / 7
SHAPE OUTLET AND INSTALL /
40 TONS OF RIP—RAP % /
NOTES: ~’? =g CONTRACTOR TO REBUILD
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE AND REPLACE go*‘ > EXISTING TERRACE /
EXISTING FENCES AS REQUIRED TO ALLOW FOR o
DEMOLITION AND CONSTRUCTION L STA: 2+54 EXISTING
RAY 7300 INSTALL_CONCRETE COLLAR A LATERAL 4 TILE
2. PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR %00 OR FACTORY FITTINGS TO i e R
SHALL LOCATE THE EXISTING PRIVATE TILE UPSTREAM _j N ADJUST_ALIGNMENT. A 4 EXISTING o ¥ D el e e
FROM THE EXISTING PRIVATE TILE OUTLET FOR THE & s - : T
z PROTECT EXISTING 15°¢ PRIVATE TILE OUTLET PR e < MAIN TILE EXISTING
ENTIRE REROUTE OF THE DIVERSION MAIN TILE. \ R D MANTAN 10 HORIZONYAL SEPARATION *7/\5 _>/ N LATERAL 7 TLE
1155 155
115 s e 1150
11 EXISTING GROUND —~_| |_—""1 | | 145
) O g o S = 3 ol o B
e . e iy ]
J\h‘*‘—_—/‘ .—-—#———-—"_-‘—_:TNg'F;\LL12.7€)LFO 157 Tl 00‘1—} l __/
- : et ! : ' STA: 25+70 |
1 T ] LI "‘0'7_7},_..-——1‘7'\ o1 JUNCTION STRUCTURE RIM ELEV: 1147.90 1140
¢ 88 T e ME @5 = STA: 13+00 EXISTING LATERAL 1 — 778 F.L. ELEV: 1142.56
¢ Fooed LI = "g00 L OF— GRADE BREAK EXISTING LATERAL 2 — 7" F.L ELEV: 1142.56
ny. g & AT e e e FL. ELEV: 1140.15 EXISTING MAIN — 8% F.L ELEV: 1142.56
11354 NS0 E Ty 967 Ve e [ T e (FIELD VERIFY) PROPOSED — 158 F.L. ELEV: 1142.56 4135
N <_~,c\’.'\\3 A0 Lt L (‘*"’ (FIELD VERIFY)
Ze s = STA: 5+00
Ly N GRADE BREAK »
113 G e F.L. ELEV: 1134.00 1130
VAP (FIELD VERIFY)
T TAL
i 7}'{: \\\5‘&
11254 / , s
S\ STA: 0+40
HE S s EXISTING GROUND ~\ /— PROPOSED TILE FLOWLINE .
11201 FL. ELEV: 112421 (FIELD VERIFY) | i ’ - . 1T 1120
CIE NS =¥ =@ 08l <5 -2 @i 0o R © 3 /Y ~3 o o % (D 3N 05 =2 <& 0 g 5 1t N8 old a2 al
S 4 S 44 40 A 1 0 A1 3 23 4 4 1 44 B 4
SOV o o 1 1 I 1 r i 1 1 1 1 ] 1 I - | ] I 1 1 8 DR
0400 1400 2400  3+00  4+00  5+00 6400  7+00  B8+00 9400 10400 11400 12400  13+00 14400 15400  16+00  17+00  18+00  19+00 20400  21+00  22+00  23+00  24+00  25+00 25+70
X 23S | aperoven Br: G REVISIONS: Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc ADDRESSS PROJECT: SHT. NAME:
e L0 o O 1 East M Sweet 739 PARK AVENUE

Marshalltown, lowa 50158
Ph 641-752-6701
www.cgaconsultants.com

ACKLEY, IOWA 50601
PH 641-847-3273 FAX 641-847-2303

DRAINAGE DISTRICT #9
HARDIN COUNTY, IOWA 2019

PLAN AND PROFILE




USE NON—PERFORATED
CORRUGATED P.E.
DRAIN TILE.

TRENCH WALLS

/ FIELD TILE

/ —— FLOW

SLIDE CORRUGATED P.E. TILE
A MINIMUM OF 6" OVER END
OF EXISTING TILE. CONNECT
WITH TYPE 2 CONCRETE
COLLAR OR ENGINEER
APPROVED EQUIVALENT

UNDISTURBED SOIL

CONNECT PRIVATE TILE TO DISTRICT TILE
WITH ADS INSERTATEE OR ENGINEER
APPROVED EQUIVALENT

CONCRETE _COLLAR EXCEPTION

CONNECTIONS TO THE PIPE AT BOTH ENDS MAY BE MADE WITH A
MANUFACTURED POLYETHYLENE INTERNAL SNAP COUPLER INSERTED FULLY INTO
THE PIPE AND WRAPPED WITH GEOTECHNICAL FILTER FABRIC. CONCRETE
COLLARS NOT REQUIRED WITH POSITIVE LOCKED CONNECTION, BUT COMPACTED
CRUSHED ROCK FULLY SURROUNDING THE CONNECTION IS REQUIRED

PRIVATE TILE CONNECTION DETAIL

FOR PRIVATE TILE UP TO 10" DIAMETER

TOP OF SOIL
ENVELOPE

UNDISTURBED

HAND SHAPE TRENCH
FOR P.E. TILE TO INSURE
UNDISTURBED SOIL
SUPPORT LOWER % OF
TILE PERIMETER OR BED
ON CRUSHED STONE FILL
AND THOROUGHLY TAMP
SOIL ENVELOPE

SECTION A-A

CMP QUTLET PIPE

THE END OF THE CMP OUTLET PIPE.

NOTE: THE ENDS OF THE TYNES OF THE RODENT
GUARD SHALL BE AT LEAST 4" UPSTREAM OF

4"MIN
ISOMETRIC VIEW FRONT VIEW
REMOVABLE RODENT GUARD DETAIL
NO SCALE

CONCRETE COLLAR REQUIREMENT

THE OUTER EDGE OF PIPE JOINTS SHALL NOT BE
OPENED GREATER THAN 5/16—INCH. IF
GREATER THAN 5/16—INCH, A TYPE 2 CONCRETE
COLLAR SHALL BE INSTALLED AROUND THE JOINT
AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER

DOUBLE LAYER
EOTECHNICAL
FILTER FABRIC

DOUBLE LAYER

EQTECHNICAL
FILTER FABRIC
) [ o ® ' ) A
\ d —\
|_APPROVED
|| JOINT SEALANT
| |

\ 1 | —\

\ LA L L T L L &

APPROVED JOINT

SECTION SEALANT

END VIEW

HDPE OR NYOPLAST
INTAKE WITH 1"¢ HOLES
FOR FULL LENGTH

EXISTING
GROUND

000

(TYP)

‘NIN €

3" CLEAN
ROCK (TYP)

RO00O0000000000000000
O@

DOCOO0O0O00O0O00000O00O0
0000000000000 0O0000O!

Ve

S3AHYA

AN

N ENGINEERING

FABRIC
(TYP)

- FACTORY TEE MATCHING
SIZE OF MAIN TILE AND
INTAKE AND MATCHING
MATERIAL OF MAIN TILE

HICKENBOTTOM INTAKE DETAIL

PIPE DIAMETER AS
SPECIFIED ON PLANS

1'—-Q” 1"_0"

6"x6” — W2xW2
(8 GA) WIRE MESH
LAP ENDS 6" MIN.

| MIN.

S
ol’ HE \
1

AT
L ENGINEERING
FABRIC
\
{

MODIFIED TYPE PC—-2 CONCRETE

RCP JOINT DETAIL NO SCALE COLLAR CONNECTION DETAIL
NO SCALE NO SCALE
DRAWN BY: ZJS_| arproven BY: LOG REVISIONS: Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc ADDRESS. PROJECT: SHT. NAME:
in Offoo: ; 739 PARK AVENUE
R —— s R eSe T o oera
7351~ DETALS WG, T —_— ol chradt PH 641-847-3273 FAX 641-847-2303 '

4 ofF 4




GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

AND PROJECT FORMS

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
Standard General Conditions 1 thru55
Supplementary Conditions to the General Conditions 1 thru9
Administrative Provisions 1 thru4
Submittals 1 thru4
Construction Facilities & Temporary Controls 1 page

PROJECT FORMS
Form of Agreement 1 thru?7
Bid Bond 1 thru?2
Performance Bond 1 thru3
Payment Bond 1 thru3
Contractor’s Qualification Statement Form 1 thru3
Subcontractor and Major Material Suppliers List Form 1 Page
Transmittal of Shop Drawings, Equipment Data, Material 1 thru?2

Samples or Manufacturer’s Certificates of Compliance

(BOOK 2 OF 2)

CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES OFFICE LOCATIONS
16 East Main Street, PO Box 754 | Marshalltown, IA 50158
1523 S. Bell Avenue, Suite 101 | Ames, IA 50010

Project Office
739 Park Avenue

Ackley, IA. 50601

5106 Nordic Drive | Cedar Falls, IA 50613 )
B 739 Park Avenue | Ackley, IA 50601 Piges B2l

511 Bank Street | Webster City, 1A 50595 Fax: 641-847-2303




This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its
use or modification. This document should be adapted to the particular circumstances of the contemplated
Project and the controlling Laws and Regulations.

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS
OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

Prepared by
ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE
and

Issued and Published Jointly by

ACEC

AmEericaN CoOUNCIL OF ENGINEERING COMPANIES
A sc American Society
of Civil Engineers

AMERICAN COUNCIL OF ENGINEERING COMPANIES

JINTEGRITY.

National Society of
Professional Engineers
Professional Engineers in Private Practice

ASSOCIATED GENERAL CONTRACTORS OF AMERICA

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CIVIL ENGINEERS

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS IN PRIVATE PRACTICE
A Practice Division of the
NATIONAL SOCIETY OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS

Endorsed by

£l

CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS INSTITUTE

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.




These General Conditions have been prepared for use with the Suggested Forms of Agreement Between
Owner and Contractor (EJCDC C-520 or C-525, 2007 Editions). Their provisions are interrelated and a
change in one may necessitate a change in the other. Comments concerning their usage are contained in the
Narrative Guide to the EJCDC Construction Documents (EJCDC C-001, 2007 Edition). For guidance in
the preparation of Supplementary Conditions, see Guide to the Preparation of Supplementary Conditions
(EJCDC C-800, 2007 Edition).

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers
1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794
(703) 684-2882

WWW.NSpPE.org

American Council of Engineering Companies
1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005
(202) 347-7474

WwWWw.acec.org

American Society of Civil Engineers
1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400
(800) 548-2723

WWW.aSCe.org

Associated General Contractors of America
2300 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 400, Arlington, VA 22201-3308
(703) 548-3118

WWw.agc.org

The copyright for this EJCDC document is owned jointly by the four
EJCDC sponsoring organizations and held in trust for their benefit by NSPE.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.



http://www.nspe.org/
http://www.acec.org/
http://www.asce.org/
http://www.agc.org/

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
Article 1 — Definitions and TErMINOIOGY .......ccueueirieiiiiieeirieteese ettt 1
101 DEFINEA TOIMS. ...ttt sttt sttt s et e b e s b e e et et e nesbe e ebessenenseeas 1
1,02 TEIMINOIOQY ....eceiiieiiiitcieit ettt bbb b et b bbbt e e 4
ATItICle 2 — Preliminary IMBEELS .........ovouiiiiiiieeee ettt 5
2.01 Delivery of Bonds and EVidence Of INSUFANCE ..........cccviiirineiinneisieeeseeses e 5
2.02  COPIES OF DOCUMENTS.........ccuiuiieiiiiteitsisie sttt b bbbt b e et 6
2.03 Commencement of Contract Times; NOtiCe t0 ProCeed...........ccoveireeiinieirieesie e 6
2.04  STArtING the WOTK .......cuiiiiie bbbttt 6
2.05 Before Starting CONSIIUCTION ........c.ciiiiieiiiieiiiesie sttt 6
2.06 Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives............c.cccoveinerenne. 6
2.07 Initial Acceptance Of SChEAUIES...........cciii 7
Article 3 — Contract Documents: Intent, AMENdiNg, REUSE .........ccovevreieirieiesesieese e 7
B0 R 101 1=T | USSP 7
3.02  REFErenCe SANAAITS. .....ccoeeeeerieieesieese ettt e seste e sese e e sseseenessenenseeas 7
3.03 Reporting and ReSOIVING DISCIEPANCIES.........ccurueiririeiirieieesieieeseeiee st 8
3.04 Amending and Supplementing Contract DOCUMENTS...........cceeirireireerireeeesiee e 8
3.05 REUSE OF DOCUMENTS .....cueiviieeisiesieieseeesiesiesestesesteseesessesesseseesesseseesessesesseseesessesensessesensessesessensnsenses 9
3.06  EIECLIONIC DALA......cceeireereeiiieiisieeeiesie sttt see e s e sesteseese e esesseenseseenenseseenessenensenens 9
Article 4 — Availability of Lands; Subsurface and Physical Conditions; Hazardous Environmental
Conditions; REFEIENCE POINES. .......ooiiiieiecie ettt s et s e st s st e e st e e s basstessbeesaeeenes 9
4.01  AVAIlADIHTY OF LANGS.......ciiiiiiiicieee ettt 9
4.02 Subsurface and PhySiCal CONAITIONS..........ccouiriiiriiiiirinieireee s 10
4.03 Differing Subsurface or Physical CONAITIONS ...........ccccoeiiriiiiiiiiseeseeese e 10
4.04  UNAErground FACIHIITIES...........coiiiiiiiieieissteesee et 11
4,05  REFEIENCE POINTS.....cuiiiiiiieiciieie ettt ettt e e e e te e e sesaeseete s eseseenensenens 12
4.06 Hazardous Environmental Condition at SIte.........cccevveierieiisirieisereee e 12
Article 5 — BondSs and INSUFANCE.........ccueieirieieeiee ettt ae e se e esesse e eseneenensenen 14
5.01 Performance, Payment, and Other BONGS..........cccovieeieieieseieseseesesee e 14
5.02  Licensed SUretieS and INSUIEIS.......c.ccviueirerieereisesieeseseeesteesseseeesseseesessesessessesesseseesessessnsenens 14
5.03  CertificateS OF INSUFANCE .......cveviieeicieiees ettt nesae e ese e 15
5.04  CoNtractor’s INSUTANCE ......cveiueeieriieiesiieiie ettt b ettt e st et e e e e nbeene e 15
5.05 Owner’s Liability INSUTANCE.......iiiiiiiiieiiiiieie et 16
5.06  PrOPEITY INSUFAINCE.....ccuviiiiiieiitieiesteeie sttt sttt sttt b e b b e be et b et e s et e e neenbeene e 16
5.07 WaIVEr OF RIGNES ...ttt e e s sae e ene e 18
5.08 Receipt and Application of INSUraNCe PrOCEEUS .........cccceveerieererieesiesie e e e e 18

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page i




5.09 Acceptance of Bonds and Insurance; Option t0 REPIACE .........ccveerierinineiirereere e 19
5.10 Partial Utilization, Acknowledgment of Property INSUEr............oeeoiieeinnenneenseeeseees 19
Article 6 — Contractor’s ResponsiDIITIES ..o 19
6.01 Supervision and SUPETNIENTENCE. .........c.eiiieieirieieireei et 19
6.02  Labor; WOIKING HOUIS .....c.oiiiiiiieiseie ettt nne e 19
6.03 Services, Materials, and EQUIPIMENT ..o 20
6.04  Progress SCREAUIE ........coii it 20
6.05 Substitutes and “Or-EqUals” ... 20
6.06 Concerning Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others............coviiiiiineeiee e 22
6.07 Patent Fees and ROYAIIES ..o 24
R0 =T 0 0T SRR 24
6.09  Laws and REGUIALIONS .........cuiiiiiiieieiieierie ettt 24
B.10  TAXES ittt b bbb bbb bR e R R e R R e Rt Rt R e R e bt bt beebeeReebeene e 25
6.11 Use Of Site and Other ATBaS.........ccoiiiiieiiieereee et 25
6.12 RECOII DOCUMENES........cuiiiiiiiieteiisietet sttt bbbttt 26
6.13  Safety and PrOtECLION ........c.ciiieiiieiciie ettt 26
6.14  Safety REPIESENIALIVE.........c.oiieeeiiieeeeeret ettt 27
6.15 Hazard CoOmMMUNICALION PrOGIAMS.........cueiiiiieiirieieisieieises et 27
B.16  EIMEITEINCIES ..ottt ettt bbbttt ettt n s 27
6.17 Shop Drawings and SAMPIES ..........ceiiiiiieee e 27
6.18  CONtINUING TN WOTK ..ot 29
6.19 Contractor’s General Warranty and GUATANtEE .............ceeveereeirierieinienieeseseseseeesresese e 29
6.20  INEMNITICALION ...ttt 29
6.21 Delegation of Professional DESIGN SEIVICES.........cciiiriririiiirireisiee st 30
Article 7 — Other WOrK at the SITE.......c.ooiiieee e 31
7.01 Related WOIK @ SITE ......cviiciiieiceieeeee ettt 31
7.02  COOMAINALION ...ttt e bt bbb bbbt b bbb e et 31
7.03  Legal RelatiONSNIPS ......c.ciiiiiiieieisie ettt 32
Article 8 — OWNEr’s ReSPONSIDIIITICS .....c.vviuiirieiiiiiciisisieesiei et 32
8.01  CommunicationS t0 CONTIACION .........cuivrueirieieirieiee ettt 32
8.02 ReplacemMeNnt OF ENGINEET .........ciiiiiirieieireeieese ettt 32
8.03  FUMISN DA .....c.eiueiiiieiiieiee sttt bbbttt 32
8.04  PAY WHEN DUE.......ouiiiiieic bbbttt bbbttt et 32
8.05 Lands and Easements; REPOItS N TESES........cciurerieerereeesieesreseeeseeseseseeesseseesessesessessesensenens 32
806 INSUIANCE. .......eeeiitieeieit ettt bbbttt b bbb e bbb en et e bt nn e b nas 32
B.07  CRANGE OFUEIS. ..ottt bbbttt bbbt 33
8.08 Inspections, Tests, and APPIrOVAIS .........cciiiiiiiieiiee s 33
8.09 Limitations on OwWner’s ReSPONSIDIIILIES ..........covririiirieiiiirieiseieesie e 33
8.10 Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition ............cccoveirneninniennscseeeseeeseseee s 33
8.11 Evidence of Financial ArrangemeNTS........coceeeererrererereeeseeesseseeessesesessesessessesessessssessesssseses 33
8.12 Compliance With Safety PrOgram.........cccceveireiiieriee e seeese e e s sneeesennns 33
Article 9 — Engineer’s Status During COnStIUCION. ........cveerieerierieerieesesieeseseesesseesessesessessesessesessessesessenes 33
9.01 OWNEI’S REPIESENLALIVE .....c.viviciiiceecieieis ettt seeseste e esesaeneesenes 33

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page ii




.02  VISHTES £0 SIEB .eeeeieeeee e ettt ettt e et e e e et e e e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeaaseeeeeaaneeaesaanneeeesaanneeesaanenassannnnassans 33

0.03  ProjeCt REPIESENIALIVE. ......cueuieeieeiieieiiieet ettt bbb 34
9.04  Authorized Variations IN WOTK ..o 34
9.05 RejJecting DEfECtIVE WOTK........c.ccuiiiiiiieieiieeieieese e 34
9.06 Shop Drawings, Change Orders and Payments............cccoeerreiinneninieenseeese s 34
9.07 Determinations for Unit Price WOTK ...........oooiiiiiiiiieeceee s 35
9.08 Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work..................... 35
9.09 Limitations on Engineer’s Authority and Responsibilities ...........cccvvrrineiiniicincnniscinens 35
9.10 Compliance With SAfety Program ..........cccooeeirieieiiseiseeesis et 36
Article 10 — Changes in the WOIK; CIAIMS ..o 36
10.01 Authorized Changes iN the WOTK ... 36
10.02 Unauthorized Changes in the WOTK...........ccoiiiiiiiicecsees e 36
10.03 EXecution Of Change OFOEIS........cco ittt 36
10.04 NOLITICAION 10 SUMBLY ...ttt 37
10.05 CHAIMS.....oeeieiiietee ettt b e bt e bbbt e bt bt n bt n bt nn s 37
Article 11 — Cost of the Work; Allowances; Unit Price WOIK .........oovivieieiceeeeece ettt 38
11.01 COSt OF the WOTK ...ttt 38
11,02 ATTOWANCES ... .ccveetictiecteeie ettt ettt et e et et e et et e e aaesbeebesbe e b e sbeebesasebeaseesbeesbesbeentesaeenbesrsebesneenes 40
11.03 UNIEPIICE WOTK ..ottt ettt ettt st bt st eeaaesbe e st e sbeenbesbeebesneenseeneenns 40
Article 12 — Change of Contract Price; Change of CONtract TIMES .........cccovvviiiririiineireese e 41
12.01 Change OF CONITACT PIICE ......c.cviveiiiriiecireee ettt 41
12.02 Change OF CONTACT THMES ......cviieiiirieieirieiee ettt 42
0L I 1= YRS SR 42
Article 13 — Tests and Inspections; Correction, Removal or Acceptance of Defective Work....................... 43
13.01 NOLICE OF DETECLS. ......cueieetiiiieieisee ettt bbbttt an s 43
13.02 ACCESS 10 WOTK ...ttt n et n s 43
13.03 TESES AN INSPECLIONS ......ecuiriieiieeieierietee ettt ettt 43
13.04 UNCOVEIING WOTK ...ttt sttt 44
13.05 OWner May StOP the WOTK ..........cciiiiieieese s 44
13.06 Correction or Removal of DefeCtive WOTK ..........ooiiiiiiiiiiiece e 44
13.07 COrTECLION PEITOM ......ceeieiiiiieieise ettt 45
13.08 Acceptance Of DefeCtiVe WOTK...........cooiiiiiiiiisieeeeee s 45
13.09 Owner May Correct DefeCtive WOTK ..o 46
Article 14 — Payments to Contractor and COMPIELION ..o 46
14.01 SCHEAUIE OF VAIUES.......oceiiiece ettt 46
14.02 ProgreSsS PAYMENES .......coueiiiiiieeitiieeisiesieie ettt bbbt n et 47
14.03 Contractor’s Warranty of Title.........coceoiiieiiriiiiiecee e 49
14.04 Substantial COMPIELION............ccviiieiieee et eeresaens 49
14.05 Partial ULHIZALION ......c.coveiiiiiiecee bbbt 50
14.06 FINAL INSPECLION ......veieeiiieieiesieeste ettt ettt ebe st ese st e e e sesae e e sessenensensenennens 50
14.07 FINAL PAYMENL........cuiiiiiieieiieeseiee ettt e e se st e ese st ese s e e eseste e e s e nsenenseneesennens 51
14.08 Final Completion DEIAYEU ...........cceiieieeiieisesee ettt 52

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page iii




T4.09 WWAIVEE OF CLaAIMS ...ttt ettt e e et e e e et e e e e et e e e aeeeeeeaneeaeeaaneeeeesaaneeassaannenasannnes 52

Article 15 — Suspension of Work and TErMINALION ..........ccoeirreirneiinieeseei et 52
15.01 Owner May SUSPENG WOTK..........coiiieiiiieieiieieisi et 52
15.02 Owner May Terminate fOr CAUSE .........cououieiririeiieeireie et 52
15.03 Owner May Terminate FOr CONVENIENCE .........coiiriiieirieieirieieeseeie e 53
15.04 Contractor May Stop WOrk or TEIMINALE. ........c.ccureiiiriieireeieese e 54
ATrtiCle 16 — DISPULE RESOIULION ...ttt 54
16.01 Methods AN PrOCEAUIES .........cciveiiirieieiieieisie ettt 54
ATTICIE 17 — MISCEIIANEOUS ...ttt 55
17.01 GIVING NOTICE ...ttt bbbkttt bttt n bt nn s 55
17.02 ComMPUEALION OF THMES ..ottt 55
17.03 CUMUIALIVE REMEMIES ...ttt 55
17.04 Survival Of ODIIGALIONS .........c.eoiiieiiiieicee ettt 55
17.05 CONIOIING LAW ...ttt 55
17.06 HEAOINGS ...ttt e bttt bttt n s 55

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page iv




ARTICLE 1-DEFINITIONS AND TERMINOLOGY

1.01 Defined Terms

A. Wherever used in the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents and printed with initial capital
letters, the terms listed below will have the meanings indicated which are applicable to both the singular
and plural thereof. In addition to terms specifically defined, terms with initial capital letters in the
Contract Documents include references to identified articles and paragraphs, and the titles of other
documents or forms.

1.

10.

11.

12.

Addenda—Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of Bids which clarify, correct,
or change the Bidding Requirements or the proposed Contract Documents.

Agreement—The written instrument which is evidence of the agreement between Owner and
Contractor covering the Work.

Application for Payment—The form acceptable to Engineer which is to be used by Contractor during
the course of the Work in requesting progress or final payments and which is to be accompanied by
such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.

Asbestos—Any material that contains more than one percent asbestos and is friable or is releasing
ashestos fibers into the air above current action levels established by the United States Occupational
Safety and Health Administration.

Bid—The offer or proposal of a Bidder submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the prices for
the Work to be performed.

Bidder—The individual or entity who submits a Bid directly to Owner.

Bidding Documents—The Bidding Requirements and the proposed Contract Documents (including
all Addenda).

Bidding Requirements—The advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, Bid security
of acceptable form, if any, and the Bid Form with any supplements.

Change Order—A document recommended by Engineer which is signed by Contractor and Owner
and authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Contract Price or
the Contract Times, issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement.

Claim—A demand or assertion by Owner or Contractor seeking an adjustment of Contract Price or
Contract Times, or both, or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. A demand for
money or services by a third party is not a Claim.

Contract—The entire and integrated written agreement between the Owner and Contractor
concerning the Work. The Contract supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements,
whether written or oral.

Contract Documents—Those items so designated in the Agreement. Only printed or hard copies of
the items listed in the Agreement are Contract Documents. Approved Shop Drawings, other
Contractor submittals, and the reports and drawings of subsurface and physical conditions are not
Contract Documents.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 1 of 55




13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

217.

28.

Contract Price—The moneys payable by Owner to Contractor for completion of the Work in
accordance with the Contract Documents as stated in the Agreement (subject to the provisions of
Paragraph 11.03 in the case of Unit Price Work).

Contract Times—The number of days or the dates stated in the Agreement to: (i) achieve Milestones,
if any; (ii) achieve Substantial Completion; and (iii) complete the Work so that it is ready for final
payment as evidenced by Engineer’s written recommendation of final payment.

Contractor—The individual or entity with whom Owner has entered into the Agreement.
Cost of the Work—See Paragraph 11.01 for definition.

Drawings—That part of the Contract Documents prepared or approved by Engineer which
graphically shows the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by Contractor. Shop
Drawings and other Contractor submittals are not Drawings as so defined.

Effective Date of the Agreement—The date indicated in the Agreement on which it becomes effective,
but if no such date is indicated, it means the date on which the Agreement is signed and delivered by
the last of the two parties to sign and deliver.

Engineer—The individual or entity named as such in the Agreement.

Field Order—A written order issued by Engineer which requires minor changes in the Work but
which does not involve a change in the Contract Price or the Contract Times.

General Requirements—Sections of Division 1 of the Specifications.

Hazardous Environmental Condition—The presence at the Site of Asbestos, PCBs, Petroleum,
Hazardous Waste, or Radioactive Material in such quantities or circumstances that may present a
substantial danger to persons or property exposed thereto.

Hazardous Waste—The term Hazardous Waste shall have the meaning provided in Section 1004 of
the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 USC Section 6903) as amended from time to time.

Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations—Any and all applicable laws, rules, regulations,
ordinances, codes, and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities, and courts
having jurisdiction.

Liens—Charges, security interests, or encumbrances upon Project funds, real property, or personal
property.

Milestone—A principal event specified in the Contract Documents relating to an intermediate
completion date or time prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work.

Notice of Award—The written notice by Owner to the Successful Bidder stating that upon timely
compliance by the Successful Bidder with the conditions precedent listed therein, Owner will sign
and deliver the Agreement.

Notice to Proceed—A written notice given by Owner to Contractor fixing the date on which the
Contract Times will commence to run and on which Contractor shall start to perform the Work under
the Contract Documents.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 2 of 55




29.

30.

3L

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

Owner—The individual or entity with whom Contractor has entered into the Agreement and for
whom the Work is to be performed.

PCBs—Polychlorinated biphenyls.

Petroleum—Petroleum, including crude oil or any fraction thereof which is liquid at standard
conditions of temperature and pressure (60 degrees Fahrenheit and 14.7 pounds per square inch
absolute), such as oil, petroleum, fuel oil, oil sludge, oil refuse, gasoline, kerosene, and oil mixed
with other non-Hazardous Waste and crude oils.

Progress Schedule—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, describing the sequence and
duration of the activities comprising the Contractor’s plan to accomplish the Work within the
Contract Times.

Project—The total construction of which the Work to be performed under the Contract Documents
may be the whole, or a part.

Project Manual—The bound documentary information prepared for bidding and constructing the
Work. A listing of the contents of the Project Manual, which may be bound in one or more volumes,
is contained in the table(s) of contents.

Radioactive Material—Source, special nuclear, or byproduct material as defined by the Atomic
Energy Act of 1954 (42 USC Section 2011 et seq.) as amended from time to time.

Resident Project Representative—The authorized representative of Engineer who may be assigned to
the Site or any part thereof.

Samples—Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are representative of
some portion of the Work and which establish the standards by which such portion of the Work will
be judged.

Schedule of Submittals—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, of required submittals
and the time requirements to support scheduled performance of related construction activities.

Schedule of Values—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, allocating portions of the
Contract Price to various portions of the Work and used as the basis for reviewing Contractor’s
Applications for Payment.

Shop Drawings—AIl drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or information
which are specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor and submitted by Contractor to
illustrate some portion of the Work.

Site—Lands or areas indicated in the Contract Documents as being furnished by Owner upon which
the Work is to be performed, including rights-of-way and easements for access thereto, and such
other lands furnished by Owner which are designated for the use of Contractor.

Specifications—That part of the Contract Documents consisting of written requirements for materials,
equipment, systems, standards and workmanship as applied to the Work, and certain administrative
requirements and procedural matters applicable thereto.

Subcontractor—An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor or with any other
Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work at the Site.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 3 of 55




44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

ol.

Substantial Completion—The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to
the point where, in the opinion of Engineer, the Work (or a specified part thereof) is sufficiently
complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Work (or a specified part thereof)
can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. The terms “substantially complete” and
“substantially completed” as applied to all or part of the Work refer to Substantial Completion
thereof.

Successful Bidder—The Bidder submitting a responsive Bid to whom Owner makes an award.

Supplementary Conditions—That part of the Contract Documents which amends or supplements
these General Conditions.

Supplier—A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or vendor having a direct
contract with Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to be
incorporated in the Work by Contractor or Subcontractor.

Underground Facilities—All underground pipelines, conduits, ducts, cables, wires, manholes, vaults,
tanks, tunnels, or other such facilities or attachments, and any encasements containing such facilities,
including those that convey electricity, gases, steam, liquid petroleum products, telephone or other
communications, cable television, water, wastewater, storm water, other liquids or chemicals, or
traffic or other control systems.

Unit Price Work—Work to be paid for on the basis of unit prices.

Work—The entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be
provided under the Contract Documents. Work includes and is the result of performing or providing
all labor, services, and documentation necessary to produce such construction, and furnishing,
installing, and incorporating all materials and equipment into such construction, all as required by the
Contract Documents.

Work Change Directive—A written statement to Contractor issued on or after the Effective Date of
the Agreement and signed by Owner and recommended by Engineer ordering an addition, deletion, or
revision in the Work, or responding to differing or unforeseen subsurface or physical conditions
under which the Work is to be performed or to emergencies. A Work Change Directive will not
change the Contract Price or the Contract Times but is evidence that the parties expect that the
change ordered or documented by a Work Change Directive will be incorporated in a subsequently
issued Change Order following negotiations by the parties as to its effect, if any, on the Contract
Price or Contract Times.

1.02  Terminology

A. The words and terms discussed in Paragraph 1.02.B through F are not defined but, when used in the
Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents, have the indicated meaning.

B. Intent of Certain Terms or Adjectives:

1.

The Contract Documents include the terms “as allowed,” “as approved,” “as ordered,” “as directed”
or terms of like effect or import to authorize an exercise of professional judgment by Engineer. In
addition, the adjectives “reasonable,” “suitable,” “acceptable,” “proper,” “satisfactory,” or adjectives
of like effect or import are used to describe an action or determination of Engineer as to the Work. It
is intended that such exercise of professional judgment, action, or determination will be solely to
evaluate, in general, the Work for compliance with the information in the Contract Documents and

99 ¢¢

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 4 of 55




with the design concept of the Project as a functioning whole as shown or indicated in the Contract
Documents (unless there is a specific statement indicating otherwise). The use of any such term or
adjective is not intended to and shall not be effective to assign to Engineer any duty or authority to
supervise or direct the performance of the Work, or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility
contrary to the provisions of Paragraph 9.09 or any other provision of the Contract Documents.

C. Day:
1. The word “day” means a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next midnight.
D. Defective:

1. The word “defective,” when modifying the word “Work,” refers to Work that is unsatisfactory,
faulty, or deficient in that it:

a. does not conform to the Contract Documents; or

b. does not meet the requirements of any applicable inspection, reference standard, test, or approval
referred to in the Contract Documents; or

c. has been damaged prior to Engineer’s recommendation of final payment (unless responsibility
for the protection thereof has been assumed by Owner at Substantial Completion in accordance
with Paragraph 14.04 or 14.05).

E. Furnish, Install, Perform, Provide:

1. The word “furnish,” when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to
supply and deliver said services, materials, or equipment to the Site (or some other specified location)
ready for use or installation and in usable or operable condition.

2. The word “install,” when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to put
into use or place in final position said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for
intended use.

3. The words “perform” or “provide,” when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment,
shall mean to furnish and install said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for
intended use.

4. When “furnish,” “install,” “perform,” or “provide” is not used in connection with services, materials,
or equipment in a context clearly requiring an obligation of Contractor, “provide” is implied.

F. Unless stated otherwise in the Contract Documents, words or phrases that have a well-known technical or
construction industry or trade meaning are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such
recognized meaning.

ARTICLE 2 - PRELIMINARY MATTERS

2.01  Delivery of Bonds and Evidence of Insurance

A. When Contractor delivers the executed counterparts of the Agreement to Owner, Contractor shall also
deliver to Owner such bonds as Contractor may be required to furnish.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 5 of 55




2.02

2.03

2.04

2.05

2.06

Evidence of Insurance: Before any Work at the Site is started, Contractor and Owner shall each deliver
to the other, with copies to each additional insured identified in the Supplementary Conditions,
certificates of insurance (and other evidence of insurance which either of them or any additional insured
may reasonably request) which Contractor and Owner respectively are required to purchase and maintain
in accordance with Article 5.

Copies of Documents

A

Owner shall furnish to Contractor up to ten printed or hard copies of the Drawings and Project Manual.
Additional copies will be furnished upon request at the cost of reproduction.

Commencement of Contract Times; Notice to Proceed

A

The Contract Times will commence to run on the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Agreement
or, if a Notice to Proceed is given, on the day indicated in the Notice to Proceed. A Notice to Proceed
may be given at any time within 30 days after the Effective Date of the Agreement. In no event will the
Contract Times commence to run later than the sixtieth day after the day of Bid opening or the thirtieth
day after the Effective Date of the Agreement, whichever date is earlier.

Starting the Work

A

Contractor shall start to perform the Work on the date when the Contract Times commence to run. No
Work shall be done at the Site prior to the date on which the Contract Times commence to run.

Before Starting Construction

A

Preliminary Schedules: Within 10 days after the Effective Date of the Agreement (unless otherwise
specified in the General Requirements), Contractor shall submit to Engineer for timely review:

1. a preliminary Progress Schedule indicating the times (numbers of days or dates) for starting and
completing the various stages of the Work, including any Milestones specified in the Contract
Documents;

2. apreliminary Schedule of Submittals; and

3. a preliminary Schedule of Values for all of the Work which includes quantities and prices of items
which when added together equal the Contract Price and subdivides the Work into component parts
in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during performance of the Work. Such
prices will include an appropriate amount of overhead and profit applicable to each item of Work.

Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives

A.

Before any Work at the Site is started, a conference attended by Owner, Contractor, Engineer, and others
as appropriate will be held to establish a working understanding among the parties as to the Work and to
discuss the schedules referred to in Paragraph 2.05.A, procedures for handling Shop Drawings and other
submittals, processing Applications for Payment, and maintaining required records.

At this conference Owner and Contractor each shall designate, in writing, a specific individual to act as
its authorized representative with respect to the services and responsibilities under the Contract. Such
individuals shall have the authority to transmit instructions, receive information, render decisions relative
to the Contract, and otherwise act on behalf of each respective party.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 6 of 55




2.07

Initial Acceptance of Schedules

A. At least 10 days before submission of the first Application for Payment a conference attended by

Contractor, Engineer, and others as appropriate will be held to review for acceptability to Engineer as
provided below the schedules submitted in accordance with Paragraph 2.05.A. Contractor shall have an
additional 10 days to make corrections and adjustments and to complete and resubmit the schedules. No
progress payment shall be made to Contractor until acceptable schedules are submitted to Engineer.

1. The Progress Schedule will be acceptable to Engineer if it provides an orderly progression of the
Work to completion within the Contract Times. Such acceptance will not impose on Engineer
responsibility for the Progress Schedule, for sequencing, scheduling, or progress of the Work, nor
interfere with or relieve Contractor from Contractor’s full responsibility therefor.

2. Contractor’s Schedule of Submittals will be acceptable to Engineer if it provides a workable
arrangement for reviewing and processing the required submittals.

3. Contractor’s Schedule of Values will be acceptable to Engineer as to form and substance if it
provides a reasonable allocation of the Contract Price to component parts of the Work.

ARTICLE 3—- CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: INTENT, AMENDING, REUSE

3.01

3.02

Intent

A

B.

The Contract Documents are complementary; what is required by one is as binding as if required by all.

It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete project (or part thereof) to
be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. Any labor, documentation, services,
materials, or equipment that reasonably may be inferred from the Contract Documents or from prevailing
custom or trade usage as being required to produce the indicated result will be provided whether or not
specifically called for, at no additional cost to Owner.

Clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents shall be issued by Engineer as provided in
Article 9.

Reference Standards

A.

Standards, Specifications, Codes, Laws, and Regulations

1. Reference to standards, specifications, manuals, or codes of any technical society, organization, or
association, or to Laws or Regulations, whether such reference be specific or by implication, shall
mean the standard, specification, manual, code, or Laws or Regulations in effect at the time of
opening of Bids (or on the Effective Date of the Agreement if there were no Bids), except as may be
otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents.

2. No provision of any such standard, specification, manual, or code, or any instruction of a Supplier,
shall be effective to change the duties or responsibilities of Owner, Contractor, or Engineer, or any of
their subcontractors, consultants, agents, or employees, from those set forth in the Contract
Documents. No such provision or instruction shall be effective to assign to Owner, Engineer, or any
of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, any
duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work or any duty or authority to
undertake responsibility inconsistent with the provisions of the Contract Documents.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 7 of 55




3.03

3.04

Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies
A. Reporting Discrepancies:

1. Contractor’s Review of Contract Documents Before Starting Work: Before undertaking each part of

the Work, Contractor shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents and check and
verify pertinent figures therein and all applicable field measurements. Contractor shall promptly
report in writing to Engineer any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy which Contractor
discovers, or has actual knowledge of, and shall obtain a written interpretation or clarification from
Engineer before proceeding with any Work affected thereby.

Contractor’s Review of Contract Documents During Performance of Work. If, during the
performance of the Work, Contractor discovers any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy within
the Contract Documents, or between the Contract Documents and (a) any applicable Law or
Regulation, (b) any standard, specification, manual, or code, or (c) any instruction of any Supplier,
then Contractor shall promptly report it to Engineer in writing. Contractor shall not proceed with the
Work affected thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 6.16.A) until an amendment
or supplement to the Contract Documents has been issued by one of the methods indicated in
Paragraph 3.04.

Contractor shall not be liable to Owner or Engineer for failure to report any conflict, error, ambiguity,
or discrepancy in the Contract Documents unless Contractor had actual knowledge thereof.

B. Resolving Discrepancies:

1. Except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents, the provisions of the

Contract Documents shall take precedence in resolving any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy
between the provisions of the Contract Documents and:

a. the provisions of any standard, specification, manual, or code, or the instruction of any Supplier
(whether or not specifically incorporated by reference in the Contract Documents); or

b. the provisions of any Laws or Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work (unless
such an interpretation of the provisions of the Contract Documents would result in violation of
such Law or Regulation).

Amending and Supplementing Contract Documents

A. The Contract Documents may be amended to provide for additions, deletions, and revisions in the Work
or to modify the terms and conditions thereof by either a Change Order or a Work Change Directive.

B. The requirements of the Contract Documents may be supplemented, and minor variations and deviations
in the Work may be authorized, by one or more of the following ways:

1. AField Order;

2. Engineer’s approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample (subject to the provisions of Paragraph 6.17.D.3);

or

3. Engineer’s written interpretation or clarification.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 8 of 55




3.05

3.06

Reuse of Documents

A

B.

Contractor and any Subcontractor or Supplier shall not:

1. have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Drawings, Specifications, or other
documents (or copies of any thereof) prepared by or bearing the seal of Engineer or its consultants,
including electronic media editions; or

2. reuse any such Drawings, Specifications, other documents, or copies thereof on extensions of the
Project or any other project without written consent of Owner and Engineer and specific written
verification or adaptation by Engineer.

The prohibitions of this Paragraph 3.05 will survive final payment, or termination of the Contract.
Nothing herein shall preclude Contractor from retaining copies of the Contract Documents for record
purposes.

Electronic Data

A

Unless otherwise stated in the Supplementary Conditions, the data furnished by Owner or Engineer to
Contractor, or by Contractor to Owner or Engineer, that may be relied upon are limited to the printed
copies (also known as hard copies). Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, or other types
are furnished only for the convenience of the receiving party. Any conclusion or information obtained or
derived from such electronic files will be at the user’s sole risk. If there is a discrepancy between the
electronic files and the hard copies, the hard copies govern.

Because data stored in electronic media format can deteriorate or be modified inadvertently or otherwise
without authorization of the data’s creator, the party receiving electronic files agrees that it will perform
acceptance tests or procedures within 60 days, after which the receiving party shall be deemed to have
accepted the data thus transferred. Any errors detected within the 60-day acceptance period will be
corrected by the transferring party.

When transferring documents in electronic media format, the transferring party makes no representations
as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of documents resulting from the use of software
application packages, operating systems, or computer hardware differing from those used by the data’s
creator.

ARTICLE 4 - AVAILABILITY OF LANDS; SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS;
HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS; REFERENCE POINTS

4.01

Availability of Lands

A.

Owner shall furnish the Site. Owner shall notify Contractor of any encumbrances or restrictions not of
general application but specifically related to use of the Site with which Contractor must comply in
performing the Work. Owner will obtain in a timely manner and pay for easements for permanent
structures or permanent changes in existing facilities. If Contractor and Owner are unable to agree on
entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract
Times, or both, as a result of any delay in Owner’s furnishing the Site or a part thereof, Contractor may
make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

Upon reasonable written request, Owner shall furnish Contractor with a current statement of record legal
title and legal description of the lands upon which the Work is to be performed and Owner’s interest

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 9 of 55




4.02

4.03

therein as necessary for giving notice of or filing a mechanic’s or construction lien against such lands in
accordance with applicable Laws and Regulations.

C. Contractor shall provide for all additional lands and access thereto that may be required for temporary
construction facilities or storage of materials and equipment.

Subsurface and Physical Conditions
A. Reports and Drawings: The Supplementary Conditions identify:

1. those reports known to Owner of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to
the Site; and

2. those drawings known to Owner of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface
structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities).

B. Limited Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data Authorized: Contractor may rely upon the accuracy
of the “technical data” contained in such reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not
Contract Documents. Such “technical data” is identified in the Supplementary Conditions. Except for
such reliance on such “technical data,” Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or
Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or
subcontractors with respect to:

1. the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor’s purposes, including, but not limited
to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be
employed by Contractor, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto; or

2. other data, interpretations, opinions, and information contained in such reports or shown or indicated
in such drawings; or

3. any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any “technical data” or any such other
data, interpretations, opinions, or information.

Differing Subsurface or Physical Conditions

A. Notice: If Contractor believes that any subsurface or physical condition that is uncovered or revealed
either:

1. is of such a nature as to establish that any “technical data” on which Contractor is entitled to rely as
provided in Paragraph 4.02 is materially inaccurate; or

2. is of such a nature as to require a change in the Contract Documents; or
3. differs materially from that shown or indicated in the Contract Documents; or

4. is of an unusual nature, and differs materially from conditions ordinarily encountered and generally
recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in the Contract Documents;

then Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing the subsurface
or physical conditions or performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency as
required by Paragraph 6.16.A), notify Owner and Engineer in writing about such condition. Contractor

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 10 of 55




shall not further disturb such condition or perform any Work in connection therewith (except as
aforesaid) until receipt of written order to do so.

B. Engineer’s Review. After receipt of written notice as required by Paragraph 4.03.A, Engineer will
promptly review the pertinent condition, determine the necessity of Owner’s obtaining additional
exploration or tests with respect thereto, and advise Owner in writing (with a copy to Contractor) of
Engineer’s findings and conclusions.

C. Possible Price and Times Adjustments:

1. The Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both, will be equitably adjusted to the extent that the
existence of such differing subsurface or physical condition causes an increase or decrease in
Contractor’s cost of, or time required for, performance of the Work; subject, however, to the
following:

a. such condition must meet any one or more of the categories described in Paragraph 4.03.A; and

b. with respect to Work that is paid for on a unit price basis, any adjustment in Contract Price will
be subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 9.07 and 11.03.

2. Contractor shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times if:

a. Contractor knew of the existence of such conditions at the time Contractor made a final
commitment to Owner with respect to Contract Price and Contract Times by the submission of a
Bid or becoming bound under a negotiated contract; or

b. the existence of such condition could reasonably have been discovered or revealed as a result of
any examination, investigation, exploration, test, or study of the Site and contiguous areas
required by the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents to be conducted by or for
Contractor prior to Contractor’s making such final commitment; or

c. Contractor failed to give the written notice as required by Paragraph 4.03.A.

3. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of
any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, a Claim may be made therefor as
provided in Paragraph 10.05. However, neither Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors,
members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors shall be liable to Contractor for
any claims, costs, losses, or damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers,
architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution
costs) sustained by Contractor on or in connection with any other project or anticipated project.

4.04  Underground Facilities

A. Shown or Indicated: The information and data shown or indicated in the Contract Documents with
respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the Site is based on information and data
furnished to Owner or Engineer by the owners of such Underground Facilities, including Owner, or by
others. Unless it is otherwise expressly provided in the Supplementary Conditions:

1. Owner and Engineer shall not be responsible for the accuracy or completeness of any such
information or data provided by others; and

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 11 of 55




4.05

4.06

2.

the cost of all of the following will be included in the Contract Price, and Contractor shall have full
responsibility for:

a. reviewing and checking all such information and data;
b. locating all Underground Facilities shown or indicated in the Contract Documents;

c. coordination of the Work with the owners of such Underground Facilities, including Owner,
during construction; and

d. the safety and protection of all such Underground Facilities and repairing any damage thereto
resulting from the Work.

B. Not Shown or Indicated:

1.

If an Underground Facility is uncovered or revealed at or contiguous to the Site which was not shown
or indicated, or not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy in the Contract Documents,
Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing conditions
affected thereby or performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency as
required by Paragraph 6.16.A), identify the owner of such Underground Facility and give written
notice to that owner and to Owner and Engineer. Engineer will promptly review the Underground
Facility and determine the extent, if any, to which a change is required in the Contract Documents to
reflect and document the consequences of the existence or location of the Underground Facility.
During such time, Contractor shall be responsible for the safety and protection of such Underground
Facility.

If Engineer concludes that a change in the Contract Documents is required, a Work Change Directive
or a Change Order will be issued to reflect and document such consequences. An equitable
adjustment shall be made in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, to the extent that they are
attributable to the existence or location of any Underground Facility that was not shown or indicated
or not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy in the Contract Documents and that Contractor
did not know of and could not reasonably have been expected to be aware of or to have anticipated. If
Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any
such adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, Owner or Contractor may make a Claim
therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

Reference Points

A.

Owner shall provide engineering surveys to establish reference points for construction which in

Engineer’s judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to proceed with the Work. Contractor shall be

responsible for laying out the Work, shall protect and preserve the established reference points and
property monuments, and shall make no changes or relocations without the prior written approval of
Owner. Contractor shall report to Engineer whenever any reference point or property monument is lost or
destroyed or requires relocation because of necessary changes in grades or locations, and shall be
responsible for the accurate replacement or relocation of such reference points or property monuments by
professionally qualified personnel.

Hazardous Environmental Condition at Site

A. Reports and Drawings: The Supplementary Conditions identify those reports and drawings known to
Owner relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions that have been identified at the Site.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 12 of 55




. Limited Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data Authorized: Contractor may rely upon the accuracy
of the “technical data” contained in such reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not
Contract Documents. Such “technical data” is identified in the Supplementary Conditions. Except for
such reliance on such “technical data,” Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or
Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or
subcontractors with respect to:

1. the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor’s purposes, including, but not limited
to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of construction to be
employed by Contractor and safety precautions and programs incident thereto; or

2. other data, interpretations, opinions and information contained in such reports or shown or indicated
in such drawings; or

3. any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any “technical data” or any such other
data, interpretations, opinions or information.

. Contractor shall not be responsible for any Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered or revealed at
the Site which was not shown or indicated in Drawings or Specifications or identified in the Contract
Documents to be within the scope of the Work. Contractor shall be responsible for a Hazardous
Environmental Condition created with any materials brought to the Site by Contractor, Subcontractors,
Suppliers, or anyone else for whom Contractor is responsible.

. If Contractor encounters a Hazardous Environmental Condition or if Contractor or anyone for whom
Contractor is responsible creates a Hazardous Environmental Condition, Contractor shall immediately:
(i) secure or otherwise isolate such condition; (ii) stop all Work in connection with such condition and in
any area affected thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 6.16.A); and (iii) notify
Owner and Engineer (and promptly thereafter confirm such notice in writing). Owner shall promptly
consult with Engineer concerning the necessity for Owner to retain a qualified expert to evaluate such
condition or take corrective action, if any. Promptly after consulting with Engineer, Owner shall take
such actions as are necessary to permit Owner to timely obtain required permits and provide Contractor
the written notice required by Paragraph 4.06.E.

. Contractor shall not be required to resume Work in connection with such condition or in any affected area
until after Owner has obtained any required permits related thereto and delivered written notice to
Contractor: (i) specifying that such condition and any affected area is or has been rendered safe for the
resumption of Work; or (ii) specifying any special conditions under which such Work may be resumed
safely. If Owner and Contractor cannot agree as to entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of
any adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, as a result of such Work stoppage or such
special conditions under which Work is agreed to be resumed by Contractor, either party may make a
Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

If after receipt of such written notice Contractor does not agree to resume such Work based on a
reasonable belief it is unsafe, or does not agree to resume such Work under such special conditions, then
Owner may order the portion of the Work that is in the area affected by such condition to be deleted from
the Work. If Owner and Contractor cannot agree as to entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of
an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times as a result of deleting such portion of the Work, then
either party may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. Owner may have such deleted
portion of the Work performed by Owner’s own forces or others in accordance with Article 7.

. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless
Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees,

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 13 of 55




agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses,
and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and
other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating
to a Hazardous Environmental Condition, provided that such Hazardous Environmental Condition: (i)
was not shown or indicated in the Drawings or Specifications or identified in the Contract Documents to
be included within the scope of the Work, and (ii) was not created by Contractor or by anyone for whom
Contractor is responsible. Nothing in this Paragraph 4.06.G shall obligate Owner to indemnify any
individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual’s or entity’s own negligence.

To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless
Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and
subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including
but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to a Hazardous
Environmental Condition created by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible.
Nothing in this Paragraph 4.06.H shall obligate Contractor to indemnify any individual or entity from and
against the consequences of that individual’s or entity’s own negligence.

The provisions of Paragraphs 4.02, 4.03, and 4.04 do not apply to a Hazardous Environmental Condition
uncovered or revealed at the Site.

ARTICLE 5-BONDS AND INSURANCE

5.01

5.02

Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds

A

Contractor shall furnish performance and payment bonds, each in an amount at least equal to the Contract
Price as security for the faithful performance and payment of all of Contractor’s obligations under the
Contract Documents. These bonds shall remain in effect until one year after the date when final payment
becomes due or until completion of the correction period specified in Paragraph 13.07, whichever is later,
except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations or by the Contract Documents. Contractor shall
also furnish such other bonds as are required by the Contract Documents.

All bonds shall be in the form prescribed by the Contract Documents except as provided otherwise by
Laws or Regulations, and shall be executed by such sureties as are named in the list of “Companies
Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring
Companies” as published in Circular 570 (amended) by the Financial Management Service, Surety Bond
Branch, U.S. Department of the Treasury. All bonds signed by an agent or attorney-in-fact must be
accompanied by a certified copy of that individual’s authority to bind the surety. The evidence of
authority shall show that it is effective on the date the agent or attorney-in-fact signed each bond.

If the surety on any bond furnished by Contractor is declared bankrupt or becomes insolvent or its right to
do business is terminated in any state where any part of the Project is located or it ceases to meet the
requirements of Paragraph 5.01.B, Contractor shall promptly notify Owner and Engineer and shall, within
20 days after the event giving rise to such notification, provide another bond and surety, both of which
shall comply with the requirements of Paragraphs 5.01.B and 5.02.

Licensed Sureties and Insurers

A.

All bonds and insurance required by the Contract Documents to be purchased and maintained by Owner
or Contractor shall be obtained from surety or insurance companies that are duly licensed or authorized in
the jurisdiction in which the Project is located to issue bonds or insurance policies for the limits and

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 14 of 55




5.03

5.04

coverages so required. Such surety and insurance companies shall also meet such additional requirements
and qualifications as may be provided in the Supplementary Conditions.

Certificates of Insurance

A

Contractor shall deliver to Owner, with copies to each additional insured and loss payee identified in the
Supplementary Conditions, certificates of insurance (and other evidence of insurance requested by Owner
or any other additional insured) which Contractor is required to purchase and maintain.

Owner shall deliver to Contractor, with copies to each additional insured and loss payee identified in the
Supplementary Conditions, certificates of insurance (and other evidence of insurance requested by
Contractor or any other additional insured) which Owner is required to purchase and maintain.

Failure of Owner to demand such certificates or other evidence of Contractor's full compliance with these
insurance requirements or failure of Owner to identify a deficiency in compliance from the evidence
provided shall not be construed as a waiver of Contractor’s obligation to maintain such insurance.

Owner does not represent that insurance coverage and limits established in this Contract necessarily will
be adequate to protect Contractor.

The insurance and insurance limits required herein shall not be deemed as a limitation on Contractor’s
liability under the indemnities granted to Owner in the Contract Documents.

Contractor’s Insurance

A

Contractor shall purchase and maintain such insurance as is appropriate for the Work being performed
and as will provide protection from claims set forth below which may arise out of or result from
Contractor’s performance of the Work and Contractor’s other obligations under the Contract Documents,
whether it is to be performed by Contractor, any Subcontractor or Supplier, or by anyone directly or
indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or by anyone for whose acts any of them
may be liable:

1. claims under workers’ compensation, disability benefits, and other similar employee benefit acts;

2. claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of
Contractor’s employees;

3. claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than
Contractor’s employees;

4. claims for damages insured by reasonably available personal injury liability coverage which are
sustained:

a. by any person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to the employment of such
person by Contractor, or

b. by any other person for any other reason;

5. claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or destruction of tangible
property wherever located, including loss of use resulting therefrom; and

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 15 of 55




5.05

5.06

A.

6.

claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage arising out of
the ownership, maintenance or use of any motor vehicle.

B. The policies of insurance required by this Paragraph 5.04 shall:

1.

with respect to insurance required by Paragraphs 5.04.A.3 through 5.04.A.6 inclusive, be written on
an occurrence basis, include as additional insureds (subject to any customary exclusion regarding
professional liability) Owner and Engineer, and any other individuals or entities identified in the
Supplementary Conditions, all of whom shall be listed as additional insureds, and include coverage
for the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and
subcontractors of each and any of all such additional insureds, and the insurance afforded to these
additional insureds shall provide primary coverage for all claims covered thereby;

include at least the specific coverages and be written for not less than the limits of liability provided
in the Supplementary Conditions or required by Laws or Regulations, whichever is greater;

include contractual liability insurance covering Contractor’s indemnity obligations under Paragraphs
6.11 and 6.20;

contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled, materially
changed or renewal refused until at least 30 days prior written notice has been given to Owner and
Contractor and to each other additional insured identified in the Supplementary Conditions to whom
a certificate of insurance has been issued (and the certificates of insurance furnished by the
Contractor pursuant to Paragraph 5.03 will so provide);

remain in effect at least until final payment and at all times thereafter when Contractor may be
correcting, removing, or replacing defective Work in accordance with Paragraph 13.07; and

include completed operations coverage:

a. Such insurance shall remain in effect for two years after final payment.

b. Contractor shall furnish Owner and each other additional insured identified in the Supplementary
Conditions, to whom a certificate of insurance has been issued, evidence satisfactory to Owner

and any such additional insured of continuation of such insurance at final payment and one year
thereafter.

Owner’s Liability Insurance

In addition to the insurance required to be provided by Contractor under Paragraph 5.04, Owner, at

Owner’s option, may purchase and maintain at Owner’s expense Owner’s own liability insurance as will
protect Owner against claims which may arise from operations under the Contract Documents.

Property Insurance

A. Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Owner shall purchase and maintain property

insurance upon the Work at the Site in the amount of the full replacement cost thereof (subject to such
deductible amounts as may be provided in the Supplementary Conditions or required by Laws and
Regulations). This insurance shall:

1.

include the interests of Owner, Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and any other individuals
or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions, and the officers, directors, members, partners,

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 16 of 55




employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, each of whom is deemed
to have an insurable interest and shall be listed as a loss payee;

2. be written on a Builder’s Risk “all-risk” policy form that shall at least include insurance for physical
loss or damage to the Work, temporary buildings, falsework, and materials and equipment in transit,
and shall insure against at least the following perils or causes of loss: fire, lightning, extended
coverage, theft, vandalism and malicious mischief, earthquake, collapse, debris removal, demolition
occasioned by enforcement of Laws and Regulations, water damage (other than that caused by flood),
and such other perils or causes of loss as may be specifically required by the Supplementary
Conditions.

3. include expenses incurred in the repair or replacement of any insured property (including but not
limited to fees and charges of engineers and architects);

4. cover materials and equipment stored at the Site or at another location that was agreed to in writing
by Owner prior to being incorporated in the Work, provided that such materials and equipment have
been included in an Application for Payment recommended by Engineer;

5. allow for partial utilization of the Work by Owner;
6. include testing and startup; and

7. be maintained in effect until final payment is made unless otherwise agreed to in writing by Owner,
Contractor, and Engineer with 30 days written notice to each other loss payee to whom a certificate
of insurance has been issued.

. Owner shall purchase and maintain such equipment breakdown insurance or additional property
insurance as may be required by the Supplementary Conditions or Laws and Regulations which will
include the interests of Owner, Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and any other individuals or
entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions, and the officers, directors, members, partners,
employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them, each of whom is deemed to
have an insurable interest and shall be listed as a loss payee.

. All the policies of insurance (and the certificates or other evidence thereof) required to be purchased and
maintained in accordance with this Paragraph 5.06 will contain a provision or endorsement that the
coverage afforded will not be canceled or materially changed or renewal refused until at least 30 days
prior written notice has been given to Owner and Contractor and to each other loss payee to whom a
certificate of insurance has been issued and will contain waiver provisions in accordance with Paragraph
5.07.

. Owner shall not be responsible for purchasing and maintaining any property insurance specified in this
Paragraph 5.06 to protect the interests of Contractor, Subcontractors, or others in the Work to the extent
of any deductible amounts that are identified in the Supplementary Conditions. The risk of loss within
such identified deductible amount will be borne by Contractor, Subcontractors, or others suffering any
such loss, and if any of them wishes property insurance coverage within the limits of such amounts, each
may purchase and maintain it at the purchaser’s own expense.

If Contractor requests in writing that other special insurance be included in the property insurance
policies provided under this Paragraph 5.06, Owner shall, if possible, include such insurance, and the cost
thereof will be charged to Contractor by appropriate Change Order. Prior to commencement of the Work
at the Site, Owner shall in writing advise Contractor whether or not such other insurance has been
procured by Owner.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 17 of 55




5.07

5.08

Waiver of Rights

A

C.

Owner and Contractor intend that all policies purchased in accordance with Paragraph 5.06 will protect
Owner, Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and all other individuals or entities identified in the
Supplementary Conditions as loss payees (and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees,
agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them) in such policies and will provide primary
coverage for all losses and damages caused by the perils or causes of loss covered thereby. All such
policies shall contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the
insurers will have no rights of recovery against any of the insureds or loss payees thereunder. Owner and
Contractor waive all rights against each other and their respective officers, directors, members, partners,
employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them for all losses and damages
caused by, arising out of or resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by such policies and
any other property insurance applicable to the Work; and, in addition, waive all such rights against
Subcontractors and Engineer, and all other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary
Conditions as loss payees (and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants,
and subcontractors of each and any of them) under such policies for losses and damages so caused. None
of the above waivers shall extend to the rights that any party making such waiver may have to the
proceeds of insurance held by Owner as trustee or otherwise payable under any policy so issued.

Owner waives all rights against Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the officers, directors,
members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them for:

1. loss due to business interruption, loss of use, or other consequential loss extending beyond direct
physical loss or damage to Owner’s property or the Work caused by, arising out of, or resulting from
fire or other perils whether or not insured by Owner; and

2. loss or damage to the completed Project or part thereof caused by, arising out of, or resulting from
fire or other insured peril or cause of loss covered by any property insurance maintained on the
completed Project or part thereof by Owner during partial utilization pursuant to Paragraph 14.05,
after Substantial Completion pursuant to Paragraph 14.04, or after final payment pursuant to
Paragraph 14.07.

Any insurance policy maintained by Owner covering any loss, damage or consequential loss referred to in
Paragraph 5.07.B shall contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any such loss,
damage, or consequential loss, the insurers will have no rights of recovery against Contractor,
Subcontractors, or Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents,
consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them.

Receipt and Application of Insurance Proceeds

A.

Any insured loss under the policies of insurance required by Paragraph 5.06 will be adjusted with Owner
and made payable to Owner as fiduciary for the loss payees, as their interests may appear, subject to the
requirements of any applicable mortgage clause and of Paragraph 5.08.B. Owner shall deposit in a
separate account any money so received and shall distribute it in accordance with such agreement as the
parties in interest may reach. If no other special agreement is reached, the damaged Work shall be
repaired or replaced, the moneys so received applied on account thereof, and the Work and the cost
thereof covered by an appropriate Change Order.

Owner as fiduciary shall have power to adjust and settle any loss with the insurers unless one of the
parties in interest shall object in writing within 15 days after the occurrence of loss to Owner’s exercise of
this power. If such objection be made, Owner as fiduciary shall make settlement with the insurers in
accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach. If no such agreement among the

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 18 of 55




5.09

5.10

parties in interest is reached, Owner as fiduciary shall adjust and settle the loss with the insurers and, if
required in writing by any party in interest, Owner as fiduciary shall give bond for the proper
performance of such duties.

Acceptance of Bonds and Insurance; Option to Replace

A

If either Owner or Contractor has any objection to the coverage afforded by or other provisions of the
bonds or insurance required to be purchased and maintained by the other party in accordance with Article
5 on the basis of non-conformance with the Contract Documents, the objecting party shall so notify the
other party in writing within 10 days after receipt of the certificates (or other evidence requested) required
by Paragraph 2.01.B. Owner and Contractor shall each provide to the other such additional information in
respect of insurance provided as the other may reasonably request. If either party does not purchase or
maintain all of the bonds and insurance required of such party by the Contract Documents, such party
shall notify the other party in writing of such failure to purchase prior to the start of the Work, or of such
failure to maintain prior to any change in the required coverage. Without prejudice to any other right or
remedy, the other party may elect to obtain equivalent bonds or insurance to protect such other party’s
interests at the expense of the party who was required to provide such coverage, and a Change Order shall
be issued to adjust the Contract Price accordingly.

Partial Utilization, Acknowledgment of Property Insurer

A

If Owner finds it necessary to occupy or use a portion or portions of the Work prior to Substantial
Completion of all the Work as provided in Paragraph 14.05, no such use or occupancy shall commence
before the insurers providing the property insurance pursuant to Paragraph 5.06 have acknowledged
notice thereof and in writing effected any changes in coverage necessitated thereby. The insurers
providing the property insurance shall consent by endorsement on the policy or policies, but the property
insurance shall not be canceled or permitted to lapse on account of any such partial use or occupancy.

ARTICLE 6 — CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

6.01

6.02

Supervision and Superintendence

A

Contractor shall supervise, inspect, and direct the Work competently and efficiently, devoting such
attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform the Work in
accordance with the Contract Documents. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, methods,
techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction. Contractor shall not be responsible for the
negligence of Owner or Engineer in the design or specification of a specific means, method, technique,
sequence, or procedure of construction which is shown or indicated in and expressly required by the
Contract Documents.

At all times during the progress of the Work, Contractor shall assign a competent resident superintendent
who shall not be replaced without written notice to Owner and Engineer except under extraordinary
circumstances.

Labor; Working Hours

A.

B.

Contractor shall provide competent, suitably qualified personnel to survey and lay out the Work and
perform construction as required by the Contract Documents. Contractor shall at all times maintain good
discipline and order at the Site.

Except as otherwise required for the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or
adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, all Work at the Site shall be

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 19 of 55




6.03

6.04

6.05

performed during regular working hours. Contractor will not permit the performance of Work on a
Saturday, Sunday, or any legal holiday without Owner’s written consent (which will not be unreasonably
withheld) given after prior written notice to Engineer.

Services, Materials, and Equipment

A

Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall provide and assume full
responsibility for all services, materials, equipment, labor, transportation, construction equipment and
machinery, tools, appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, telephone, water, sanitary facilities, temporary
facilities, and all other facilities and incidentals necessary for the performance, testing, start-up, and
completion of the Work.

All materials and equipment incorporated into the Work shall be as specified or, if not specified, shall be
of good quality and new, except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. All special warranties
and guarantees required by the Specifications shall expressly run to the benefit of Owner. If required by
Engineer, Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence (including reports of required tests) as to the
source, kind, and quality of materials and equipment.

All materials and equipment shall be stored, applied, installed, connected, erected, protected, used,
cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with instructions of the applicable Supplier, except as otherwise
may be provided in the Contract Documents.

Progress Schedule

A

Contractor shall adhere to the Progress Schedule established in accordance with Paragraph 2.07 as it may
be adjusted from time to time as provided below.

1. Contractor shall submit to Engineer for acceptance (to the extent indicated in Paragraph 2.07)
proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will not result in changing the Contract Times.
Such adjustments will comply with any provisions of the General Requirements applicable thereto.

2. Proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will change the Contract Times shall be
submitted in accordance with the requirements of Article 12. Adjustments in Contract Times may
only be made by a Change Order.

Substitutes and “Or-Equals”™

A.

Whenever an item of material or equipment is specified or described in the Contract Documents by using
the name of a proprietary item or the name of a particular Supplier, the specification or description is
intended to establish the type, function, appearance, and quality required. Unless the specification or
description contains or is followed by words reading that no like, equivalent, or “or-equal” item or no
substitution is permitted, other items of material or equipment or material or equipment of other Suppliers
may be submitted to Engineer for review under the circumstances described below.

1. “Or-Equal” Items: If in Engineer’s sole discretion an item of material or equipment proposed by
Contractor is functionally equal to that named and sufficiently similar so that no change in related
Work will be required, it may be considered by Engineer as an “or-equal” item, in which case review
and approval of the proposed item may, in Engineer’s sole discretion, be accomplished without
compliance with some or all of the requirements for approval of proposed substitute items. For the
purposes of this Paragraph 6.05.A.1, a proposed item of material or equipment will be considered
functionally equal to an item so named if:

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 20 of 55




a.

in the exercise of reasonable judgment Engineer determines that:

1) itis at least equal in materials of construction, quality, durability, appearance, strength, and
design characteristics;

2) it will reliably perform at least equally well the function and achieve the results imposed by
the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole; and

3) it has a proven record of performance and availability of responsive service.
Contractor certifies that, if approved and incorporated into the Work:
1) there will be no increase in cost to the Owner or increase in Contract Times; and

2) it will conform substantially to the detailed requirements of the item named in the Contract
Documents.

2. Substitute Items:

a.

If in Engineer’s sole discretion an item of material or equipment proposed by Contractor does not
qualify as an “or-equal” item under Paragraph 6.05.A.1, it will be considered a proposed
substitute item.

Contractor shall submit sufficient information as provided below to allow Engineer to determine
if the item of material or equipment proposed is essentially equivalent to that named and an
acceptable substitute therefor. Requests for review of proposed substitute items of material or
equipment will not be accepted by Engineer from anyone other than Contractor.

The requirements for review by Engineer will be as set forth in Paragraph 6.05.A.2.d, as
supplemented by the General Requirements, and as Engineer may decide is appropriate under the
circumstances.

Contractor shall make written application to Engineer for review of a proposed substitute item of
material or equipment that Contractor seeks to furnish or use. The application:

1) shall certify that the proposed substitute item will:
a) perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the general design,
b) be similar in substance to that specified, and
c) be suited to the same use as that specified;

2) will state:

a) the extent, if any, to which the use of the proposed substitute item will prejudice
Contractor’s achievement of Substantial Completion on time,

b) whether use of the proposed substitute item in the Work will require a change in any of
the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with Owner for
other work on the Project) to adapt the design to the proposed substitute item, and

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 21 of 55




6.06

c) whether incorporation or use of the proposed substitute item in connection with the
Work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty;

3) will identify:
a) all variations of the proposed substitute item from that specified, and
b) available engineering, sales, maintenance, repair, and replacement services; and

4) shall contain an itemized estimate of all costs or credits that will result directly or indirectly
from use of such substitute item, including costs of redesign and claims of other contractors
affected by any resulting change.

Substitute Construction Methods or Procedures: If a specific means, method, technique, sequence, or
procedure of construction is expressly required by the Contract Documents, Contractor may furnish or
utilize a substitute means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction approved by
Engineer. Contractor shall submit sufficient information to allow Engineer, in Engineer’s sole discretion,
to determine that the substitute proposed is equivalent to that expressly called for by the Contract
Documents. The requirements for review by Engineer will be similar to those provided in Paragraph
6.05.A.2.

Engineer’s Evaluation: Engineer will be allowed a reasonable time within which to evaluate each
proposal or submittal made pursuant to Paragraphs 6.05.A and 6.05.B. Engineer may require Contractor
to furnish additional data about the proposed substitute item. Engineer will be the sole judge of
acceptability. No “or equal” or substitute will be ordered, installed or utilized until Engineer’s review is
complete, which will be evidenced by a Change Order in the case of a substitute and an approved Shop
Drawing for an “or equal.” Engineer will advise Contractor in writing of any negative determination.

Special Guarantee: Owner may require Contractor to furnish at Contractor’s expense a special
performance guarantee or other surety with respect to any substitute.

Engineer’s Cost Reimbursement: Engineer will record Engineer’s costs in evaluating a substitute
proposed or submitted by Contractor pursuant to Paragraphs 6.05.A.2 and 6.05.B. Whether or not
Engineer approves a substitute so proposed or submitted by Contractor, Contractor shall reimburse
Owner for the reasonable charges of Engineer for evaluating each such proposed substitute. Contractor
shall also reimburse Owner for the reasonable charges of Engineer for making changes in the Contract
Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with Owner) resulting from the acceptance of
each proposed substitute.

Contractor’s Expense. Contractor shall provide all data in support of any proposed substitute or
“or-equal” at Contractor’s expense.

Concerning Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others

A.

Contractor shall not employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity (including those
acceptable to Owner as indicated in Paragraph 6.06.B), whether initially or as a replacement, against
whom Owner may have reasonable objection. Contractor shall not be required to employ any
Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity to furnish or perform any of the Work against whom
Contractor has reasonable objection.

If the Supplementary Conditions require the identity of certain Subcontractors, Suppliers, or other
individuals or entities to be submitted to Owner in advance for acceptance by Owner by a specified date

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 22 of 55




prior to the Effective Date of the Agreement, and if Contractor has submitted a list thereof in accordance
with the Supplementary Conditions, Owner’s acceptance (either in writing or by failing to make written
objection thereto by the date indicated for acceptance or objection in the Bidding Documents or the
Contract Documents) of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity so identified may
be revoked on the basis of reasonable objection after due investigation. Contractor shall submit an
acceptable replacement for the rejected Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, and the
Contract Price will be adjusted by the difference in the cost occasioned by such replacement, and an
appropriate Change Order will be issued. No acceptance by Owner of any such Subcontractor, Supplier,
or other individual or entity, whether initially or as a replacement, shall constitute a waiver of any right of
Owner or Engineer to reject defective Work.

. Contractor shall be fully responsible to Owner and Engineer for all acts and omissions of the
Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work just
as Contractor is responsible for Contractor’s own acts and omissions. Nothing in the Contract
Documents:

1. shall create for the benefit of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity any
contractual relationship between Owner or Engineer and any such Subcontractor, Supplier or other
individual or entity; nor

2. shall create any obligation on the part of Owner or Engineer to pay or to see to the payment of any
moneys due any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity except as may otherwise
be required by Laws and Regulations.

. Contractor shall be solely responsible for scheduling and coordinating the Work of Subcontractors,
Suppliers, and other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work under a direct or
indirect contract with Contractor.

. Contractor shall require all Subcontractors, Suppliers, and such other individuals or entities performing or
furnishing any of the Work to communicate with Engineer through Contractor.

The divisions and sections of the Specifications and the identifications of any Drawings shall not control
Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or Suppliers or delineating the Work to be
performed by any specific trade.

. All Work performed for Contractor by a Subcontractor or Supplier will be pursuant to an appropriate
agreement between Contractor and the Subcontractor or Supplier which specifically binds the
Subcontractor or Supplier to the applicable terms and conditions of the Contract Documents for the
benefit of Owner and Engineer. Whenever any such agreement is with a Subcontractor or Supplier who is
listed as a loss payee on the property insurance provided in Paragraph 5.06, the agreement between the
Contractor and the Subcontractor or Supplier will contain provisions whereby the Subcontractor or
Supplier waives all rights against Owner, Contractor, Engineer, and all other individuals or entities
identified in the Supplementary Conditions to be listed as insureds or loss payees (and the officers,
directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them)
for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, relating to, or resulting from any of the perils or
causes of loss covered by such policies and any other property insurance applicable to the Work. If the
insurers on any such policies require separate waiver forms to be signed by any Subcontractor or
Supplier, Contractor will obtain the same.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 23 of 55




6.07

6.08

6.09

Patent Fees and Royalties

A

Contractor shall pay all license fees and royalties and assume all costs incident to the use in the
performance of the Work or the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or
device which is the subject of patent rights or copyrights held by others. If a particular invention, design,
process, product, or device is specified in the Contract Documents for use in the performance of the Work
and if, to the actual knowledge of Owner or Engineer, its use is subject to patent rights or copyrights
calling for the payment of any license fee or royalty to others, the existence of such rights shall be
disclosed by Owner in the Contract Documents.

To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless
Contractor, and its officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and
subcontractors from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all
fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or arbitration or
other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any infringement of patent rights or copyrights
incident to the use in the performance of the Work or resulting from the incorporation in the Work of any
invention, design, process, product, or device specified in the Contract Documents, but not identified as
being subject to payment of any license fee or royalty to others required by patent rights or copyrights.

To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless
Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and
subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including
but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any infringement of
patent rights or copyrights incident to the use in the performance of the Work or resulting from the
incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device not specified in the
Contract Documents.

Permits

A

Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Contractor shall obtain and pay for all
construction permits and licenses. Owner shall assist Contractor, when necessary, in obtaining such
permits and licenses. Contractor shall pay all governmental charges and inspection fees necessary for the
prosecution of the Work which are applicable at the time of opening of Bids, or, if there are no Bids, on
the Effective Date of the Agreement. Owner shall pay all charges of utility owners for connections for
providing permanent service to the Work.

Laws and Regulations

A.

Contractor shall give all notices required by and shall comply with all Laws and Regulations applicable to
the performance of the Work. Except where otherwise expressly required by applicable Laws and
Regulations, neither Owner nor Engineer shall be responsible for monitoring Contractor’s compliance
with any Laws or Regulations.

If Contractor performs any Work knowing or having reason to know that it is contrary to Laws or
Regulations, Contractor shall bear all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all
fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or
other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such Work. However, it shall not be
Contractor’s responsibility to make certain that the Specifications and Drawings are in accordance with
Laws and Regulations, but this shall not relieve Contractor of Contractor’s obligations under Paragraph
3.03.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 24 of 55




6.10

6.11

C. Changes in Laws or Regulations not known at the time of opening of Bids (or, on the Effective Date of
the Agreement if there were no Bids) having an effect on the cost or time of performance of the Work
shall be the subject of an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times. If Owner and Contractor are
unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any such adjustment, a Claim may
be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

Taxes

A. Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes required to be paid by Contractor in
accordance with the Laws and Regulations of the place of the Project which are applicable during the
performance of the Work.

Use of Site and Other Areas
A. Limitation on Use of Site and Other Areas:

1. Contractor shall confine construction equipment, the storage of materials and equipment, and the
operations of workers to the Site and other areas permitted by Laws and Regulations, and shall not
unreasonably encumber the Site and other areas with construction equipment or other materials or
equipment. Contractor shall assume full responsibility for any damage to any such land or area, or to
the owner or occupant thereof, or of any adjacent land or areas resulting from the performance of the
Work.

2. Should any claim be made by any such owner or occupant because of the performance of the Work,
Contractor shall promptly settle with such other party by negotiation or otherwise resolve the claim
by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding or at law.

3. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold
harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents,
consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and
damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and
other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or
relating to any claim or action, legal or equitable, brought by any such owner or occupant against
Owner, Engineer, or any other party indemnified hereunder to the extent caused by or based upon
Contractor’s performance of the Work.

B. Removal of Debris During Performance of the Work: During the progress of the Work Contractor shall
keep the Site and other areas free from accumulations of waste materials, rubbish, and other debris.
Removal and disposal of such waste materials, rubbish, and other debris shall conform to applicable Laws
and Regulations.

C. Cleaning: Prior to Substantial Completion of the Work Contractor shall clean the Site and the Work and
make it ready for utilization by Owner. At the completion of the Work Contractor shall remove from the
Site all tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery, and surplus materials and shall restore
to original condition all property not designated for alteration by the Contract Documents.

D. Loading Structures: Contractor shall not load nor permit any part of any structure to be loaded in any
manner that will endanger the structure, nor shall Contractor subject any part of the Work or adjacent
property to stresses or pressures that will endanger it.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 25 of 55




6.12

6.13

Record Documents

A

Contractor shall maintain in a safe place at the Site one record copy of all Drawings, Specifications,
Addenda, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Field Orders, and written interpretations and
clarifications in good order and annotated to show changes made during construction. These record
documents together with all approved Samples and a counterpart of all approved Shop Drawings will be
available to Engineer for reference. Upon completion of the Work, these record documents, Samples, and
Shop Drawings will be delivered to Engineer for Owner.

Safety and Protection

A

Contractor shall be solely responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions
and programs in connection with the Work. Such responsibility does not relieve Subcontractors of their
responsibility for the safety of persons or property in the performance of their work, nor for compliance
with applicable safety Laws and Regulations. Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the
safety of, and shall provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:

1. all persons on the Site or who may be affected by the Work;

2. all the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the
Site; and

3. other property at the Site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements,
roadways, structures, utilities, and Underground Facilities not designated for removal, relocation, or
replacement in the course of construction.

Contractor shall comply with all applicable Laws and Regulations relating to the safety of persons or
property, or to the protection of persons or property from damage, injury, or loss; and shall erect and
maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection. Contractor shall notify owners of
adjacent property and of Underground Facilities and other utility owners when prosecution of the Work
may affect them, and shall cooperate with them in the protection, removal, relocation, and replacement of
their property.

Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of Owner’s safety programs, if any. The
Supplementary Conditions identify any Owner’s safety programs that are applicable to the Work.

Contractor shall inform Owner and Engineer of the specific requirements of Contractor’s safety program
with which Owner’s and Engineer’s employees and representatives must comply while at the Site.

All damage, injury, or loss to any property referred to in Paragraph 6.13.A.2 or 6.13.A.3 caused, directly
or indirectly, in whole or in part, by Contractor, any Subcontractor, Supplier, or any other individual or
entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose
acts any of them may be liable, shall be remedied by Contractor (except damage or loss attributable to the
fault of Drawings or Specifications or to the acts or omissions of Owner or Engineer or anyone employed
by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, and not attributable, directly or
indirectly, in whole or in part, to the fault or negligence of Contractor or any Subcontractor, Supplier, or
other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them).

Contractor’s duties and responsibilities for safety and for protection of the Work shall continue until such
time as all the Work is completed and Engineer has issued a notice to Owner and Contractor in
accordance with Paragraph 14.07.B that the Work is acceptable (except as otherwise expressly provided
in connection with Substantial Completion).

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 26 of 55




6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

Safety Representative

A

Contractor shall designate a qualified and experienced safety representative at the Site whose duties and
responsibilities shall be the prevention of accidents and the maintaining and supervising of safety
precautions and programs.

Hazard Communication Programs

A

Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating any exchange of material safety data sheets or other
hazard communication information required to be made available to or exchanged between or among
employers at the Site in accordance with Laws or Regulations.

Emergencies

A

In emergencies affecting the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent
thereto, Contractor is obligated to act to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. Contractor shall give
Engineer prompt written notice if Contractor believes that any significant changes in the Work or
variations from the Contract Documents have been caused thereby or are required as a result thereof. If
Engineer determines that a change in the Contract Documents is required because of the action taken by
Contractor in response to such an emergency, a Work Change Directive or Change Order will be issued.

Shop Drawings and Samples

A

Contractor shall submit Shop Drawings and Samples to Engineer for review and approval in accordance
with the accepted Schedule of Submittals (as required by Paragraph 2.07). Each submittal will be
identified as Engineer may require.

1. Shop Drawings:

a. Submit number of copies specified in the General Requirements.

b. Data shown on the Shop Drawings will be complete with respect to quantities, dimensions,
specified performance and design criteria, materials, and similar data to show Engineer the
services, materials, and equipment Contractor proposes to provide and to enable Engineer to
review the information for the limited purposes required by Paragraph 6.17.D.

2. Samples:

a. Submit number of Samples specified in the Specifications.

b. Clearly identify each Sample as to material, Supplier, pertinent data such as catalog numbers, the
use for which intended and other data as Engineer may require to enable Engineer to review the
submittal for the limited purposes required by Paragraph 6.17.D.

Where a Shop Drawing or Sample is required by the Contract Documents or the Schedule of Submittals,

any related Work performed prior to Engineer’s review and approval of the pertinent submittal will be at
the sole expense and responsibility of Contractor.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 27 of 55




C. Submittal Procedures:
1. Before submitting each Shop Drawing or Sample, Contractor shall have:

a. reviewed and coordinated each Shop Drawing or Sample with other Shop Drawings and Samples
and with the requirements of the Work and the Contract Documents;

b. determined and verified all field measurements, quantities, dimensions, specified performance
and design criteria, installation requirements, materials, catalog numbers, and similar information
with respect thereto;

c. determined and verified the suitability of all materials offered with respect to the indicated
application, fabrication, shipping, handling, storage, assembly, and installation pertaining to the
performance of the Work; and

d. determined and verified all information relative to Contractor’s responsibilities for means,
methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, and safety precautions and
programs incident thereto.

2. Each submittal shall bear a stamp or specific written certification that Contractor has satisfied
Contractor’s obligations under the Contract Documents with respect to Contractor’s review and
approval of that submittal.

3. With each submittal, Contractor shall give Engineer specific written notice of any variations that the
Shop Drawing or Sample may have from the requirements of the Contract Documents. This notice
shall be both a written communication separate from the Shop Drawings or Sample submittal; and, in
addition, by a specific notation made on each Shop Drawing or Sample submitted to Engineer for
review and approval of each such variation.

D. Engineer’s Review:

1. Engineer will provide timely review of Shop Drawings and Samples in accordance with the Schedule
of Submittals acceptable to Engineer. Engineer’s review and approval will be only to determine if the
items covered by the submittals will, after installation or incorporation in the Work, conform to the
information given in the Contract Documents and be compatible with the design concept of the
completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents.

2. Engineer’s review and approval will not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or
procedures of construction (except where a particular means, method, technique, sequence, or
procedure of construction is specifically and expressly called for by the Contract Documents) or to
safety precautions or programs incident thereto. The review and approval of a separate item as such
will not indicate approval of the assembly in which the item functions.

3. Engineer’s review and approval shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for any variation
from the requirements of the Contract Documents unless Contractor has complied with the
requirements of Paragraph 6.17.C.3 and Engineer has given written approval of each such variation
by specific written notation thereof incorporated in or accompanying the Shop Drawing or Sample.
Engineer’s review and approval shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for complying with
the requirements of Paragraph 6.17.C.1.

E. Resubmittal Procedures:

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 28 of 55




6.18

6.19

6.20

1. Contractor shall make corrections required by Engineer and shall return the required number of
corrected copies of Shop Drawings and submit, as required, new Samples for review and approval.
Contractor shall direct specific attention in writing to revisions other than the corrections called for
by Engineer on previous submittals.

Continuing the Work

A

Contractor shall carry on the Work and adhere to the Progress Schedule during all disputes or
disagreements with Owner. No Work shall be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes or
disagreements, except as permitted by Paragraph 15.04 or as Owner and Contractor may otherwise agree
in writing.

Contractor’s General Warranty and Guarantee

A

Contractor warrants and guarantees to Owner that all Work will be in accordance with the Contract
Documents and will not be defective. Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners, employees,
agents, consultants, and subcontractors shall be entitled to rely on representation of Contractor’s warranty
and guarantee.

Contractor’s warranty and guarantee hereunder excludes defects or damage caused by:

1. abuse, modification, or improper maintenance or operation by persons other than Contractor,
Subcontractors, Suppliers, or any other individual or entity for whom Contractor is responsible; or

2. normal wear and tear under normal usage.

Contractor’s obligation to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents
shall be absolute. None of the following will constitute an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance
with the Contract Documents or a release of Contractor’s obligation to perform the Work in accordance
with the Contract Documents:

1. observations by Engineer;

2. recommendation by Engineer or payment by Owner of any progress or final payment;

3. the issuance of a certificate of Substantial Completion by Engineer or any payment related thereto by
Owner;

4. use or occupancy of the Work or any part thereof by Owner;

5. any review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal or the issuance of a notice of
acceptability by Engineer;

6. any inspection, test, or approval by others; or

7. any correction of defective Work by Owner.

Indemnification

A.

To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless
Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and
subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 29 of 55




but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the performance of the
Work, provided that any such claim, cost, loss, or damage is attributable to bodily injury, sickness,
disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including
the loss of use resulting therefrom but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of
Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by
any of them to perform any of the Work or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable .

B. In any and all claims against Owner or Engineer or any of their officers, directors, members, partners,
employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors by any employee (or the survivor or personal
representative of such employee) of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any individual or
entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose
acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under Paragraph 6.20.A shall not be
limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits
payable by or for Contractor or any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity under
workers’ compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.

C. The indemnification obligations of Contractor under Paragraph 6.20.A shall not extend to the liability of
Engineer and Engineer’s officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and
subcontractors arising out of:

1. the preparation or approval of, or the failure to prepare or approve maps, Drawings, opinions, reports,
surveys, Change Orders, designs, or Specifications; or

2. giving directions or instructions, or failing to give them, if that is the primary cause of the injury or
damage.

6.21  Delegation of Professional Design Services

A. Contractor will not be required to provide professional design services unless such services are
specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of the Work or unless such services are
required to carry out Contractor’s responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences
and procedures. Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services in violation of
applicable law.

B. If professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or
equipment are specifically required of Contractor by the Contract Documents, Owner and Engineer will
specify all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. Contractor shall cause such
services or certifications to be provided by a properly licensed professional, whose signature and seal
shall appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings and other
submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings and other submittals related to the Work
designed or certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional’s written
approval when submitted to Engineer.

C. Owner and Engineer shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the
services, certifications or approvals performed by such design professionals, provided Owner and
Engineer have specified to Contractor all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy.

D. Pursuant to this Paragraph 6.21, Engineer’s review and approval of design calculations and design
drawings will be only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with performance and design
criteria given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. Engineer’s review and

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 30 of 55




approval of Shop Drawings and other submittals (except design calculations and design drawings) will be
only for the purpose stated in Paragraph 6.17.D.1.

Contractor shall not be responsible for the adequacy of the performance or design criteria required by the
Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 7-OTHER WORK AT THE SITE

7.01 Related Work at Site

A

Owner may perform other work related to the Project at the Site with Owner’s employees, or through
other direct contracts therefor, or have other work performed by utility owners. If such other work is not
noted in the Contract Documents, then:

1. written notice thereof will be given to Contractor prior to starting any such other work; and

2. if Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of
any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times that should be allowed as a result of such
other work, a Claim may be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

Contractor shall afford each other contractor who is a party to such a direct contract, each utility owner,
and Owner, if Owner is performing other work with Owner’s employees, proper and safe access to the
Site, provide a reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and equipment and the
execution of such other work, and properly coordinate the Work with theirs. Contractor shall do all
cutting, fitting, and patching of the Work that may be required to properly connect or otherwise make its
several parts come together and properly integrate with such other work. Contractor shall not endanger
any work of others by cutting, excavating, or otherwise altering such work; provided, however, that
Contractor may cut or alter others' work with the written consent of Engineer and the others whose work
will be affected. The duties and responsibilities of Contractor under this Paragraph are for the benefit of
such utility owners and other contractors to the extent that there are comparable provisions for the benefit
of Contractor in said direct contracts between Owner and such utility owners and other contractors.

If the proper execution or results of any part of Contractor’s Work depends upon work performed by
others under this Article 7, Contractor shall inspect such other work and promptly report to Engineer in
writing any delays, defects, or deficiencies in such other work that render it unavailable or unsuitable for
the proper execution and results of Contractor’s Work. Contractor’s failure to so report will constitute an
acceptance of such other work as fit and proper for integration with Contractor’s Work except for latent
defects and deficiencies in such other work.

7.02  Coordination

A.

If Owner intends to contract with others for the performance of other work on the Project at the Site, the
following will be set forth in Supplementary Conditions:

1. the individual or entity who will have authority and responsibility for coordination of the activities
among the various contractors will be identified;

2. the specific matters to be covered by such authority and responsibility will be itemized; and

3. the extent of such authority and responsibilities will be provided.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 31 of 55




7.03

B. Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Owner shall have sole authority and
responsibility for such coordination.

Legal Relationships

A. Paragraphs 7.01.A and 7.02 are not applicable for utilities not under the control of Owner.

B. Each other direct contract of Owner under Paragraph 7.01.A shall provide that the other contractor is
liable to Owner and Contractor for the reasonable direct delay and disruption costs incurred by Contractor
as a result of the other contractor’s wrongful actions or inactions.

C. Contractor shall be liable to Owner and any other contractor under direct contract to Owner for the

reasonable direct delay and disruption costs incurred by such other contractor as a result of Contractor’s
wrongful action or inactions.

ARTICLE 8 — OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

8.01

8.02

8.03

8.04

8.05

8.06

Communications to Contractor

A. Except as otherwise provided in these General Conditions, Owner shall issue all communications to
Contractor through Engineer.

Replacement of Engineer

A. In case of termination of the employment of Engineer, Owner shall appoint an engineer to whom
Contractor makes no reasonable objection, whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of
the former Engineer.

Furnish Data

A. Owner shall promptly furnish the data required of Owner under the Contract Documents.

Pay When Due

A. Owner shall make payments to Contractor when they are due as provided in Paragraphs 14.02.C and
14.07.C.

Lands and Easements; Reports and Tests

A. Owner’s duties with respect to providing lands and easements and providing engineering surveys to
establish reference points are set forth in Paragraphs 4.01 and 4.05. Paragraph 4.02 refers to Owner’s
identifying and making available to Contractor copies of reports of explorations and tests of subsurface
conditions and drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the
Site.

Insurance

A. Owner’s responsibilities, if any, with respect to purchasing and maintaining liability and property
insurance are set forth in Article 5.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 32 of 55




8.07

8.08

8.09

8.10

8.11

8.12

Change Orders
A. Owner is obligated to execute Change Orders as indicated in Paragraph 10.03.
Inspections, Tests, and Approvals

A. Owner’s responsibility with respect to certain inspections, tests, and approvals is set forth in Paragraph
13.03.B.

Limitations on Owner’s Responsibilities

A. The Owner shall not supervise, direct, or have control or authority over, nor be responsible for,
Contractor’s means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety
precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and
Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Owner will not be responsible for Contractor’s
failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition

A. Owner’s responsibility in respect to an undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition is set forth in
Paragraph 4.06.

Evidence of Financial Arrangements

A. Upon request of Contractor, Owner shall furnish Contractor reasonable evidence that financial
arrangements have been made to satisfy Owner’s obligations under the Contract Documents.

Compliance with Safety Program
A. While at the Site, Owner’s employees and representatives shall comply with the specific applicable

requirements of Contractor’s safety programs of which Owner has been informed pursuant to Paragraph
6.13.D.

ARTICLE 9 - ENGINEER’S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION

9.01

9.02

Owner’s Representative

A. Engineer will be Owner’s representative during the construction period. The duties and responsibilities
and the limitations of authority of Engineer as Owner’s representative during construction are set forth in
the Contract Documents.

Visits to Site

A. Engineer will make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction as
Engineer deems necessary in order to observe as an experienced and qualified design professional the
progress that has been made and the quality of the various aspects of Contractor’s executed Work. Based
on information obtained during such visits and observations, Engineer, for the benefit of Owner, will
determine, in general, if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. Engineer
will not be required to make exhaustive or continuous inspections on the Site to check the quality or
guantity of the Work. Engineer’s efforts will be directed toward providing for Owner a greater degree of
confidence that the completed Work will conform generally to the Contract Documents. On the basis of

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 33 of 55




9.03

9.04

9.05

9.06

such visits and observations, Engineer will keep Owner informed of the progress of the Work and will
endeavor to guard Owner against defective Work.

Engineer’s visits and observations are subject to all the limitations on Engineer’s authority and
responsibility set forth in Paragraph 9.09. Particularly, but without limitation, during or as a result of
Engineer’s visits or observations of Contractor’s Work, Engineer will not supervise, direct, control, or
have authority over or be responsible for Contractor’s means, methods, techniques, sequences, or
procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of
Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work.

Project Representative

A

If Owner and Engineer agree, Engineer will furnish a Resident Project Representative to assist Engineer
in providing more extensive observation of the Work. The authority and responsibilities of any such
Resident Project Representative and assistants will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions, and
limitations on the responsibilities thereof will be as provided in Paragraph 9.09. If Owner designates
another representative or agent to represent Owner at the Site who is not Engineer’s consultant, agent or
employee, the responsibilities and authority and limitations thereon of such other individual or entity will
be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions.

Authorized Variations in Work

A

Engineer may authorize minor variations in the Work from the requirements of the Contract Documents
which do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times and are compatible with
the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract
Documents. These may be accomplished by a Field Order and will be binding on Owner and also on
Contractor, who shall perform the Work involved promptly. If Owner or Contractor believes that a Field
Order justifies an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, and the parties are unable
to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any such adjustment, a Claim may be
made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

Rejecting Defective Work

A

Engineer will have authority to reject Work which Engineer believes to be defective, or that Engineer
believes will not produce a completed Project that conforms to the Contract Documents or that will
prejudice the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated
by the Contract Documents. Engineer will also have authority to require special inspection or testing of
the Work as provided in Paragraph 13.04, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed.

Shop Drawings, Change Orders and Payments

A.

In connection with Engineer’s authority, and limitations thereof, as to Shop Drawings and Samples, see
Paragraph 6.17.

In connection with Engineer’s authority, and limitations thereof, as to design calculations and design
drawings submitted in response to a delegation of professional design services, if any, see Paragraph 6.21.

In connection with Engineer’s authority as to Change Orders, see Articles 10, 11, and 12.

In connection with Engineer’s authority as to Applications for Payment, see Article 14.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 34 of 55




9.07

9.08

9.09

Determinations for Unit Price Work

A

Engineer will determine the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by
Contractor. Engineer will review with Contractor the Engineer’s preliminary determinations on such
matters before rendering a written decision thereon (by recommendation of an Application for Payment
or otherwise). Engineer’s written decision thereon will be final and binding (except as modified by
Engineer to reflect changed factual conditions or more accurate data) upon Owner and Contractor, subject
to the provisions of Paragraph 10.05.

Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work

A

Engineer will be the initial interpreter of the requirements of the Contract Documents and judge of the
acceptability of the Work thereunder. All matters in question and other matters between Owner and
Contractor arising prior to the date final payment is due relating to the acceptability of the Work, and the
interpretation of the requirements of the Contract Documents pertaining to the performance of the Work,
will be referred initially to Engineer in writing within 30 days of the event giving rise to the question.

Engineer will, with reasonable promptness, render a written decision on the issue referred. If Owner or
Contractor believes that any such decision entitles them to an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract
Times or both, a Claim may be made under Paragraph 10.05. The date of Engineer’s decision shall be the
date of the event giving rise to the issues referenced for the purposes of Paragraph 10.05.B.

Engineer’s written decision on the issue referred will be final and binding on Owner and Contractor,
subject to the provisions of Paragraph 10.05.

When functioning as interpreter and judge under this Paragraph 9.08, Engineer will not show partiality to
Owner or Contractor and will not be liable in connection with any interpretation or decision rendered in
good faith in such capacity.

Limitations on Engineer’s Authority and Responsibilities

A

Neither Engineer’s authority or responsibility under this Article 9 or under any other provision of the
Contract Documents nor any decision made by Engineer in good faith either to exercise or not exercise
such authority or responsibility or the undertaking, exercise, or performance of any authority or
responsibility by Engineer shall create, impose, or give rise to any duty in contract, tort, or otherwise
owed by Engineer to Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other individual or entity, or to any
surety for or employee or agent of any of them.

Engineer will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for Contractor’s
means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and
programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations
applicable to the performance of the Work. Engineer will not be responsible for Contractor’s failure to
perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Engineer will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of Contractor or of any Subcontractor, any
Supplier, or of any other individual or entity performing any of the Work.

Engineer’s review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation and all
maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates of inspection, tests and
approvals, and other documentation required to be delivered by Paragraph 14.07.A will only be to
determine generally that their content complies with the requirements of, and in the case of certificates of

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 35 of 55




9.10

inspections, tests, and approvals that the results certified indicate compliance with, the Contract
Documents.

E. The limitations upon authority and responsibility set forth in this Paragraph 9.09 shall also apply to the
Resident Project Representative, if any, and assistants, if any.

Compliance with Safety Program
A. While at the Site, Engineer’s employees and representatives shall comply with the specific applicable

requirements of Contractor’s safety programs of which Engineer has been informed pursuant to
Paragraph 6.13.D.

ARTICLE 10— CHANGES IN THE WORK; CLAIMS

10.01

10.02

10.03

Authorized Changes in the Work

A. Without invalidating the Contract and without notice to any surety, Owner may, at any time or from time
to time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work by a Change Order, or a Work Change
Directive. Upon receipt of any such document, Contractor shall promptly proceed with the Work involved
which will be performed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents (except as otherwise
specifically provided).

B. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to, or on the amount or extent, if any, of an
adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, that should be allowed as a result of a Work
Change Directive, a Claim may be made therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

Unauthorized Changes in the Work

A. Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times
with respect to any work performed that is not required by the Contract Documents as amended,
modified, or supplemented as provided in Paragraph 3.04, except in the case of an emergency as provided
in Paragraph 6.16 or in the case of uncovering Work as provided in Paragraph 13.04.D.

Execution of Change Orders
A. Owner and Contractor shall execute appropriate Change Orders recommended by Engineer covering:

1. changes in the Work which are: (i) ordered by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 10.01.A, (ii) required
because of acceptance of defective Work under Paragraph 13.08.A or Owner’s correction of
defective Work under Paragraph 13.09, or (iii) agreed to by the parties;

2. changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times which are agreed to by the parties, including any
undisputed sum or amount of time for Work actually performed in accordance with a Work Change
Directive; and

3. changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times which embody the substance of any written decision
rendered by Engineer pursuant to Paragraph 10.05; provided that, in lieu of executing any such
Change Order, an appeal may be taken from any such decision in accordance with the provisions of
the Contract Documents and applicable Laws and Regulations, but during any such appeal,
Contractor shall carry on the Work and adhere to the Progress Schedule as provided in Paragraph
6.18.A.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 36 of 55




10.04 Notification to Surety

A

If the provisions of any bond require notice to be given to a surety of any change affecting the general
scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, Contract
Price or Contract Times), the giving of any such notice will be Contractor’s responsibility. The amount of
each applicable bond will be adjusted to reflect the effect of any such change.

10.05 Claims

A

Engineer’s Decision Required. All Claims, except those waived pursuant to Paragraph 14.09, shall be
referred to the Engineer for decision. A decision by Engineer shall be required as a condition precedent to
any exercise by Owner or Contractor of any rights or remedies either may otherwise have under the
Contract Documents or by Laws and Regulations in respect of such Claims.

Notice: Written notice stating the general nature of each Claim shall be delivered by the claimant to
Engineer and the other party to the Contract promptly (but in no event later than 30 days) after the start of
the event giving rise thereto. The responsibility to substantiate a Claim shall rest with the party making
the Claim. Notice of the amount or extent of the Claim, with supporting data shall be delivered to the
Engineer and the other party to the Contract within 60 days after the start of such event (unless Engineer
allows additional time for claimant to submit additional or more accurate data in support of such Claim).
A Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price shall be prepared in accordance with the provisions of
Paragraph 12.01.B. A Claim for an adjustment in Contract Times shall be prepared in accordance with
the provisions of Paragraph 12.02.B. Each Claim shall be accompanied by claimant’s written statement
that the adjustment claimed is the entire adjustment to which the claimant believes it is entitled as a result
of said event. The opposing party shall submit any response to Engineer and the claimant within 30 days
after receipt of the claimant’s last submittal (unless Engineer allows additional time).

Engineer’s Action: Engineer will review each Claim and, within 30 days after receipt of the last
submittal of the claimant or the last submittal of the opposing party, if any, take one of the following
actions in writing:

1. deny the Claim in whole or in part;

2. approve the Claim; or

3. notify the parties that the Engineer is unable to resolve the Claim if, in the Engineer’s sole discretion,
it would be inappropriate for the Engineer to do so. For purposes of further resolution of the Claim,

such notice shall be deemed a denial.

In the event that Engineer does not take action on a Claim within said 30 days, the Claim shall be deemed
denied.

Engineer’s written action under Paragraph 10.05.C or denial pursuant to Paragraphs 10.05.C.3 or 10.05.D
will be final and binding upon Owner and Contractor, unless Owner or Contractor invoke the dispute
resolution procedure set forth in Article 16 within 30 days of such action or denial.

No Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times will be valid if not submitted in
accordance with this Paragraph 10.05.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 37 of 55




ARTICLE 11 - COST OF THE WORK; ALLOWANCES; UNIT PRICE WORK

11.01 Cost of the Work

A. Costs Included: The term Cost of the Work means the sum of all costs, except those excluded in
Paragraph 11.01.B, necessarily incurred and paid by Contractor in the proper performance of the Work.
When the value of any Work covered by a Change Order or when a Claim for an adjustment in Contract
Price is determined on the basis of Cost of the Work, the costs to be reimbursed to Contractor will be only
those additional or incremental costs required because of the change in the Work or because of the event
giving rise to the Claim. Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by Owner, such costs shall be in
amounts no higher than those prevailing in the locality of the Project, shall not include any of the costs
itemized in Paragraph 11.01.B, and shall include only the following items:

1.

Payroll costs for employees in the direct employ of Contractor in the performance of the Work under
schedules of job classifications agreed upon by Owner and Contractor. Such employees shall include,
without limitation, superintendents, foremen, and other personnel employed full time on the Work.
Payroll costs for employees not employed full time on the Work shall be apportioned on the basis of
their time spent on the Work. Payroll costs shall include, but not be limited to, salaries and wages
plus the cost of fringe benefits, which shall include social security contributions, unemployment,
excise, and payroll taxes, workers’ compensation, health and retirement benefits, bonuses, sick leave,
vacation and holiday pay applicable thereto. The expenses of performing Work outside of regular
working hours, on Saturday, Sunday, or legal holidays, shall be included in the above to the extent
authorized by Owner.

Cost of all materials and equipment furnished and incorporated in the Work, including costs of
transportation and storage thereof, and Suppliers’ field services required in connection therewith. All
cash discounts shall accrue to Contractor unless Owner deposits funds with Contractor with which to
make payments, in which case the cash discounts shall accrue to Owner. All trade discounts, rebates
and refunds and returns from sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to Owner, and
Contractor shall make provisions so that they may be obtained.

Payments made by Contractor to Subcontractors for Work performed by Subcontractors. If required
by Owner, Contractor shall obtain competitive bids from subcontractors acceptable to Owner and
Contractor and shall deliver such bids to Owner, who will then determine, with the advice of
Engineer, which bids, if any, will be acceptable. If any subcontract provides that the Subcontractor is
to be paid on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee, the Subcontractor’s Cost of the Work and fee
shall be determined in the same manner as Contractor’s Cost of the Work and fee as provided in this
Paragraph 11.01.

Costs of special consultants (including but not limited to engineers, architects, testing laboratories,
surveyors, attorneys, and accountants) employed for services specifically related to the Work.

Supplemental costs including the following:

a. The proportion of necessary transportation, travel, and subsistence expenses of Contractor’s
employees incurred in discharge of duties connected with the Work.

b. Cost, including transportation and maintenance, of all materials, supplies, equipment, machinery,
appliances, office, and temporary facilities at the Site, and hand tools not owned by the workers,
which are consumed in the performance of the Work, and cost, less market value, of such items
used but not consumed which remain the property of Contractor.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 38 of 55




c. Rentals of all construction equipment and machinery, and the parts thereof whether rented from
Contractor or others in accordance with rental agreements approved by Owner with the advice of
Engineer, and the costs of transportation, loading, unloading, assembly, dismantling, and removal
thereof. All such costs shall be in accordance with the terms of said rental agreements. The rental
of any such equipment, machinery, or parts shall cease when the use thereof is no longer
necessary for the Work.

d. Sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes related to the Work, and for which Contractor is
liable, as imposed by Laws and Regulations.

e. Deposits lost for causes other than negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone
directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, and
royalty payments and fees for permits and licenses.

f. Losses and damages (and related expenses) caused by damage to the Work, not compensated by
insurance or otherwise, sustained by Contractor in connection with the performance of the Work
(except losses and damages within the deductible amounts of property insurance established in
accordance with Paragraph 5.06.D), provided such losses and damages have resulted from causes
other than the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable. Such losses shall include
settlements made with the written consent and approval of Owner. No such losses, damages, and
expenses shall be included in the Cost of the Work for the purpose of determining Contractor’s
fee.

g. The cost of utilities, fuel, and sanitary facilities at the Site.

h. Minor expenses such as telegrams, long distance telephone calls, telephone service at the Site,
express and courier services, and similar petty cash items in connection with the Work.

i. The costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance Contractor is required by the Contract
Documents to purchase and maintain.

B. Costs Excluded: The term Cost of the Work shall not include any of the following items:

1. Payroll costs and other compensation of Contractor’s officers, executives, principals (of partnerships
and sole proprietorships), general managers, safety managers, engineers, architects, estimators,
attorneys, auditors, accountants, purchasing and contracting agents, expediters, timekeepers, clerks,
and other personnel employed by Contractor, whether at the Site or in Contractor’s principal or
branch office for general administration of the Work and not specifically included in the agreed upon
schedule of job classifications referred to in Paragraph 11.01.A.1 or specifically covered by
Paragraph 11.01.A.4, all of which are to be considered administrative costs covered by the
Contractor’s fee.

2. Expenses of Contractor’s principal and branch offices other than Contractor’s office at the Site.

3. Any part of Contractor’s capital expenses, including interest on Contractor’s capital employed for the
Work and charges against Contractor for delinquent payments.

4. Costs due to the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, including but not limited to,
the correction of defective Work, disposal of materials or equipment wrongly supplied, and making
good any damage to property.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 39 of 55




11.02

11.03

5. Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the costs of any item not specifically and
expressly included in Paragraphs 11.01.A.

Contractor’s Fee: When all the Work is performed on the basis of cost-plus, Contractor’s fee shall be
determined as set forth in the Agreement. When the value of any Work covered by a Change Order or
when a Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price is determined on the basis of Cost of the Work,
Contractor’s fee shall be determined as set forth in Paragraph 12.01.C.

Documentation: Whenever the Cost of the Work for any purpose is to be determined pursuant to
Paragraphs 11.01.A and 11.01.B, Contractor will establish and maintain records thereof in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practices and submit in a form acceptable to Engineer an itemized
cost breakdown together with supporting data.

Allowances

A

It is understood that Contractor has included in the Contract Price all allowances so named in the
Contract Documents and shall cause the Work so covered to be performed for such sums and by such
persons or entities as may be acceptable to Owner and Engineer.

Cash Allowances:
1. Contractor agrees that:

a. the cash allowances include the cost to Contractor (less any applicable trade discounts) of
materials and equipment required by the allowances to be delivered at the Site, and all applicable
taxes; and

b. Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling on the Site, labor, installation, overhead, profit,
and other expenses contemplated for the cash allowances have been included in the Contract
Price and not in the allowances, and no demand for additional payment on account of any of the
foregoing will be valid.

Contingency Allowance:

1. Contractor agrees that a contingency allowance, if any, is for the sole use of Owner to cover
unanticipated costs.

Prior to final payment, an appropriate Change Order will be issued as recommended by Engineer to
reflect actual amounts due Contractor on account of Work covered by allowances, and the Contract Price
shall be correspondingly adjusted.

Unit Price Work

A.

Where the Contract Documents provide that all or part of the Work is to be Unit Price Work, initially the
Contract Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amount equal to the sum of the unit
price for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of each item as
indicated in the Agreement.

The estimated quantities of items of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed and are solely for the purpose of
comparison of Bids and determining an initial Contract Price. Determinations of the actual quantities and
classifications of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor will be made by Engineer subject to the
provisions of Paragraph 9.07.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 40 of 55




C. Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by Contractor to be adequate to cover
Contractor’s overhead and profit for each separately identified item.

D. Owner or Contractor may make a Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Price in accordance with
Paragraph 10.05 if:

1.

the quantity of any item of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor differs materially and
significantly from the estimated quantity of such item indicated in the Agreement; and

there is no corresponding adjustment with respect to any other item of Work; and
Contractor believes that Contractor is entitled to an increase in Contract Price as a result of having

incurred additional expense or Owner believes that Owner is entitled to a decrease in Contract Price
and the parties are unable to agree as to the amount of any such increase or decrease.

ARTICLE 12 — CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE; CHANGE OF CONTRACT TIMES

12.01 Change of Contract Price

A. The Contract Price may only be changed by a Change Order. Any Claim for an adjustment in the
Contract Price shall be based on written notice submitted by the party making the Claim to the Engineer
and the other party to the Contract in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 10.05.

B. The value of any Work covered by a Change Order or of any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract
Price will be determined as follows:

1.

where the Work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, by
application of such unit prices to the guantities of the items involved (subject to the provisions of
Paragraph 11.03); or

where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, by a
mutually agreed lump sum (which may include an allowance for overhead and profit not necessarily
in accordance with Paragraph 12.01.C.2); or

where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents and
agreement to a lump sum is not reached under Paragraph 12.01.B.2, on the basis of the Cost of the
Work (determined as provided in Paragraph 11.01) plus a Contractor’s fee for overhead and profit
(determined as provided in Paragraph 12.01.C).

C. Contractor’s Fee: The Contractor’s fee for overhead and profit shall be determined as follows:

1

2.

a mutually acceptable fixed fee; or

if a fixed fee is not agreed upon, then a fee based on the following percentages of the various portions
of the Cost of the Work:

a. for costs incurred under Paragraphs 11.01.A.1 and 11.01.A.2, the Contractor’s fee shall be 15
percent;

b. for costs incurred under Paragraph 11.01.A.3, the Contractor’s fee shall be five percent;

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 41 of 55




c. where one or more tiers of subcontracts are on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee and no
fixed fee is agreed upon, the intent of Paragraphs 12.01.C.2.a and 12.01.C.2.b is that the
Subcontractor who actually performs the Work, at whatever tier, will be paid a fee of 15 percent
of the costs incurred by such Subcontractor under Paragraphs 11.01.A.1 and 11.01.A.2 and that
any higher tier Subcontractor and Contractor will each be paid a fee of five percent of the amount
paid to the next lower tier Subcontractor;

d. no fee shall be payable on the basis of costs itemized under Paragraphs 11.01.A.4, 11.01.A.5, and
11.01.B;

e. the amount of credit to be allowed by Contractor to Owner for any change which results in a net
decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease in cost plus a deduction in
Contractor’s fee by an amount equal to five percent of such net decrease; and

f.  when both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the adjustment in Contractor’s
fee shall be computed on the basis of the net change in accordance with Paragraphs 12.01.C.2.a
through 12.01.C.2.¢, inclusive.

12.02 Change of Contract Times

12.03

A

The Contract Times may only be changed by a Change Order. Any Claim for an adjustment in the
Contract Times shall be based on written notice submitted by the party making the Claim to the Engineer
and the other party to the Contract in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 10.05.

Any adjustment of the Contract Times covered by a Change Order or any Claim for an adjustment in the
Contract Times will be determined in accordance with the provisions of this Article 12.

Delays

A

Where Contractor is prevented from completing any part of the Work within the Contract Times due to
delay beyond the control of Contractor, the Contract Times will be extended in an amount equal to the
time lost due to such delay if a Claim is made therefor as provided in Paragraph 12.02.A. Delays beyond
the control of Contractor shall include, but not be limited to, acts or neglect by Owner, acts or neglect of
utility owners or other contractors performing other work as contemplated by Article 7, fires, floods,
epidemics, abnormal weather conditions, or acts of God.

If Owner, Engineer, or other contractors or utility owners performing other work for Owner as
contemplated by Article 7, or anyone for whom Owner is responsible, delays, disrupts, or interferes with
the performance or progress of the Work, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in
the Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both. Contractor’s entitlement to an adjustment of the
Contract Times is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to Contractor’s ability to complete the
Work within the Contract Times.

If Contractor is delayed in the performance or progress of the Work by fire, flood, epidemic, abnormal
weather conditions, acts of God, acts or failures to act of utility owners not under the control of Owner, or
other causes not the fault of and beyond control of Owner and Contractor, then Contractor shall be
entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Times, if such adjustment is essential to Contractor’s
ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times. Such an adjustment shall be Contractor’s sole
and exclusive remedy for the delays described in this Paragraph 12.03.C.

Owner, Engineer, and their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or
subcontractors shall not be liable to Contractor for any claims, costs, losses, or damages (including but

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 42 of 55




not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court
or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) sustained by Contractor on or in connection with any other
project or anticipated project.

Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times for delays within the
control of Contractor. Delays attributable to and within the control of a Subcontractor or Supplier shall be
deemed to be delays within the control of Contractor.

ARTICLE 13- TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL OR ACCEPTANCE OF
DEFECTIVE WORK

13.01

13.02

13.03

Notice of Defects

A

Prompt notice of all defective Work of which Owner or Engineer has actual knowledge will be given to
Contractor. Defective Work may be rejected, corrected, or accepted as provided in this Article 13.

Access to Work

A

Owner, Engineer, their consultants and other representatives and personnel of Owner, independent testing
laboratories, and governmental agencies with jurisdictional interests will have access to the Site and the
Work at reasonable times for their observation, inspection, and testing. Contractor shall provide them
proper and safe conditions for such access and advise them of Contractor’s safety procedures and
programs so that they may comply therewith as applicable.

Tests and Inspections

A

Contractor shall give Engineer timely notice of readiness of the Work for all required inspections, tests,
or approvals and shall cooperate with inspection and testing personnel to facilitate required inspections or
tests.

Owner shall employ and pay for the services of an independent testing laboratory to perform all
inspections, tests, or approvals required by the Contract Documents except:

1. forinspections, tests, or approvals covered by Paragraphs 13.03.C and 13.03.D below;

2. that costs incurred in connection with tests or inspections conducted pursuant to Paragraph 13.04.B
shall be paid as provided in Paragraph 13.04.C; and

3. as otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents.

If Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction require any Work (or part thereof)
specifically to be inspected, tested, or approved by an employee or other representative of such public
body, Contractor shall assume full responsibility for arranging and obtaining such inspections, tests, or
approvals, pay all costs in connection therewith, and furnish Engineer the required certificates of
inspection or approval.

Contractor shall be responsible for arranging and obtaining and shall pay all costs in connection with any
inspections, tests, or approvals required for Owner’s and Engineer’s acceptance of materials or equipment
to be incorporated in the Work; or acceptance of materials, mix designs, or equipment submitted for
approval prior to Contractor’s purchase thereof for incorporation in the Work. Such inspections, tests, or
approvals shall be performed by organizations acceptable to Owner and Engineer.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 43 of 55




E.

If any Work (or the work of others) that is to be inspected, tested, or approved is covered by Contractor
without written concurrence of Engineer, Contractor shall, if requested by Engineer, uncover such Work
for observation.

Uncovering Work as provided in Paragraph 13.03.E shall be at Contractor’s expense unless Contractor
has given Engineer timely notice of Contractor’s intention to cover the same and Engineer has not acted
with reasonable promptness in response to such notice.

13.04  Uncovering Work

13.05

13.06

A

If any Work is covered contrary to the written request of Engineer, it must, if requested by Engineer, be
uncovered for Engineer’s observation and replaced at Contractor’s expense.

If Engineer considers it necessary or advisable that covered Work be observed by Engineer or inspected
or tested by others, Contractor, at Engineer’s request, shall uncover, expose, or otherwise make available
for observation, inspection, or testing as Engineer may require, that portion of the Work in question,
furnishing all necessary labor, material, and equipment.

If it is found that the uncovered Work is defective, Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and
damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other
professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to
such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, and testing, and of satisfactory replacement or
reconstruction (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others); and
Owner shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price. If the parties are unable to agree
as to the amount thereof, Owner may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05.

If the uncovered Work is not found to be defective, Contractor shall be allowed an increase in the
Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times, or both, directly attributable to such uncovering,
exposure, observation, inspection, testing, replacement, and reconstruction. If the parties are unable to
agree as to the amount or extent thereof, Contractor may make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph
10.05.

Owner May Stop the Work

A.

If the Work is defective, or Contractor fails to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or
equipment, or fails to perform the Work in such a way that the completed Work will conform to the
Contract Documents, Owner may order Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the
cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of Owner to stop the Work shall not give
rise to any duty on the part of Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of Contractor, any
Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other individual or entity, or any surety for, or employee or agent of any
of them.

Correction or Removal of Defective Work

A.

Promptly after receipt of written notice, Contractor shall correct all defective Work, whether or not
fabricated, installed, or completed, or, if the Work has been rejected by Engineer, remove it from the
Project and replace it with Work that is not defective. Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and
damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other
professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to
such correction or removal (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of
others).

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 44 of 55




B.

When correcting defective Work under the terms of this Paragraph 13.06 or Paragraph 13.07, Contractor
shall take no action that would void or otherwise impair Owner’s special warranty and guarantee, if any,
on said Work.

13.07 Correction Period

13.08

A

If within one year after the date of Substantial Completion (or such longer period of time as may be
prescribed by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the Contract Documents) or by
any specific provision of the Contract Documents, any Work is found to be defective, or if the repair of
any damages to the land or areas made available for Contractor’s use by Owner or permitted by Laws and
Regulations as contemplated in Paragraph 6.11.A is found to be defective, Contractor shall promptly,
without cost to Owner and in accordance with Owner’s written instructions:

1. repair such defective land or areas; or
2. correct such defective Work; or

3. if the defective Work has been rejected by Owner, remove it from the Project and replace it with
Work that is not defective, and

4. satisfactorily correct or repair or remove and replace any damage to other Work, to the work of others
or other land or areas resulting therefrom.

If Contractor does not promptly comply with the terms of Owner’s written instructions, or in an
emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage, Owner may have the defective Work
corrected or repaired or may have the rejected Work removed and replaced. All claims, costs, losses, and
damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other
professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to
such correction or repair or such removal and replacement (including but not limited to all costs of repair
or replacement of work of others) will be paid by Contractor.

In special circumstances where a particular item of equipment is placed in continuous service before
Substantial Completion of all the Work, the correction period for that item may start to run from an
earlier date if so provided in the Specifications.

Where defective Work (and damage to other Work resulting therefrom) has been corrected or removed
and replaced under this Paragraph 13.07, the correction period hereunder with respect to such Work will
be extended for an additional period of one year after such correction or removal and replacement has
been satisfactorily completed.

Contractor’s obligations under this Paragraph 13.07 are in addition to any other obligation or warranty.
The provisions of this Paragraph 13.07 shall not be construed as a substitute for, or a waiver of, the
provisions of any applicable statute of limitation or repose.

Acceptance of Defective Work

A.

If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of defective Work, Owner (and, prior to
Engineer’s recommendation of final payment, Engineer) prefers to accept it, Owner may do so.
Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other
dispute resolution costs) attributable to Owner’s evaluation of and determination to accept such defective
Work (such costs to be approved by Engineer as to reasonableness) and for the diminished value of the

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 45 of 55




Work to the extent not otherwise paid by Contractor pursuant to this sentence. If any such acceptance
occurs prior to Engineer’s recommendation of final payment, a Change Order will be issued incorporating
the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work, and Owner shall be entitled
to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price, reflecting the diminished value of Work so accepted. If
the parties are unable to agree as to the amount thereof, Owner may make a Claim therefor as provided in
Paragraph 10.05. If the acceptance occurs after such recommendation, an appropriate amount will be paid
by Contractor to Owner.

13.09 Owner May Correct Defective Work

A. If Contractor fails within a reasonable time after written notice from Engineer to correct defective Work,
or to remove and replace rejected Work as required by Engineer in accordance with Paragraph 13.06.A,
or if Contractor fails to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or if Contractor
fails to comply with any other provision of the Contract Documents, Owner may, after seven days written
notice to Contractor, correct, or remedy any such deficiency.

B. In exercising the rights and remedies under this Paragraph 13.09, Owner shall proceed expeditiously. In
connection with such corrective or remedial action, Owner may exclude Contractor from all or part of the
Site, take possession of all or part of the Work and suspend Contractor’s services related thereto, take
possession of Contractor’s tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery at the Site, and
incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid
Contractor but which are stored elsewhere. Contractor shall allow Owner, Owner’s representatives,
agents and employees, Owner’s other contractors, and Engineer and Engineer’s consultants access to the
Site to enable Owner to exercise the rights and remedies under this Paragraph.

C. All claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers,
architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs)
incurred or sustained by Owner in exercising the rights and remedies under this Paragraph 13.09 will be
charged against Contractor, and a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in
the Contract Documents with respect to the Work; and Owner shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease
in the Contract Price. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount of the adjustment, Owner may
make a Claim therefor as provided in Paragraph 10.05. Such claims, costs, losses and damages will
include but not be limited to all costs of repair, or replacement of work of others destroyed or damaged by
correction, removal, or replacement of Contractor’s defective Work.

D. Contractor shall not be allowed an extension of the Contract Times because of any delay in the
performance of the Work attributable to the exercise by Owner of Owner’s rights and remedies under this
Paragraph 13.09.
ARTICLE 14 - PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR AND COMPLETION
14.01 Schedule of Values
A. The Schedule of Values established as provided in Paragraph 2.07.A will serve as the basis for progress

payments and will be incorporated into a form of Application for Payment acceptable to Engineer.
Progress payments on account of Unit Price Work will be based on the number of units completed.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 46 of 55




14.02 Progress Payments

A. Applications for Payments:

1.

3.

At least 20 days before the date established in the Agreement for each progress payment (but not
more often than once a month), Contractor shall submit to Engineer for review an Application for
Payment filled out and signed by Contractor covering the Work completed as of the date of the
Application and accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract
Documents. If payment is requested on the basis of materials and equipment not incorporated in the
Work but delivered and suitably stored at the Site or at another location agreed to in writing, the
Application for Payment shall also be accompanied by a bill of sale, invoice, or other documentation
warranting that Owner has received the materials and equipment free and clear of all Liens and
evidence that the materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance or other
arrangements to protect Owner’s interest therein, all of which must be satisfactory to Owner.

Beginning with the second Application for Payment, each Application shall include an affidavit of
Contractor stating that all previous progress payments received on account of the Work have been
applied on account to discharge Contractor’s legitimate obligations associated with prior
Applications for Payment.

The amount of retainage with respect to progress payments will be as stipulated in the Agreement.

B. Review of Applications:

1.

Engineer will, within 10 days after receipt of each Application for Payment, either indicate in writing
a recommendation of payment and present the Application to Owner or return the Application to
Contractor indicating in writing Engineer’s reasons for refusing to recommend payment. In the latter
case, Contractor may make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application.

Engineer’s recommendation of any payment requested in an Application for Payment will constitute
a representation by Engineer to Owner, based on Engineer’s observations of the executed Work as an
experienced and qualified design professional, and on Engineer’s review of the Application for
Payment and the accompanying data and schedules, that to the best of Engineer’s knowledge,
information and belief:

a. the Work has progressed to the point indicated;

b. the quality of the Work is generally in accordance with the Contract Documents (subject to an
evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon Substantial Completion, the
results of any subsequent tests called for in the Contract Documents, a final determination of
quantities and classifications for Unit Price Work under Paragraph 9.07, and any other
qualifications stated in the recommendation); and

c. the conditions precedent to Contractor’s being entitled to such payment appear to have been
fulfilled in so far as it is Engineer’s responsibility to observe the Work.

By recommending any such payment Engineer will not thereby be deemed to have represented that:

a. inspections made to check the quality or the quantity of the Work as it has been performed have
been exhaustive, extended to every aspect of the Work in progress, or involved detailed
inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer in the
Contract Documents; or

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 47 of 55




b.

there may not be other matters or issues between the parties that might entitle Contractor to be
paid additionally by Owner or entitle Owner to withhold payment to Contractor.

4. Neither Engineer’s review of Contractor’s Work for the purposes of recommending payments nor
Engineer’s recommendation of any payment, including final payment, will impose responsibility on

Engineer:

a. to supervise, direct, or control the Work, or

b. for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety
precautions and programs incident thereto, or

c. for Contractor’s failure to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor’s
performance of the Work, or

d. to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes Contractor has used the moneys
paid on account of the Contract Price, or

e. to determine that title to any of the Work, materials, or equipment has passed to Owner free and

clear of any Liens.

5. Engineer may refuse to recommend the whole or any part of any payment if, in Engineer’s opinion, it
would be incorrect to make the representations to Owner stated in Paragraph 14.02.B.2. Engineer
may also refuse to recommend any such payment or, because of subsequently discovered evidence or
the results of subsequent inspections or tests, revise or revoke any such payment recommendation
previously made, to such extent as may be necessary in Engineer’s opinion to protect Owner from
loss because:

the Work is defective, or completed Work has been damaged, requiring correction or
replacement;

the Contract Price has been reduced by Change Orders;

Owner has been required to correct defective Work or complete Work in accordance with
Paragraph 13.09; or

Engineer has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events enumerated in Paragraph
15.02.A.

C. Payment Becomes Due:

1. Ten days after presentation of the Application for Payment to Owner with Engineer’s
recommendation, the amount recommended will (subject to the provisions of Paragraph 14.02.D)
become due, and when due will be paid by Owner to Contractor.

D. Reduction in Payment:

1. Owner may refuse to make payment of the full amount recommended by Engineer because:

a.

claims have been made against Owner on account of Contractor’s performance or furnishing of
the Work;

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 48 of 55




14.03

14.04

b. Liens have been filed in connection with the Work, except where Contractor has delivered a
specific bond satisfactory to Owner to secure the satisfaction and discharge of such Liens;

c. there are other items entitling Owner to a set-off against the amount recommended; or

d. Owner has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events enumerated in Paragraphs
14.02.B.5.a through 14.02.B.5.c or Paragraph 15.02.A.

2. If Owner refuses to make payment of the full amount recommended by Engineer, Owner will give
Contractor immediate written notice (with a copy to Engineer) stating the reasons for such action and
promptly pay Contractor any amount remaining after deduction of the amount so withheld. Owner
shall promptly pay Contractor the amount so withheld, or any adjustment thereto agreed to by Owner
and Contractor, when Contractor remedies the reasons for such action.

3. Upon a subsequent determination that Owner’s refusal of payment was not justified, the amount
wrongfully withheld shall be treated as an amount due as determined by Paragraph 14.02.C.1 and
subject to interest as provided in the Agreement.

Contractor’s Warranty of Title

A. Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials, and equipment covered by any
Application for Payment, whether incorporated in the Project or not, will pass to Owner no later than the
time of payment free and clear of all Liens.

Substantial Completion

A. When Contractor considers the entire Work ready for its intended use Contractor shall notify Owner and
Engineer in writing that the entire Work is substantially complete (except for items specifically listed by
Contractor as incomplete) and request that Engineer issue a certificate of Substantial Completion.

B. Promptly after Contractor’s notification, Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall make an inspection of the
Work to determine the status of completion. If Engineer does not consider the Work substantially
complete, Engineer will notify Contractor in writing giving the reasons therefor.

C. If Engineer considers the Work substantially complete, Engineer will deliver to Owner a tentative
certificate of Substantial Completion which shall fix the date of Substantial Completion. There shall be
attached to the certificate a tentative list of items to be completed or corrected before final payment.
Owner shall have seven days after receipt of the tentative certificate during which to make written
objection to Engineer as to any provisions of the certificate or attached list. If, after considering such
objections, Engineer concludes that the Work is not substantially complete, Engineer will, within 14 days
after submission of the tentative certificate to Owner, notify Contractor in writing, stating the reasons
therefor. If, after consideration of Owner’s objections, Engineer considers the Work substantially
complete, Engineer will, within said 14 days, execute and deliver to Owner and Contractor a definitive
certificate of Substantial Completion (with a revised tentative list of items to be completed or corrected)
reflecting such changes from the tentative certificate as Engineer believes justified after consideration of
any objections from Owner.

D. At the time of delivery of the tentative certificate of Substantial Completion, Engineer will deliver to
Owner and Contractor a written recommendation as to division of responsibilities pending final payment
between Owner and Contractor with respect to security, operation, safety, and protection of the Work,
maintenance, heat, utilities, insurance, and warranties and guarantees. Unless Owner and Contractor
agree otherwise in writing and so inform Engineer in writing prior to Engineer’s issuing the definitive

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 49 of 55




certificate of Substantial Completion, Engineer’s aforesaid recommendation will be binding on Owner
and Contractor until final payment.

E. Owner shall have the right to exclude Contractor from the Site after the date of Substantial Completion
subject to allowing Contractor reasonable access to remove its property and complete or correct items on
the tentative list.

14.05 Partial Utilization

A. Prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work, Owner may use or occupy any substantially completed
part of the Work which has specifically been identified in the Contract Documents, or which Owner,
Engineer, and Contractor agree constitutes a separately functioning and usable part of the Work that can
be used by Owner for its intended purpose without significant interference with Contractor’s performance
of the remainder of the Work, subject to the following conditions:

1. Owner at any time may request Contractor in writing to permit Owner to use or occupy any such part
of the Work which Owner believes to be ready for its intended use and substantially complete. If and
when Contractor agrees that such part of the Work is substantially complete, Contractor, Owner, and
Engineer will follow the procedures of Paragraph 14.04.A through D for that part of the Work.

2. Contractor at any time may notify Owner and Engineer in writing that Contractor considers any such
part of the Work ready for its intended use and substantially complete and request Engineer to issue a
certificate of Substantial Completion for that part of the Work.

3. Within a reasonable time after either such request, Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall make an
inspection of that part of the Work to determine its status of completion. If Engineer does not
consider that part of the Work to be substantially complete, Engineer will notify Owner and
Contractor in writing giving the reasons therefor. If Engineer considers that part of the Work to be
substantially complete, the provisions of Paragraph 14.04 will apply with respect to certification of
Substantial Completion of that part of the Work and the division of responsibility in respect thereof
and access thereto.

4. No use or occupancy or separate operation of part of the Work may occur prior to compliance with
the requirements of Paragraph 5.10 regarding property insurance.

14.06 Final Inspection

A. Upon written notice from Contractor that the entire Work or an agreed portion thereof is complete,
Engineer will promptly make a final inspection with Owner and Contractor and will notify Contractor in
writing of all particulars in which this inspection reveals that the Work is incomplete or defective.
Contractor shall immediately take such measures as are necessary to complete such Work or remedy such
deficiencies.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 50 of 55




14.07 Final Payment

A. Application for Payment:

1.

After Contractor has, in the opinion of Engineer, satisfactorily completed all corrections identified
during the final inspection and has delivered, in accordance with the Contract Documents, all
maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates or other evidence
of insurance, certificates of inspection, marked-up record documents (as provided in Paragraph 6.12),
and other documents, Contractor may make application for final payment following the procedure for
progress payments.

The final Application for Payment shall be accompanied (except as previously delivered) by:

a. all documentation called for in the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the evidence
of insurance required by Paragraph 5.04.B.6;

b. consent of the surety, if any, to final payment;
c. alistof all Claims against Owner that Contractor believes are unsettled; and

d. complete and legally effective releases or waivers (satisfactory to Owner) of all Lien rights
arising out of or Liens filed in connection with the Work.

In lieu of the releases or waivers of Liens specified in Paragraph 14.07.A.2 and as approved by
Owner, Contractor may furnish receipts or releases in full and an affidavit of Contractor that: (i) the
releases and receipts include all labor, services, material, and equipment for which a Lien could be
filed; and (ii) all payrolls, material and equipment bills, and other indebtedness connected with the
Work for which Owner might in any way be responsible, or which might in any way result in liens or
other burdens on Owner's property, have been paid or otherwise satisfied. If any Subcontractor or
Supplier fails to furnish such a release or receipt in full, Contractor may furnish a bond or other
collateral satisfactory to Owner to indemnify Owner against any Lien.

B. Engineer’s Review of Application and Acceptance:

1.

If, on the basis of Engineer’s observation of the Work during construction and final inspection, and
Engineer’s review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation as required
by the Contract Documents, Engineer is satisfied that the Work has been completed and Contractor’s
other obligations under the Contract Documents have been fulfilled, Engineer will, within ten days
after receipt of the final Application for Payment, indicate in writing Engineer’s recommendation of
payment and present the Application for Payment to Owner for payment. At the same time Engineer
will also give written notice to Owner and Contractor that the Work is acceptable subject to the
provisions of Paragraph 14.09. Otherwise, Engineer will return the Application for Payment to
Contractor, indicating in writing the reasons for refusing to recommend final payment, in which case
Contractor shall make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application for Payment.

C. Payment Becomes Due:

1.

Thirty days after the presentation to Owner of the Application for Payment and accompanying
documentation, the amount recommended by Engineer, less any sum Owner is entitled to set off
against Engineer’s recommendation, including but not limited to liquidated damages, will become
due and will be paid by Owner to Contractor.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 51 of 55




14.08 Final Completion Delayed

A. If, through no fault of Contractor, final completion of the Work is significantly delayed, and if Engineer
so confirms, Owner shall, upon receipt of Contractor’s final Application for Payment (for Work fully
completed and accepted) and recommendation of Engineer, and without terminating the Contract, make
payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining
balance to be held by Owner for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than the retainage
stipulated in the Agreement, and if bonds have been furnished as required in Paragraph 5.01, the written
consent of the surety to the payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and
accepted shall be submitted by Contractor to Engineer with the Application for such payment. Such
payment shall be made under the terms and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not
constitute a waiver of Claims.

14.09 Waiver of Claims
A. The making and acceptance of final payment will constitute:
1. awaiver of all Claims by Owner against Contractor, except Claims arising from unsettled Liens, from
defective Work appearing after final inspection pursuant to Paragraph 14.06, from failure to comply
with the Contract Documents or the terms of any special guarantees specified therein, or from

Contractor’s continuing obligations under the Contract Documents; and

2. awaiver of all Claims by Contractor against Owner other than those previously made in accordance
with the requirements herein and expressly acknowledged by Owner in writing as still unsettled.

ARTICLE 15 - SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION
15.01 Owner May Suspend Work
A. At any time and without cause, Owner may suspend the Work or any portion thereof for a period of not
more than 90 consecutive days by notice in writing to Contractor and Engineer which will fix the date on
which Work will be resumed. Contractor shall resume the Work on the date so fixed. Contractor shall be
granted an adjustment in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times, or both, directly
attributable to any such suspension if Contractor makes a Claim therefore as provided in Paragraph 10.05.
15.02 Owner May Terminate for Cause
A. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events will justify termination for cause:
1. Contractor’s persistent failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents
(including, but not limited to, failure to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or
equipment or failure to adhere to the Progress Schedule established under Paragraph 2.07 as adjusted
from time to time pursuant to Paragraph 6.04);
2. Contractor’s disregard of Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction;
3. Contractor’s repeated disregard of the authority of Engineer; or

4. Contractor’s violation in any substantial way of any provisions of the Contract Documents.

B. If one or more of the events identified in Paragraph 15.02.A occur, Owner may, after giving Contractor
(and surety) seven days written notice of its intent to terminate the services of Contractor:

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 52 of 55




1. exclude Contractor from the Site, and take possession of the Work and of all Contractor’s tools,
appliances, construction equipment, and machinery at the Site, and use the same to the full extent
they could be used by Contractor (without liability to Contractor for trespass or conversion);

2. incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid
Contractor but which are stored elsewhere; and

3. complete the Work as Owner may deem expedient.

C. If Owner proceeds as provided in Paragraph 15.02.B, Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any
further payment until the Work is completed. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price exceeds all
claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers,
architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs)
sustained by Owner arising out of or relating to completing the Work, such excess will be paid to
Contractor. If such claims, costs, losses, and damages exceed such unpaid balance, Contractor shall pay
the difference to Owner. Such claims, costs, losses, and damages incurred by Owner will be reviewed by
Engineer as to their reasonableness and, when so approved by Engineer, incorporated in a Change Order.
When exercising any rights or remedies under this Paragraph, Owner shall not be required to obtain the
lowest price for the Work performed.

D. Notwithstanding Paragraphs 15.02.B and 15.02.C, Contractor’s services will not be terminated if
Contractor begins within seven days of receipt of notice of intent to terminate to correct its failure to
perform and proceeds diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt of said notice.

E. Where Contractor’s services have been so terminated by Owner, the termination will not affect any rights
or remedies of Owner against Contractor then existing or which may thereafter accrue. Any retention or
payment of moneys due Contractor by Owner will not release Contractor from liability.

F. If and to the extent that Contractor has provided a performance bond under the provisions of Paragraph
5.01.A, the termination procedures of that bond shall supersede the provisions of Paragraphs 15.02.B and
15.02.C.

15.03 Owner May Terminate For Convenience

A. Upon seven days written notice to Contractor and Engineer, Owner may, without cause and without
prejudice to any other right or remedy of Owner, terminate the Contract. In such case, Contractor shall be
paid for (without duplication of any items):

1. completed and acceptable Work executed in accordance with the Contract Documents prior to the
effective date of termination, including fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such
Work;

2. expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing services and furnishing
labor, materials, or equipment as required by the Contract Documents in connection with
uncompleted Work, plus fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such expenses;

3. all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers,
architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution
costs) incurred in settlement of terminated contracts with Subcontractors, Suppliers, and others; and

4. reasonable expenses directly attributable to termination.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 53 of 55




B. Contractor shall not be paid on account of loss of anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss
arising out of or resulting from such termination.

15.04 Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate

A. If, through no act or fault of Contractor, (i) the Work is suspended for more than 90 consecutive days by
Owner or under an order of court or other public authority, or (ii) Engineer fails to act on any Application
for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or (iii) Owner fails for 30 days to pay Contractor any
sum finally determined to be due, then Contractor may, upon seven days written notice to Owner and
Engineer, and provided Owner or Engineer do not remedy such suspension or failure within that time,
terminate the Contract and recover from Owner payment on the same terms as provided in Paragraph
15.03.

B. In lieu of terminating the Contract and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, if Engineer has
failed to act on an Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or Owner has failed for
30 days to pay Contractor any sum finally determined to be due, Contractor may, seven days after written
notice to Owner and Engineer, stop the Work until payment is made of all such amounts due Contractor,
including interest thereon. The provisions of this Paragraph 15.04 are not intended to preclude Contractor
from making a Claim under Paragraph 10.05 for an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times or
otherwise for expenses or damage directly attributable to Contractor’s stopping the Work as permitted by
this Paragraph.

ARTICLE 16 - DISPUTE RESOLUTION
16.01 Methods and Procedures

A. Either Owner or Contractor may request mediation of any Claim submitted to Engineer for a decision
under Paragraph 10.05 before such decision becomes final and binding. The mediation will be governed
by the Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association in effect as of the
Effective Date of the Agreement. The request for mediation shall be submitted in writing to the American
Avrbitration Association and the other party to the Contract. Timely submission of the request shall stay
the effect of Paragraph 10.05.E.

B. Owner and Contractor shall participate in the mediation process in good faith. The process shall be
concluded within 60 days of filing of the request. The date of termination of the mediation shall be
determined by application of the mediation rules referenced above.

C. If the Claim is not resolved by mediation, Engineer’s action under Paragraph 10.05.C or a denial pursuant
to Paragraphs 10.05.C.3 or 10.05.D shall become final and binding 30 days after termination of the
mediation unless, within that time period, Owner or Contractor:

1. elects in writing to invoke any dispute resolution process provided for in the Supplementary
Conditions; or

2. agrees with the other party to submit the Claim to another dispute resolution process; or

3. gives written notice to the other party of the intent to submit the Claim to a court of competent
jurisdiction.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 54 of 55




ARTICLE 17— MISCELLANEOUS

17.01

17.02

17.03

17.04

17.05

17.06

Giving Notice

A. Whenever any provision of the Contract Documents requires the giving of written notice, it will be
deemed to have been validly given if:

1. delivered in person to the individual or to a member of the firm or to an officer of the corporation for
whom it is intended; or

2. delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the last business address known
to the giver of the notice.

Computation of Times

A. When any period of time is referred to in the Contract Documents by days, it will be computed to exclude
the first and include the last day of such period. If the last day of any such period falls on a Saturday or
Sunday or on a day made a legal holiday by the law of the applicable jurisdiction, such day will be
omitted from the computation.

Cumulative Remedies

A. The duties and obligations imposed by these General Conditions and the rights and remedies available
hereunder to the parties hereto are in addition to, and are not to be construed in any way as a limitation of,
any rights and remedies available to any or all of them which are otherwise imposed or available by Laws
or Regulations, by special warranty or guarantee, or by other provisions of the Contract Documents. The
provisions of this Paragraph will be as effective as if repeated specifically in the Contract Documents in
connection with each particular duty, obligation, right, and remedy to which they apply.

Survival of Obligations

A. All representations, indemnifications, warranties, and guarantees made in, required by, or given in
accordance with the Contract Documents, as well as all continuing obligations indicated in the Contract
Documents, will survive final payment, completion, and acceptance of the Work or termination or
completion of the Contract or termination of the services of Contractor.

Controlling Law

A. This Contract is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is located.

Headings

A. Atrticle and paragraph headings are inserted for convenience only and do not constitute parts of these
General Conditions.

EJCDC C-700 Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 55 of 55




SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

These Supplementary Conditions amend or supplement the Standard General Conditions of the
Construction Contract, EJCDC C-700 (2007 Edition). All provisions which are not so amended or
supplemented remain in full force and effect.

The terms used in these Supplementary Conditions have the meanings stated in the General
Conditions. Additional terms used in these Supplementary Conditions have the meanings stated
below, which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof.

The address system used in these Supplementary Conditions is the same as the address system used in
the General Conditions, with the prefix "'SC" added thereto.

SC-2.02

SC-4.02

SC-4.05

Copies of Documents
SC-2.02 Delete Paragraph 2.02.A in its entirety and insert the following in its place:

A. Owner shall furnish to Contractor up to 2 printed or hard copies of the
Drawings and Project Manual and one set in electronic format. Additional
copies will be furnished upon request at the cost of reproduction.

Subsurface and Physical Conditions
SC-4.02 Delete Paragraphs 4.02.A and 4.02.B in their entirety and insert the following:

A. No reports of explorations or tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to
the Site, or drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or
subsurface structures at the Site, are known to Owner.

Reference Points
SC-4.05 Delete Paragraph 4.05 A in its entirety and insert the following:

A. Owner shall provide engineering surveys to establish reference
points and offsets for construction which in Engineer’s judgment are
necessary to enable Contractor to proceed with the Work.
Contractor shall be responsible for laying out the Work, shall
protect and preserve the established reference points, offsets, and
property monuments, and shall make no changes or relocations
without the prior written approval of Owner. Contractor shall
report to Engineer whenever any reference point, offsets or
property monument is lost or destroyed or requires relocation
because of necessary changes in grades or locations, and shall be
responsible for the accurate replacement or relocation of such
reference points, offsets, or property monuments by professionally
qualified personnel.

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS
Page 1



SC-4.06

SC-5.04

Hazardous Environmental Conditions
SC-4.06 Delete Paragraphs 4.06.A and 4.06.B in their entirety and insert the following:

A. No reports or drawings related to Hazardous Environmental Conditions at the
Site are known to Owner.

B. Not Used.
Contractor’s Liability Insurance
SC-5.04 Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 5.04.B:
C. The limits of liability for the insurance required by Paragraph 5.04 of the
General Conditions shall provide coverage for not less than the following

amounts or greater where required by Laws and Regulations:

1. Workers’ Compensation, and related coverages under Paragraphs
5.04.A.1 and A.2 of the General Conditions:

a. State: Statutory
b. Applicable Federal

(e.g., Longshoreman’s): Statutory
c. Employer’s Liability: $ 500,000

2. Contractor’s General Liability under Paragraphs 5.04.A.3 through
A6 of the General Conditions which shall include completed
operations and product liability coverages and eliminate the exclusion
with respect to property under the care, custody and control of
Contractor:

a. General Aggregate $1,000,000

b. Products - Completed
Operations Aggregate $ 500,000

c. Personal and Advertising
Injury $1,000,000

d. Each Occurrence
(Bodily Injury and
Property Damage) $1,000,000
e. Property Damage liability insurance will provide
Explosion, Collapse, and Under-ground coverages
where applicable.
f.  Excess or Umbrella Liability
O General Aggregate $1,000,000

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS
Page 2



O Each Occurrence $1,000,000

3. Automobile Liability under Paragraph 5.04.A.6 of the General

Conditions:
a. Bodily Injury:
Each person $ 500,000
Each accident $1,000,000
b. Property Damage:
Each Accident $500,000
[or]
a. Combined Single Limit of $500,000

4. The Contractual Liability coverage required by Paragraph 5.04.B.4 of
the General Conditions shall provide coverage for not less than the
following amounts:

a. Bodily Injury:
Each person $1.000.000
Each Accident $1.000.000
b. Property Damage:
Each Accident $500.000
Annual Aggregate $500.000

5. The Owner, and Clapsaddle-Garber Associates Inc. shall be
named as additional insured.

SC-5.06 Property Insurance

GC-5.06.A.1 refers to other individuals or entities that are to be identified in SCs as being entitled to protection
as loss payees under the property insurance on the Work. In such cases use the following:

SC-5.06.A.1 Add the following new subparagraph after subparagraph GC-5.06.A.1:
a. In addition to the individuals and entities specified, include as loss

payees the following: The Owner, and Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc.
shall be named as additional insured.

SC-6.06 Concerning Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others

SC-6.06 Add a new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 6.06.G:

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS
Page 3



H. Owner may furnish to any Subcontractor or Supplier, to the extent practicable,
information about amounts paid to Contractor on account of Work performed
for Contractor by a particular Subcontractor or Supplier.

SC-6.17 Shop Drawings and Samples
SC-6.17 Add the following new paragraphs immediately after Paragraph 6.17.E:

F. Contractor shall furnish required submittals with sufficient information and
accuracy in order to obtain required approval of an item with no more than
three submittals. Engineer will record Engineer’s time for reviewing
subsequent submittals of Shop Drawings, samples, or other items requiring
approval and Contractor shall reimburse Owner for Engineer’s charges for
such time.

G. In the event that Contractor requests a change of a previously approved item,
Contractor shall reimburse Owner for Engineer’s charges for its review time
unless the need for such change is beyond the control of Contractor.

SC-9.03 Project Representative

As indicated in GC-9.03, in those cases in which the Engineer will provide a Resident Project Representative
(RPR) during construction, the authority and responsibilities of the RPR and any assistants must be specified
in the Supplementary Conditions; thus this is a mandatory Supplementary Condition in such cases. The
following suggested language which parallels the working of Exhibit D to EJCDC E-500, the Standard Form
of Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services, should be edited to indicate the RPR
authority and responsibilities that apply to this project:

SC-9.03 Add the following new paragraphs immediately after Paragraph 9.03.A:

B. The Resident Project Representative (RPR) will be Engineer's employee or
agent at the Site, will act as directed by and under the supervision of Engineer,
and will confer with Engineer regarding RPR's actions. RPR's dealings in
matters pertaining to the Work in general shall be with Engineer and
Contractor. RPR's dealings with Subcontractors shall be through or with the
full knowledge and approval of Contractor. The RPR shall:

1. Schedules: Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing
and Sample submittals, and schedule of values prepared by Contractor
and consult with Engineer concerning acceptability.

2. Conferences and Meetings: Attend meetings with Contractor, such as
preconstruction conferences, progress meetings, job conferences and
other project-related meetings, and prepare and circulate copies of
minutes thereof.

3. Liaison:

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS
Page 4



a. Serve as Engineer’s liaison with Contractor, working principally
through Contractor’s authorized representative, assist in providing
information regarding the intent of the Contract Documents.

b. Assist Engineer in serving as Owner’s liaison with Contractor when
Contractor’s operations affect Owner’s on-Site operations.

c. Assist in obtaining from Owner additional details or information,
when required for proper execution of the Work.

4. Interpretation of Contract Documents: Report to Engineer when
clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents are needed
and transmit to Contractor clarifications and interpretations as issued by
Engineer.

5. Shop Drawings and Samples:
a. Record date of receipt of Samples and approved Shop Drawings.

b. Receive Samples which are furnished at the Site by Contractor, and
notify Engineer of availability of Samples for examination.

6. Modifications: Consider and evaluate Contractor’s suggestions for
modifications in Drawings or Specifications and report such suggestions,
together with RPR’s recommendations, to Engineer. Transmit to
Contractor in writing decisions as issued by Engineer.

7. Review of Work and Rejection of Defective Work:

a. Conduct on-Site observations of Contractor’s work in progress to
assist Engineer in determining if the Work is in general proceeding
in accordance with the Contract Documents.

b. Report to Engineer whenever RPR believes that any part of
Contractor’s work in progress will not produce a completed Project
that conforms generally to the Contract Documents or will imperil
the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a
functioning whole as indicated in the Contract Documents, or has
been damaged, or does not meet the requirements of any inspection,
test or approval required to be made; and advise Engineer of that
part of work in progress that RPR believes should be corrected or
rejected or should be uncovered for observation, or requires special
testing, inspection or approval.

8. Inspections, Tests, and System Startups:

a. Verify that tests, equipment, and systems start-ups and operating and
maintenance training are conducted in the presence of appropriate
Owner’s personnel, and that Contractor maintains adequate records
thereof.

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS
Page 5



9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

b. Observe, record, and report to Engineer appropriate details relative
to the test procedures and systems start-ups.

Records:

a. Record names, addresses, fax numbers, e-mail addresses, web site
locations, and telephone numbers of all Contractors, Subcontractors,
and major Suppliers of materials and equipment.

b. Maintain records for use in preparing Project documentation.
Reports:

a. Furnish to Engineer periodic reports as required of progress of the
Work and of Contractor’s compliance with the progress schedule
and schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample submittals.

b. Draft and recommend to Engineer proposed Change Orders, Work
Change Directives, and Field Orders. Obtain backup material from
Contractor.

c. Immediately notify Engineer of the occurrence of any Site accidents,
emergencies, acts of God endangering the Work, damage to property
by fire or other causes, or the discovery of any Hazardous
Environmental Condition.

Payment Requests: Review Applications for Payment with Contractor
for compliance with the established procedure for their submission and
forward with recommendations to Engineer, noting particularly the
relationship of the payment requested to the schedule of values, Work
completed, and materials and equipment delivered at the Site but not
incorporated in the Work.

Certificates, Operation and Maintenance Manuals: During the course

of the Work, verify that materials and equipment certificates, operation
and maintenance manuals and other data required by the Specifications
to be assembled and furnished by Contractor are applicable to the items
actually installed and in accordance with the Contract Documents, and

have these documents delivered to Engineer for review and forwarding
to Owner prior to payment for that part of the Work.

Completion:

a. Participate in a Substantial Completion inspection, assist in the
determination of Substantial Completion and the preparation of lists
of items to be completed or corrected.

b. Participate in a final inspection in the company of Engineer, Owner,
and Contractor and prepare a final list of items to be completed and
deficiencies to be remedied.

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

Page 6



SC-11.03

C.

Observe whether all items on the final list have been completed or
corrected and make recommendations to Engineer concerning
acceptance and issuance of the Notice of Acceptability of the Work.

C. The RPR shall not:

1.

Unit Price Work

SC-11.03.B

SC-11.03.D

Authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or
substitution of materials or equipment (including “or-equal” items).

Exceed limitations of Engineer’s authority as set forth in the
Contract Documents.

Undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, Subcontractors,
Suppliers, or Contractor’s superintendent.

Advise on, issue directions relative to, or assume control over any
aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures
of Contractor’s work unless such advice or directions are
specifically required by the Contract Documents.

Advise on, issue directions regarding, or assume control over safety
practices, precautions, and programs in connection with the
activities or operations of Owner or Contractor.

Participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections
conducted off-site by others except as specifically authorized by
Engineer.

Accept Shop Drawing or Sample submittals from anyone other than
Contractor.

Authorize Owner to occupy the Project in whole or in part.

Add the following sentence immediately after the last sentence of the

paragraph.

Owner and Engineer reserve the right to adjust quantities.

Delete Paragraph 11.03.D in its entirety and insert the following in its place:

D. The unit price of an item of Unit Price Work shall be subject to reevaluation
and adjustment under the following conditions:

1. if the Bid price of a particular item of Unit Price Work amounts to
10 percent or more of the Contract Price and the variation in the quantity
of that particular item of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor differs
by more than 25 percent from the estimated quantity of such item indicated
in the Agreement; and

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

Page 7



2. if there is no corresponding adjustment with respect to any other item of
Work; and

3. if Contractor believes that Contractor has incurred additional expense as a
result thereof or if Owner believes that the quantity variation entitles
Owner to an adjustment in the unit price, either Owner or Contractor may
make a Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Price in accordance with
Article 10 if the parties are unable to agree as to the effect of any such
variations in the quantity of Unit Price Work performed.

SC-16.01 Methods and Procedure

As an alternative to the dispute resolution process set forth in the General Conditions (mediation followed by
litigation), the contract could pair final and binding arbitration with mediation. A discussion of the pros and cons
of the arbitration process (and there are many advocates on either side) is beyond the scope of this Guide.
Consultation with the Owner’s legal counsel is highly recommended. Users should also note that they will need
to insert the name of an arbitration agency, such as the American Arbitration Association or the CPR Institute
for Dispute Resolution, in SC-16.02.A. The mediation/arbitration option requires the following:

SC-16.01 Delete Paragraph 16.01.C in its entirety and insert the following in its place:

C. Ifthe Claim is not resolved by mediation, Engineer’s action under Paragraph
10.05.C or a denial pursuant to Paragraphs 10.05.C.3 or 10.05.D shall become
final and binding 30 days after termination of the mediation unless, within that
time period, Owner or Contractor:

1. elects in writing to demand arbitration of the Claim, pursuant to
Paragraph SC-16.02; or

2. agrees with the other party to submit the Claim to another dispute
resolution process.

SC-16.02 Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 16.01.
SC-16.02 Arbitration

A. All Claims or counterclaims, disputes, or other matters in question between
Owner and Contractor arising out of or relating to the Contract Documents or
the breach thereof (except for Claims which have been waived by the making
or acceptance of final payment as provided by Paragraph 14.09) including but
not limited to those not resolved under the provisions of Paragraphs
SC-16.01A and 16.01.B will be decided by arbitration in accordance with the
rules of [insert name of selected arbitration agency], subject to the conditions
and limitations of this Paragraph SC-16.02. This agreement to arbitrate and any
other agreement or consent to arbitrate entered into will be specifically
enforceable under the prevailing law of any court having jurisdiction.

B. The demand for arbitration will be filed in writing with the other party to the
Contract and with the selected arbitrator or arbitration provider, and a copy

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS
Page 8



will be sent to Engineer for information. The demand for arbitration will be
made within the 30 day period specified in Paragraph SC-16.01.C, and in all
other cases within a reasonable time after the Claim or counterclaim, dispute,
or other matter in question has arisen, and in no event shall any such demand
be made after the date when institution of legal or equitable proceedings based
on such Claim or other dispute or matter in question would be barred by the
applicable statue of limitations.

No arbitration arising out of or relating to the Contract Documents shall
include by consolidation, joinder, or in any other manner any other individual
or entity (including Engineer, and Engineer’s consultants and the officers,
directors, partners, agents, employees or consultants of any of them) who is not
a party to this Contract unless:

1. the inclusion of such other individual or entity is necessary if complete
relief is to be afforded among those who are already parties to the
arbitration; and

2. such other individual or entity is substantially involved in a question of
law or fact which is common to those who are already parties to the
arbitration and which will arise in such proceedings.

. The award rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be consistent with the agreement
of the parties, in writing, and include: (i) a concise breakdown of the award;
(it) a written explanation of the award specifically citing the Contract
Document provisions deemed applicable and relied on in making the award.

The award will be final. Judgment may be entered upon it in any court having
jurisdiction thereof, and it will not be subject to modification or appeal, subject
to provisions of the Controlling Law relating to vacating or modifying an
arbitral award.

The fees and expenses of the arbitrators and any arbitration service shall be
shared equally by Owner and Contractor.

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS
Page 9



ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

1.05

1.06

1.07

WORK COVERED BY CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

A. Work under this contract includes all work shown on the plans and described in these
specifications.

AGREEMENT
A. Construction work shall be by one separate unit priced agreement.
WORK SEQUENCE

A. Work shall be done by the Contractor in accordance with a work schedule and sequence
established by the Contractor. Work shall begin within 10 days of the Owner’s Notice to
Proceed, and work shall proceed continuously until complete.

CONTRACTOR USE OF PREMISES

A. Limit use of premises to Work and construction operations, to allow for public access.
B. Coordinate use of premises under direction of ENGINEER>

APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT
A. Submit each application using the payment items listed in the Proposal.
COORDINATION

A. Coordinate Work of various sections of Specifications to assure efficient and orderly
sequence of installation of construction elements, with provisions for accommodating items
installed later.

B. Verify characteristics of elements of interrelated operating equipment are compatible;
coordinate Work of various sections having interdependent responsibilities for installing,
connecting to, and placing in service, such equipment.

C. Execute cutting and patching to integrate elements of Work, uncover ill-timed, defective,
and nonconforming work, provide openings for penetrations of existing surfaces, and
provide samples for testing.

FIELD ENGINEERING

A. Contractors shall be responsible for the layout of Work including setting exact grades,
lines, and levels from Engineer provided offsets so that Work can be done in accordance
with the plans.

B. Control datum survey will be established by the OWNER. The OWNER will establish
horizontal and vertical control through the project by locating control points and setting
elevations at control points.

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS
PAGE 1



1.08

1.09

1.10

111

BUILDING CODES AND PERMITS

A.

B.

CONTRACTOR shall obtain and pay for all construction permits and licenses. OWNER
shall assist CONTRACTOR, when necessary, in obtaining such permits and licenses.

Pay all government charges and inspection fees necessary for prosecution of Work, which
are applicable at time of opening of Bids. Pay all charges of utility service companies for
connections to Work. OWNER will pay all charges of such companies for capital costs
related thereto.

Give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, building and construction codes,
rules, and regulations applicable to Work. If CONTRACTOR observes that Specifications
or Drawings are at variance therewith, give ENGINEER prompt written notice thereof, and
any necessary changes shall be adjusted by appropriate Modification.

If CONTRACTOR performs any Work knowing or having reason to know that it is
contrary to such laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations, and without such notice to
ENGINEER, CONTRACTOR shall bear all costs arising therefrom; however, it shall not
be CONTRACTOR’S primary responsibility to make certain that Specifications and
Drawings are in accordance with such laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations.

TAXES

A.

Pay all sales, consumer, use and other similar taxes required to be paid by it in accordance
with law of place of Project.

JOB SITE ADMINISTRATION

A

D.

CONTRACTOR shall provide competent, suitably qualified personnel to lay out Work and
perform construction as required by Contract Documents. CONTRACTOR shall at all
times maintain good discipline and order at site.

Except in connection with safety or protection of persons or Work or property at site or
adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise indicated in Contract Documents, all Work at site
shall be performed during regular working hours, and CONTRACTOR shall not perform
work outside of normal working hours without written authorization from owner.
Incompetent or incorrigible employees shall be dismissed from Work by CONTRACTOR
or its representative when requested by ENGINEER, and such persons shall not again be
permitted to return to Work without written consent of ENGINEER.

Workmanship shall be of best quality.

COPIES OF DRAWINGS AND PROJECT MANUALS

A

B.

After Notice of Award, CONTRACTOR may obtain, at no charge, maximum of 5 complete
sets of full-size Drawings, as listed in project manual, and 5 sets of project manuals.
Unless digital files are supplied. (See Supplementary Conditions)

Additional copies of project manuals and full-size Drawings may be obtained under
following conditions:

1. Project Manuals:

a. Furnished at ENGINEER'’S reproduction cost plus handling charge.

b. If CONTRACTOR’S requirement for additional project manuals necessitates
reprinting of project manuals, CONTRACTOR shall pay entire cost of such
reprinting.

c. Partial sets of project manuals will not be provided.

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS
PAGE 2



2. Full-size Drawings:
a. Complete sets of full-size Drawings may be purchased from ENGINEER at
ENGINEER’S reproduction cost plus handling charge per set.
b. Complete sets of reproducible prints of full-size Drawings may be purchased from
ENGINEER at ENGINEER'’S reproduction cost plus handling charge per set.
C. Revised Drawings and project manuals, if required, will be provided by ENGINEER to
show authorized changes or extra Work under following conditions:

1. Project Manuals: Furnished at no charge, in same quantity as original issuance.
2. Full-size Drawings:

a. One revised, complete set of full-size Drawings will be issued, at no charge, for
each full-size set originally issued.

b. One revised, complete set of full-size Drawings will be issued, at no charge, for
each full-size set originally issued, and for each full-size set purchased by
CONTRACTOR after Notice of Award, up to 4 copies maximum.

c. One full-size reproducible set will be issued to accommodate fifth and subsequent
sets purchased by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall use reproducible set to
complete printing for additional Drawings in its possession.

1.12 REFERENCE STANDARDS

A. For products specified by association or trade standards, comply with requirements of
standard, except when more rigid requirements are specified or are required by applicable
codes.

B. Date of standard is that in effect as of Bid date, or date of Agreement when there are no
Bids, except when specific date is specified.

C. When required by individual Specifications Section, obtain copy of standard. Maintain
copy at job site during submittals, planning, and progress of specific work, until Substantial
Completion.

D. Abbreviations used in Drawings and Specifications are as specified in ANSI Y1.1 and
IEEE 260.

1.13 SCHEDULE OF REFERENCES

AASHTO — American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials.
ASTM — American Society for Testing and Materials.

OSHA — Occupational Safety and Health Administration.

IDOT — lowa Department of Transportation

OCOw>

1.14 QUALITY CONTROL, GENERAL
A. Maintain quality control over suppliers, manufacturers, products, services, Site conditions,
and workmanship, to produce Work of specified quality.
1.15 WORKMANSHIP
A. Comply with industry standards except when more restrictive tolerances or specified

requirements indicate more rigid standards or more precise workmanship.
B. Perform Work by persons qualified to produce workmanship of specified quality.

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS
PAGE 3



C.

Secure products in place with positive anchorage devices designed and sized to withstand
stresses, vibration, and racking.

1.16 MANUFACTURERS’ INSTRUCTIONS

A.

Comply with instructions in full detail, including each step in sequence. Should instructions
conflict with Contract Documents, request clarification from ENGINEER before proceeding.

1.17 MANUFACTURERS’ CERTIFICATES

A.

When required by individual Specifications section, submit manufacturer’s certificate, in
duplicate, that products meet or exceed specified requirements.

1.18 CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES

A.

B.

Comply with procedures stated in General Conditions of Contract for issuance of Certificate
of Substantial Completion.

When CONTRACTOR considers Work has reached final completion, submit written
certification that Contract Documents have been reviewed, Work has been inspected, and
that Work is complete in accordance with Contract Documents and ready for ENGINEER’S
inspection.

In addition to submittals required by conditions of Agreement, provide submittals required
by governing authorities, and submit final statement of accounting giving total adjusted
Contract Price, previous payments, and sum remaining due.

ENGINEER will issue final change order reflecting approved adjustments to Contract Price
not previously made by Change Order.

1.19 FINAL CLEANING

A. Execute prior to final inspection.
B.
C

Clean site; sweep paved areas, rake clean other surfaces.
Remove waste and surplus materials, rubbish, and construction facilities from Project and
from site.

1.20 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS

A
B

C.

Store documents separate from those used for construction.

Keep documents current; do not permanently conceal any Work until required information
has been recorded.

At Contract closeout, submit documents with transmittal letter containing date, Project title,
CONTRACTOR’S name and address, list of documents, and signature of CONTRACTOR.

END OF SECTION

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS
PAGE 4



SUBMITTALS

PART 1 GENERAL
1.01 PROCEDURES
A Deliver submittals to:
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc.
739 Park Avenue
Ackley, 1A 50601
(or)
Electronically via email (to the Engineer listed in the Instructions to Bidder)

B. Transmit each item under Shop Drawing Transmittal Form, bound herein. Identify
Project, CONTRACTOR, Subcontractor, major supplier; identify pertinent Drawing
sheet and detail number, and Specification section number, as appropriate. ldentify
deviations from Contract Documents. Provide space for CONTRACTOR and
ENGINEER review stamps on each item.

C. Submit initial progress schedules and schedule of values in duplicate within 15 days
after award of contract. After review by ENGINEER revise and resubmit as
required. Submit revised schedules with each Application for Payment, reflecting
changes since previous submittal.

D. Comply with progress schedule for submittals related to Work progress. Coordinate
submittal of related items.

E. Notify ENGINEER in writing, at time of submission, of any deviations in submittals
from requirements of Contract Documents. Any such deviations permitted by
ENGINEER will require modifications of Contract Documents.

F. Begin no fabrication or Work which requires submittals until return of submittals by
ENGINEER with ENGINEER stamp, as either “Reviewed” or “Reviewed as Noted.”

G. After ENGINEER review of submittal, revise and resubmit as required, identifying
changes made since previous submittal.

H. Distribute reproductions of Shop Drawings which carry ENGINEER stamp as either
“Reviewed” or “Reviewed as Noted” to:

1. Job site file.
2. Record documents file.
3. Subcontractors.

I Distribute Samples which carry ENGINEER stamp as either “Reviewed” or

“Reviewed as Noted” as directed by ENGINEER.
1.02 CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SCHEDULES

A

Submit horizontal bar chart with separate bar for each major trade or operation,
identifying first work day of each week.

SUBMITTALS
PAGE 1



1.03

1.04

1.05

B. Show complete sequence of construction by activity, identifying work of separate
stages and other logically grouped activities. Show projected percentage of
completion for each item of Work as of time of each progress Application for
Payment.

C. Show submittal dates required for Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples, and
Product delivery dates, including those furnished by OWNER and those under
Allowances.

SCHEDULE OF VALUES

A. Submit typed schedule on 8 '42” x 11”7 paper; CONTRACTOR’s standard form or
media-driven printout will be considered on request.

B. Format: Table of Contents of this Project Manual. Identify each line item with
number and title of the major Specifications sections.

C. Include in each line item a directly proportional amount of CONTRACTOR’s
overhead and profit.

D. Revise schedule to list change orders, for each application for payment.

SAFTEY PROCEDURES MANUAL

A.

CONTRACTOR shall prepare and submit to OWNER safety procedures manual
defining CONTRACTOR’s safety program for work on site. Manual shall include:
Safety responsibilities of CONTRACTOR’s personnel.

Description of CONTRACTOR’s safety program.

Requirements of use of personal protective equipment.

General safety-related rules of conduct.

Fire prevention measures.

Accident reporting procedures.

Procedures for hot work (welding, cutting, etc.), overhead work, and work in
enclosed, confined spaces (tank, boiler, etc.).

NookrwdE

SHOP DRAWINGS

A

Shop Drawings shall be presented in clear and thorough manner, complete with
respect to dimensions, design criteria, materials of construction, and like information
to enable ENGINEER to review information as required. Details shall be identified
by reference to sheet and detail shown on Drawings.

Minimum sheet size 8 15” x 11”7

Make submittals to ENGINEER promptly in accordance with approved schedule, and
in such sequence as to cause no delay in Work on in work of any other contractor.

Shop Drawings:
1. Submit one opaque reproducible copy of each Shop Drawing.

SUBMITTALS
PAGE 2



Shop Drawings not larger than 11” x 177, copies of Drawing submitted shall
be black line on white background. Electronic submittals will not be
accepted.

ENGINEER will reproduce additional copies of Shop Drawings as required
for distribution.

ENGINEER will scan Shop Drawings. All Shop Drawings shall be suitable
for scanning to PDF. Shop Drawings submitted which are not suitable for
scanning will not be reviewed.

If CONTRACTOR will not grant permission for ENGINEER to reproduce
Shop Drawings, CONTRACTOR shall submit 5 copies of each Shop
Drawing.

For Shop Drawings larger than 11” x 177, printed catalog information or
brochures, or other multiple page documents, submit 5 copies of each Shop
Drawing.

Reproducible copies of Shop Drawings, if request herein:

1.

2.

3.

Submit PDF, or equal, reproducible electronic file. Vellum, sepias, mylar or
other nonpermanent reproducible prints are not acceptable.

Reproducible copies of Shop Drawings shall show “as built” conditions of
equipment and shall show field modifications required during installation.
CONTRACTOR will provide marked-up print of application Shop Drawings
showing field modifications made during installation, within 7 days after it
has sufficient information to prepare same.

Submittals shall contain:

el A

13.

Date of submission and dates of any previous submissions.
Project title and number.
Contract identification.

Names of:
A. CONTRACTOR.
B. Supplier.
C. Manufacturer.

Identification of product, with Specification section number.

Field dimensions, clearly identified as such.

Relation to adjacent or critical features of Work or materials.

Applicable standards, such as ASTM or Federal Specification numbers.
Identification of deviations from Contract Documents.

Identification of revisions on resubmittals.

An 8” x 3” blank space for CONTRACTOR and ENGINEER stamps.
Indication of CONTRACTOR’s approval, initialed or signed, with wording
substantially as follows:

“CONTRACTOR represents to OWNER and ENGINEER
that CONTRACTOR has either determined and verified all
guantities, dimensions, field construction criteria, materials,
catalog numbers, and similar data, or assumes full
responsibility for doing so and has reviewed or coordinated
each Shop Drawing Sample with requirements of Work and
Contract Documents.”

Shop Drawing Transmittal Form is bound herein.

SUBMITTALS
PAGE 3



CONTRACTOR shall reproduce any additional copies required and use in
accordance with instructions given with Transmittal Form. CONTRACTOR
shall submit 1 copy of Transmittal Form for initial submittals and
resubmittals.

Resubmission requirements: Make any corrections or changes in submittals required
by ENGINEER and resubmit until stamped as either “Reviewed” or “Reviewed as
Noted”

by ENGINEER. Indicate any changes which have been made other than those
requested by ENGINEER.

1.06 ENGINEER DUTIES

A

Review required submittals with reasonable promptness and in accord with schedule,
only for general conformance to design concept of Project and compliance with
information given in Contract Documents. Review shall not extend to means,
methods, sequences, techniques, or procedures of construction or to safety
precautions or program incident thereto. Review of a separate item as such will not
indicate approval of assembly in which item functions.

Affix stamp and initials or signature, and indicate requirements for resubmittal, or

review of submittal. ENGINEER’s action on submittals is classified as follows:

1. Reviewed: Submittal has been reviewed and appears to be in conformance
to design concept of Project and Contract Documents. CONTRACTOR may
proceed with fabrication of Work detailed in submittal.

2. Reviewed As Noted: Submittal has been reviewed and appears to be in
conformance to design concept of Project and Contract Documents, except as
noted by ENGINEER. CONTRACTOR may proceed with fabrication of
Work detailed in submittal with modifications and corrections as indicated
by ENGINEER.

3. Resubmit:  Submittal has been reviewed and appears not to be in
conformance to design concept of Project or Contract Documents.
CONTRACTOR shall not proceed with fabrication of Work detailed in
submittal, but instead shall make any corrections required by ENGINEER
and resubmit for review.

4. Returned: Submittal has not been reviewed because lacking
CONTRACTOR’s approval stamp or signature or because otherwise
substantially contrary to design concept of the Project or Contract
Documents. CONTRACTOR shall not proceed with fabrication of Work as
detailed in submittal but instead shall cure defects and resubmit for review, if
required by Contract Documents.

Return submittals to CONTRACTOR.

ENGINEER’s review of submittals shall not relieve CONTRACTOR from
responsibility for any deviations from Contract Documents unless CONTRACTOR
has, in writing, called ENGINEER’s attention to such deviation at time of
submission, and ENGINEER has given written concurrence pursuant to Contract
Documents to specific deviation, nor shall any concurrence by ENGINEER relieve
CONTRACTOR from responsibility for errors or omissions in submittals.

SUBMITTALS
PAGE 4



CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS

PART 1 GENERAL
1.01 WATER
A Provide service required for construction operations. Extend branch piping with outlets

1.02

1.03

1.04

1.05

1.06

1.07

1.08

located so that water is available by use of hoses.

SANITARY FACILITIES

A Provide and maintain required facilities and enclosures.
BARRIERS
A Provide as required to prevent public entry to construction areas and to protect existing

facilities and adjacent properties from damage from construction operations.

B. Provide barricades and covered walkways as required by governing authorities for public
rights-of-way and for public access.

C. Provide barriers around trees and plants designated to remain. Protect against vehicular
traffic, stored materials, dumping, chemically injurious materials, and puddling or
continuous running water.

SECURITY
A. Provide Security program and facilities to protect, Work, and from unauthorized entry,
vandalism, and theft. Coordinate with OWNER’s security program.

WATER CONTROL
A. Grade site to drain. Maintain excavations free of water. Provide and operate pumping
equipment.

CLEANING DURING CONSTRUCTION
A. Control accumulation of waste materials and rubbish; periodically dispose of off-site.

FIELD OFFICES AND SHEDS

A. Office
1. Weathertight, with lightning, electrical outlets, heating, cooling, and ventilating
equipment, and equipped with furniture.
2. Provide, in addition, space for Project meetings, with table and chairs to

accommodate 6 persons.

B.  Storage sheds, for tools, materials, and equipment: Weathertight, with ventilation for
Products requiring controlled conditions, with adequate space for organized storage and
access, and lighting for inspection of stored materials.

REMOVAL
A Remove temporary materials, equipment, services, and construction prior to Substantial
Completion inspection.

B. Clean and repair damage caused by installation or use of temporary facilities. Remove
Underground installations to a depth of 2’; grade site as indicated.

C. Restore existing facilities used during construction to specified, or to original, condition.

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS
PAGE 1



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

CONSTRUCTION FACILITIES AND TEMPORARY CONTROLS
PAGE 2



SAMPLE FORM OF AGREEMENT

BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR
Date:

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between (“Owner”) and

(“Contractor™).

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows:
ARTICLE 1-WORK

1.01  Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Work is
generally described as follows:

ARTICLE 2 - THE PROJECT

2.01  The Project for which the Work under the Contract Documents may be the whole or only a part is
generally described as follows:

ARTICLE 3-ENGINEER

3.01 The Project has been designed by, which is to act as Owner’s representative, assume all duties and
responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned to Engineer in the Contract Documents in
connection with the completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 4 —- CONTRACT TIMES
401 Time of the Essence

A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and readiness for final
payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract.

4.02  Dates for Substantial Completion and Final Payment

A. The Work will be substantially completed on or before , and completed and ready for final
payment in accordance with Paragraph 14.07 of the General Conditions on or before :

4.03 Liquidated Damages

A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 above and that
Owner will suffer financial loss if the Work is not completed within the times specified in Paragraph
4.02 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with Article 12 of the General
Conditions. The parties also recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving in a
legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not completed on time.
Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated
damages for delay (but not as a penalty), Contractor shall pay Owner $ for each day that expires
after the time specified in Paragraph 4.02 above for Substantial Completion until the Work is
substantially complete. After Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail to

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price)
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 1 of 7




complete the remaining Work within the Contract Time or any proper extension thereof granted by
Owner, Contractor shall pay Owner $ for each day that expires after the time specified in
Paragraph 4.02 above for completion and readiness for final payment until the Work is completed and
ready for final payment.

ARTICLE 5- CONTRACT PRICE

5.01  Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents an
amount in current funds equal to the sum of the amounts determined pursuant to Paragraphs 5.01.A,
5.01.B, and 5.01.C below:

All specific cash allowances are included in the above price in accordance with Paragraph 11.02 of the
General Conditions.

A. For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the established unit price for each separately
identified item of Unit Price Work times the actual quantity of that item:

UNIT PRICE WORK

Item Estimated Bid Unit
No. Description Unit Quantity Price Bid Price
Total of all Bid Prices (Unit Price Work) $

The Bid prices for Unit Price Work set forth as of the Effective Date of the Agreement are based on
estimated quantities. As provided in Paragraph 11.03 of the General Conditions, estimated quantities
are not guaranteed, and determinations of actual quantities and classifications are to be made by
Engineer as provided in Paragraph 9.07 of the General Conditions.

B. For all Work, at the prices stated in Contractor’s Bid, attached hereto as an exhibit.
ARTICLE 6 - PAYMENT PROCEDURES
6.01  Submittal and Processing of Payments

A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 14 of the General
Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in the General
Conditions.

6.02  Progress Payments; Retainage

A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of Contractor’s
Applications for Payment on or about the day of each month during performance of the Work as
provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below. All such payments will be measured by the schedule of values
established as provided in Paragraph 2.07.A of the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price
Work based on the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no schedule of values, as
provided in the General Requirements.

1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to the
percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments previously made and

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price)
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 2 of 7




6.03

less such amounts as Engineer may determine or Owner may withhold, including but not limited to
liquidated damages, in accordance with Paragraph 14.02 of the General Conditions.

a. percent of Work completed (with the balance being retainage). If the Work has been 50
percent completed as determined by Engineer, and if the character and progress of the Work
have been satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, then as long as the character and progress of the
Work remain satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, there will be no additional retainage; and

b. percent of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (with the
balance being retainage).

Upon Substantial Completion, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total payments to
Contractor to percent of the Work completed, less such amounts as Engineer shall determine in
accordance with Paragraph 14.02.B.5 of the General Conditions and less percent of Engineer’s
estimate of the value of Work to be completed or corrected as shown on the tentative list of items to be
completed or corrected attached to the certificate of Substantial Completion.

Final Payment

A

Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 14.07 of the General
Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as recommended by Engineer as
provided in said Paragraph 14.07.

ARTICLE 7 - INTEREST

7.01

All moneys not paid when due as provided in Article 14 of the General Conditions shall bear interest at
the rate of percent per annum.

ARTICLE 8 - CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS

8.01

In order to induce Owner to enter into this Agreement, Contractor makes the following representations:

A

Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents and the other related data
identified in the Bidding Documents.

Contractor has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and Site
conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state, and local Laws and Regulations that
may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

Contractor has carefully studied all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or
subsurface structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities), if any, that have been identified in
Paragraph SC-4.02 of the Supplementary Conditions as containing reliable "technical data,” and (2)
reports and drawings of Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at the Site that have been
identified in Paragraph SC-4.06 of the Supplementary Conditions as containing reliable "technical
data.”

Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor; information commonly known to
contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits
to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the Site-related reports and drawings identified in the Contract

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price)

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 3 of 7




Documents, with respect to the effect of such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost,
progress, and performance of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures
of construction to be employed by Contractor, including any specific means, methods, techniques,
sequences, and procedures of construction expressly required by the Contract Documents; and (3)
Contractor’s safety precautions and programs.

F. Based on the information and observations referred to in Paragraph 8.01.E above, Contractor does not
consider that further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for
the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Times, and in accordance with
the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.

G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that
relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.

H. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that
Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is
acceptable to Contractor.

I.  The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and
conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.

ARTICLE 9 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
9.01 Contents
A. The Contract Documents consist of the following:

1. This Agreement (pages 1to __, inclusive).

2. Performance bond (pages__ to__,inclusive).

3. Paymentbond (pages_ to__,inclusive).

4. General Conditions (pages__ to___, inclusive).

5. Supplementary Conditions (pages__ to___, inclusive).

6. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual.
7. Drawings consisting of sheets.
8. Addenda (numbers to , inclusive).

9. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows):

a. Contractor’s Bid (pages to , inclusive).
b. Documentation submitted by Contractor prior to Notice of Award (pages to ,
inclusive).

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price)
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 4 of 7




10. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement
and are not attached hereto:

a. Notice to Proceed (pages to , inclusive).
b. Work Change Directives.
c. Change Orders.

The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as expressly noted
otherwise above).

There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9.

The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in Paragraph
3.04 of the General Conditions.

ARTICLE 10 - MISCELLANEOUS

10.01

10.02

10.03

10.04

10.05

Terms

A

Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and the
Supplementary Conditions.

Assignment of Contract

A

No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on
another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but
without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be assigned without
such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless
specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or
discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents.

Successors and Assigns

A

Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives to the
other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all covenants,
agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.

Severability

A

Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any Law or
Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding
upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract Documents shall be reformed to replace such
stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible
to expressing the intention of the stricken provision.

Contractor’s Certifications

A

Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in
competing for or in executing the Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph 10.05:

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price)

Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 5 of 7




1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value likely to
influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the Contract execution;

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence the
bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish Bid or
Contract prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free
and open competition;

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or without
the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices at artificial, non-competitive
levels; and

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their
property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the execution of the
Contract.

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price)
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 6 of 7




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement. Counterparts have been delivered to
Owner and Contractor. All portions of the Contract Documents have been signed or have been identified by Owner
and Contractor or on their behalf.

This Agreement will be effective on (which is the Effective Date of the Agreement).
OWNER: CONTRACTOR

By: By:

Title: Title:

(If Contractor is a corporation, a partnership, or a
joint venture, attach evidence of authority to sign.)

Attest: Attest:

Title: Title:

Address for giving notices: Address for giving notices:
License No.:

(If Owner is a corporation, attach evidence
of authority to sign. If Owner is a public body, attach
evidence of authority to sign and resolution or other ~ Agent for service of process:
documents authorizing execution
of this Agreement.)

EJCDC C-520 Suggested Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price)
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.
Page 7 of 7




BID BOND

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

BIDDER (Name and Address):

SURETY (Name and Address of Principal Place of Business):

OWNER (Name and Address):

BID
Bid Due Date:
Description (Project Name and Include Location):

BOND
Bond Number:
Date (Not earlier than Bid due date):
Penal sum $

(Words) (Figures)

Surety and Bidder, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause this
Bid Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative.

BIDDER SURETY
(Seal) (Seal)
Bidder’s Name and Corporate Seal Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal
By: By:
Signature Signature (Attach Power of Attorney)
Print Name Print Name
Title Title
Attest: Attest:
Signature Signature
Title Title

EJCDC C-430 Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form)
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page 1 of 2




1. Bidder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors,
and assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond. Payment of
the penal sum is the extent of Bidder’s and Surety’s liability. Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this
Bond shall be Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy upon default of Bidder.

2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding
Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the
Bidding Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents.

3. This obligation shall be null and void if:

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder’s Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or
any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding
Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents, or

3.2 All Bids are rejected by Owner, or

3.3 Owner fails to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents
(or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when
required by Paragraph 5 hereof).

4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after
receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be given with reasonable
promptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.

5. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice of
Award agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award
including extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from Bid due date without Surety’s written
consent.

6. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default
required in Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and in no case later than one year after Bid due
date.

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in
the state in which the Project is located.

8. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses
shown on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United
States Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective
upon receipt by the party concerned.

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the
authority of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and
deliver such Bond and bind the Surety thereby.

10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any
applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at
length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall
govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force and effect.

11. The term “Bid” as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable.

EJCDC C-430 Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form)
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page 2 of 2




PERFORMANCE BOND

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner, or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): SURETY (Name, and Address of Principal Place of Business):

OWNER (Name and Address):

CONTRACT
Effective Date of Agreement:
Amount:
Description (Name and Location):

BOND
Bond Number:
Date (Not earlier than Effective Date of
Agreement):
Amount:
Modifications to this Bond Form:

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each cause
this Performance Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative.

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY
(Seal) (Seal)
Contractor's Name and Corporate Seal Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal
By: By:
Signature Signature (Attach Power of Attorney)
Print Name Print Name
Title Title
Attest: Attest:
Signature Signature
Title Title

Note: Provide execution by additional parties, such as joint venturers, if necessary.

EJCDC C-610 Performance Bond
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page 1 of 3




Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators,
successors, and assigns to Owner for the performance of the Contract, which is incorporated herein by
reference.

1. If Contractor performs the Contract, Surety and Contractor have no obligation under this Bond, except to
participate in conferences as provided in Paragraph 2.1.

2. If there is no Owner Default, Surety’s obligation under this Bond shall arise after:

2.1 Owner has notified Contractor and Surety, at the addresses described in Paragraph 9 below, that
Owner is considering declaring a Contractor Default and has requested and attempted to arrange a
conference with Contractor and Surety to be held not later than 15 days after receipt of such notice
to discuss methods of performing the Contract. If Owner, Contractor, and Surety agree, Contractor
shall be allowed a reasonable time to perform the Contract, but such an agreement shall not waive
Owner’s right, if any, subsequently to declare a Contractor Default; and

2.2 Owner has declared a Contractor Default and formally terminated Contractor’s right to complete
the Contract. Such Contractor Default shall not be declared earlier than 20 days after Contractor
and Surety have received notice as provided in Paragraph 2.1; and

2.3 Owner has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price to:

1. Surety in accordance with the terms of the Contract; or
2. Another contractor selected pursuant to Paragraph 3.3 to perform the Contract.

3. When Owner has satisfied the conditions of Paragraph 2, Surety shall promptly, and at Surety’s expense,
take one of the following actions:

3.1 Arrange for Contractor, with consent of Owner, to perform and complete the Contract; or
3.2 Undertake to perform and complete the Contract itself, through its agents or through independent
contractors; or
3.3 Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified contractors acceptable to Owner for a contract
for performance and completion of the Contract, arrange for a contract to be prepared for execution
by Owner and contractor selected with Owner’s concurrence, to be secured with performance and
payment bonds executed by a qualified surety equivalent to the bonds issued on the Contract, and
pay to Owner the amount of damages as described in Paragraph 5 in excess of the Balance of the
Contract Price incurred by Owner resulting from Contractor Default; or
3.4 Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for completion, or obtain a new contractor, and
with reasonable promptness under the circumstances:
1. After investigation, determine the amount for which it may be liable to Owner and, as soon as
practicable after the amount is determined, tender payment therefor to Owner; or
2. Deny liability in whole or in part and notify Owner citing reasons therefor.

4. If Surety does not proceed as provided in Paragraph 3 with reasonable promptness, Surety shall be
deemed to be in default on this Bond 15 days after receipt of an additional written notice from Owner to
Surety demanding that Surety perform its obligations under this Bond, and Owner shall be entitled to enforce
any remedy available to Owner. If Surety proceeds as provided in Paragraph 3.4, and Owner refuses the
payment tendered or Surety has denied liability, in whole or in part, without further notice Owner shall be
entitled to enforce any remedy available to Owner.

5. After Owner has terminated Contractor’s right to complete the Contract, and if Surety elects to act under
Paragraph 3.1, 3.2, or 3.3 above, then the responsibilities of Surety to Owner shall not be greater than those
of Contractor under the Contract, and the responsibilities of Owner to Surety shall not be greater than those
of Owner under the Contract. To the limit of the amount of this Bond, but subject to commitment by Owner
of the Balance of the Contract Price to mitigation of costs and damages on the Contract, Surety is obligated
without duplication for:

EJCDC C-610 Performance Bond
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page 2 of 3




5.1 The responsibilities of Contractor for correction of defective Work and completion of the Contract;

5.2 Additional legal, design professional, and delay costs resulting from Contractor’s Default, and
resulting from the actions of or failure to act of Surety under Paragraph 3; and

5.3 Liquidated damages, or if no liquidated damages are specified in the Contract, actual damages
caused by delayed performance or non-performance of Contractor.

6. Surety shall not be liable to Owner or others for obligations of Contractor that are unrelated to the
Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price shall not be reduced or set off on account of any such
unrelated obligations. No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to any person or entity other than Owner
or its heirs, executors, administrators, or successors.

7. Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to Contract or to related
subcontracts, purchase orders, and other obligations.

8. Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond may be instituted in any court of competent
jurisdiction in the location in which the Work or part of the Work is located, and shall be instituted within
two years after Contractor Default or within two years after Contractor ceased working or within two years
after Surety refuses or fails to perform its obligations under this Bond, whichever occurs first. If the
provisions of this paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to
sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.

9. Notice to Surety, Owner, or Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the signature
page.

10. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory requirement in the location where the
Contract was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory requirement shall be
deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory requirement shall be deemed
incorporated herein. The intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common
law bond.

11. Definitions.

11.1 Balance of the Contract Price: The total amount payable by Owner to Contractor under the
Contract after all proper adjustments have been made, including allowance to Contractor of any
amounts received or to be received by Owner in settlement of insurance or other Claims for
damages to which Contractor is entitled, reduced by all valid and proper payments made to or on
behalf of Contractor under the Contract.

11.2 Contract: The agreement between Owner and Contractor identified on the signature page,
including all Contract Documents and changes thereto.

11.3 Contractor Default: Failure of Contractor, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to perform
or otherwise to comply with the terms of the Contract.

11.4 Owner Default: Failure of Owner, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to pay Contractor
as required by the Contract or to perform and complete or otherwise comply with the other terms
thereof.

EJCDC C-610 Performance Bond
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page 3 of 3




THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY

EJCDC No. C-610 (2002 Edition)
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee and endorsed
By the Associated General Contractors of America and the Construction Specifications Institute.




PAYMENT BOND

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner, or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): SURETY (Name, and Address of Principal Place of
Business):
OWNER (Name and Address):
CONTRACT
Effective Date of Agreement:
Amount:

Description (Name and Location):

BOND
Bond Number:
Date (Not earlier than Effective Date of
Agreement):
Amount:
Modifications to this Bond Form:

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to.the terms set forth below, do each
cause this Payment Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative.

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL SURETY
(Seal) (Seal)
Contractor's Name and Corporate Seal Surety’s Name and Corporate Seal
By: By:
Signature Signature (Attach Power of Attorney)
Print Name Print Name
Title Title
Attest: Attest:
Signature Signature
Title Title

Note: Provide execution by additional parties, such as joint venturers, if necessary.

{MW001504;1} EJCDC C-615(A) Payment Bond March 2008
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page 1 of 3




1. Contractor and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators,
successors, and assigns to Owner to pay for labor, materials, and equipment furnished by Claimants for use
in the performance of the Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.

2. With respect to Owner, this obligation shall be null and void if Contractor:

2.1 Promptly makes payment, directly or indirectly, for all sums due Claimants, and

2.2 Defends, indemnifies, and holds harmless Owner from all claims, demands, liens, or suits alleging
non-payment by Contractor by any person or entity who furnished labor, materials, or equipment
for use in the performance of the Contract, provided Owner has promptly notified Contractor and
Surety (at the addresses described in Paragraph 12) of any claims, demands, liens, or suits and
tendered defense of such claims, demands, liens, or suits to Contractor and Surety, and provided
there is no Owner Default.

3. With respect to Claimants, this obligation shall be null and void if Contractor promptly makes payment,
directly or indirectly, for all sums due.

4. Surety shall have no obligation to Claimants under this Bond until:

4.1 Claimants who are employed by or have a direct contract with Contractor have given notice to
Surety (at the address described in Paragraph 12) and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to Owner,
stating that a claim is being made under this Bond and, with substantial accuracy, the amount of the
claim.

4.2 Claimants who do not have a direct contract with Contractor:

1. Have furnished written notice to Contractor and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to Owner, within
90 days after having last performed labor or last furnished materials or equipment included in the
claim stating, with substantial accuracy, the amount of the claim and the name of the party to
whom the materials or equipment were furnished or supplied, or for whom the labor was done or
performed; and

2. Have either received a rejection in whole or in part from Contractor, or not received within 30
days of furnishing the above notice any communication from Contractor by which Contractor had
indicated the claim will be paid directly or indirectly; and

3. Not having been paid within the above 30 days, have sent a written notice to Surety (at the
address described in Paragraph 12) and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to Owner, stating that a
claim is being made under this Bond and enclosing a copy of the previous written notice
furnished to Contractor.

5. If anotice by a Claimant required by Paragraph 4 is provided by Owner to Contractor or to Surety, that is
sufficient compliance.

6. Reserved.

7. Surety’s total obligation shall not exceed the amount of this Bond, and the amount of this Bond shall be
credited for any payments made in good faith by Surety.

8. Amounts owed by Owner to Contractor under the Contract shall be used for the performance of the
Contract and to satisfy claims, if any, under any performance bond. By Contractor furnishing and Owner
accepting this Bond, they agree that all funds earned by Contractor in the performance of the Contract are
dedicated to satisfy obligations of Contractor and Surety under this Bond, subject to Owner’s priority to use
the funds for the completion of the Work.

9. Surety shall not be liable to Owner, Claimants, or others for obligations of Contractor that are unrelated
to the Contract. Owner shall not be liable for payment of any costs or expenses of any Claimant under this
Bond, and shall have under this Bond no obligations to make payments to, give notices on behalf of, or
otherwise have obligations to Claimants under this Bond.

{MW001504;1} EJCDC C-615(A) Payment Bond March 2008
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page 2 of 3




10. Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Contract or to related
subcontracts, purchase orders, and other obligations.

11. No suit or action shall be commenced by a Claimant under this Bond other than in a court of competent
jurisdiction in the location in which the Work or part of the Work is located or after the expiration of one
year from the date (1) on which the Claimant gave the notice required by Paragraph 4.1 or Paragraph 4.2.3,
or (2) on which the last labor or service was performed by anyone or the last materials or equipment were
furnished by anyone under the Contract, whichever of (1) or (2) first occurs. If the provisions of this
paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense
in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.

12. Notice to Surety, Owner, or Contractor shall be mailed or delivered to the addresses shown on the
signature page. Actual receipt of notice by Surety, Owner, or Contractor, however accomplished, shall be
sufficient compliance as of the date received at the address shown on the signature page.

13. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory requirement in the location where the
Contract was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory requirement shall be
deemed deleted herefrom and provisions conforming to such statutory requirement shall be deemed
incorporated herein. The intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory Bond and not as-a common
law bond.

14. Upon request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of this Bond, Contractor
shall promptly furnish a copy of this Bond or shall permit a copy to be made.

15. Definitions

15.1 Claimant: An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor, or with a first-tier
subcontractor of Contractor, to furnish labor, materials, or equipment for use in the performance of
the Contract. The intent-of this Bond shall be to include without limitation in the terms “labor,
materials or equipment” that part of water, gas, power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service,
or rental equipment used in the Contract, architectural and engineering services required for
performance of the Work of Contractor and Contractor’s subcontractors, and all other items for
which a mechanic’s lien may be asserted in the jurisdiction where the labor, materials, or
equipment were furnished.

15.2 Contract: The agreement between Owner and Contractor identified on the signature page,
including all- Contract Documents and changes thereto.

15.3- Owner Default: Failure of Owner, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to pay Contractor
as required by the Contract, or to perform and complete or otherwise comply with the other terms
thereof.

FOR INFORMATION ONLY — (Name, Address, and Telephone)
Surety Agency or Broker:
Owner’s Representative (Engineer or other):

{MW001504;1} EJCDC C-615(A) Payment Bond March 2008
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page 3 of 3




Contractor’s Qualification Statement

SUBMITTED TO: Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc.
739 Park Avenue
Ackley, lowa 50601

SUBMITTED BY:

NAME OF PROJECT:

TYPE OF WORK ____ Concrete ____Underground Utilities
____Asphalt ____ Drainage
Grading/Dirtwork _____ Sewer Inspection/Televising
___Jack & Boring ____ Other

COMPANY INFORMATION:
How many years has your company been in business as a Contractor?

Under what other or former names (and what years) has your company operated?

If your company is a corporation, answer the following:
Date of Incorporation:
State of Incorporation:

President’s name:

If your company is a partnership, answer the following:
Date of organization:
Type of partnership:
Name(s) of general partner(s):

If your company is individually owned, answer the following:
Date of organization:

Name of owner:

List of equipment that will be used by your company for this project:



LICENSING
List trade categories to which your company is legally qualified to do business, and indicate

registration or license numbers for the State of lowa:

EXPERIENCE

List the type of work that your company normally performs:

List major construction projects your company has in progress, giving the names of project
owners, contract amount, percent complete and scheduled completion. (Attach extra sheets if

needed)

State total worth of work in progress and under contract:

List last ten major projects your company has completed in the past five years, stating nature of
the project, owner, contract amount, date of completion and percentage of the cost of the work

performed with your own forces.

State average annual amount of construction work performed during the last five years:

State name of Project Supervisor:

Experience level of Project Supervisor and Field Crew:



CLAIMS AND SUITS (If you answer yes to any of the below, please attach details)

Has your company ever failed to complete any work it has been awarded?

Are there any judgments, claims, arbitration proceedings or suits pending or outstanding against

your company or its officers?

Has your company filed any lawsuits or requested arbitration with regard to construction contracts
within the last five years.

Within the last five years has any officer of your company ever been an officer for another

company when it failed to complete a construction contract?

REFERENCES

Professional References:

Supplier References:

Bank References:

Surety:

Name of bonding company:

Name and address of the agent:

FINANCING — Statements to be submitted only if contract awarded.

Signature Name of Company

Dated this day of , 20




THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY



SUBCONTRACTOR AND MAJOR MATERIAL SUPPLIERS LIST FORM

Project: From (Contractor) :
Date:
To: Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. CGA Project #
Contract For (Owner):
5 List Subcontractors and Major Material Suppliers proposed for use on this Project as required by the Construction Documents.
2 5 Attach supplemental sheets if necessary. Mark the appropriate columns for each Business listed.
o =
G g
T <€
= o
$ £ @ W Biditem Phone Number
= 3 2 0O Number Description Firm Address (Fax Number) Contact
Contractors Representative: Signed By:
(Signature) (Printed)

Sheet of




ATIVNOILNZLNI YMNV1G 1437 39Vd SIHL



TRANSMITTAL OF SHOP DRAWINGS, EQUIPMENT DATA, MATERIAL SAMPLES, OR
MANUFACTURER'S CERTIFICATES OF COMPLIANCE
For use of this form, see ER 415-1-10; the proponent agency is CECW-CE.

DATE TRANSMITTAL NO.

SECTION | - REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING ITEMS (This section will be initiated by the contractor)

TO:

FROM:

CONTRACT NO.

CHECK ONE:

[ ] THIS IS ANEW TRANSMITTAL
[ ] THIS IS A RESUBMITTAL OF

TRANSMITTAL

SPECIFICATION SEC. NO. (Cover only one section with each transmittal) | PROJECT TITLE AND LOCATION

THIS TRANSMITTAL IS FOR: (Check one)

D FIO D GA D DA D CR D DA/CR D DA/GA

ITEM CONTRACT DOCUMENT VARIATION USACE
SUBMITTAL NO. CONTRACTOR | Enter"Y" if ACTION
NO. DESCRIPTION OF SUBMITTAL ITEM TYPE CODE OF s OREVIEWO requestin CODE
(See (Type size, model number/etc.) (See Note 8) COPIES SPEC. DRAWING CODE a \(jariatiog (Note 9)
Note 3) PARA. NO. | SHEET NO.
(See Note 6)
a. b. C. d. e. f. g. h. i.
REMARKS | certify that the above submitted items had been reviewed in detail and are correct and in
strict conformance with the contract drawings and specifications except as otherwise stated.
NAME OF CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE OF CONTRACTOR

SECTION Il - APPROVAL ACTION

ENCLOSURES RETURNED (List by item No.)

NAME AND TITLE OF APPROVING AUTHORITY

SIGNATURE OF APPROVING AUTHORITY DATE

ENG FORM 4025-R, MAR 2012

REPLACES EDITION OF MAR 95, WHICH IS OBSOLETE.

Page 1 of 2



INSTRUCTIONS

1. Section | will be initiated by the Contractor in the required number of copies.

2. Each Transmittal shall be numbered consecutively. The Transmittal Number typically includes two parts separated by a dash (-). The first part is the specification section
number. The second part is a sequential number for the submittals under that spec section. If the Transmittal is a resubmittal, then add a decimal point to the end of the
original Transmittal Number and begin numbering the resubmittal packages sequentially after the decimal.

3. The "Item No." for each entry on this form will be the same "Item No." as indicated on ENG FORM 4288-R.

4. Submittals requiring expeditious handling will be submitted on a separate ENG Form 4025-R.

5. Items transmitted on each transmittal form will be from the same specification section. Do not combine submittal information from different specification sections in a single
transmittal.

6. If the data submitted are intentionally in variance with the contract requirements, indicate a variation in column h, and enter a statement in the Remarks block describing he
detailed reason for the variation.

7. ENG Form 4025-R is self-transmitting - a letter of transmittal is not required.

8. When submittal items are transmitted, indicate the "Submittal Type" (SD-01 through SD-11) in column ¢ of Section I.
Submittal types are the following:

SD-01 - Preconstruction SD-02 - Shop Drawings SD-03 - Product Data SD-04 - Samples SD-05 - Design Data SD-06 - Test Reports
SD-07 - Certificates SD-08 - Manufacturer's Instructions SD-09 - Manufacturer's Field Reports SD-10 - O&M Data SD-11 - Closeout

9. For each submittal item, the Contractor will assign Submittal Action Codes in column g of Section I. The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers approving authority will assign Submittal
Action Codes in column i of Section |. The Submittal Action Codes are:

A -- Approved as submitted. - Receipt acknowledged.

B -- Approved, except as noted on drawings. Resubmission not required. - Receipt acknowledged, does not comply with contract requirements, as noted.
C -- Approved, except as noted on drawings. Refer to attached comments. Other action required (Specify)

Resubmission required. - Government concurs with intermediate design. (For D-B contracts)

O X O X T

D -- Will be returned by separate correspondence. - Design submittal is acceptable for release for construction. (For D-B contracts)

E -- Disapproved. Refer to attached comments.

10. Approval of items does not relieve the contractor from complying with all the requirements of the contract.

ENG FORM 4025-R, MAR 2012 Page 2 of 2




ARTICLE 1-BID RECIPIENT
1.01  This Bid is submitted to:

Hardin County Auditor

c/o Drainage Clerk

Hardin County Courthouse
1215 Edgington Avenue, Suite 1
Eldora, lowa 50627

1.02  The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement
with Owner in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or
indicated in the Bidding Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and in
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 2 - BIDDER’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

2.01  Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, including without
limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. This Bid will remain subject to
acceptance for 60 days after the Bid opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may
agree to in writing upon request of Owner.

ARTICLE 3 -BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS

3.01  Insubmitting this Bid, Bidder represents that:
A. Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, other related data identified

in the Bidding Documents, and the following Addenda, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged:

Addendum No. Addendum Date

B. Bidder has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and
Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

C. Bidder is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost,
progress, and performance of the Work.

D. Bidder has carefully studied all: (1) all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing
surface or subsurface structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities) that have been
identified in SC-4.02 as containing reliable "technical data,” and (2) reports and drawings of
Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at the Site that have been identified in SC-4.06 as
containing reliable "technical data."

E. Bidder has considered the information known to Bidder; information commonly known to
contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained
from visits to the Site; the Bidding Documents; and the Site-related reports and drawings
identified in the Bidding Documents, with respect to the effect of such information,
observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work; (2) the

P:\6735.1\Spec\5.Bid Form-6735.1.docx
BID FORM
PAGE 1



means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by
Bidder (3) Bidder’s safety precautions and programs.

Based on the information and observations referred to in Paragraph 3.01.E above, Bidder does
not consider that further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are
necessary for the determination of this Bid for performance of the Work at the price(s) bid and
within the times required, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding
Documents.

Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site
that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents.

Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies
that Bidder has discovered in the Bidding Documents, and the written resolution thereof by
Engineer is acceptable to Bidder.

The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all
terms and conditions for the performance of the Work for which this Bid is submitted.

ARTICLE 4 — BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION

4.01

Bidder certifies that:

A

This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual or
entity and is not submitted in conformity with any collusive agreement or rules of any group,
association, organization, or corporation;

Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or
sham Bid;

Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and

Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for
the Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph 4.01.D:

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of value
likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process;

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence
the bidding process to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish bid prices at artificial non-
competitive levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition;

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or
without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish bid prices at artificial,
non-competitive levels; and

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or
their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the execution
of the Contract.

P:\6735.1\Spec\5.Bid Form-6735.1.docx
BID FORM
PAGE 2



ARTICLE 5-BASIS OF BID

5.01  Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following
price(s):

NAME OF BIDDER

ADDRESS OF BIDDER

DD 9 BASE BID - PROPOSAL TO FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT
TO PERFORM THE WORK DESCRIBED BELOW FOR THE DIVERSION OF MAIN TILE
USING POLYPROPYLENE TILE, DRAINAGE DISTRICT 9, HARDIN COUNTY, IOWA
INCLUDING PROVIDING A TWO-YEAR MAINTENANCE WARRANTY, PERFORMANCE,
AND PAYMENT BONDS. CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW BID ITEM DESCRIPTIONS IN THE
DETAILED SPECIFICATIONS.

DD 9 BASE BID

Item Estimated Unit Extended
No. Description Quantity Unit Price Price

1 15" @ Polypropylene Tile 2530 LF $ $

2 18” @ CMP Tile Outlet 40 LF 8 $

3 Junction Structure 1 EA $ $

4  Concrete Collar 4 EA $ $

5  Private Tile Connection 4 EA $ $

6  12” @ Hickenbottom Intake 2 EA $ $

7  Rip-Rap 40 ™ $ $

8  Tile Removal 10 LF $ $

9  Fences 1 LS $ $

10  Rebuild Terrace 2 LS $ $

11 Outlet Shaping 1 LS $ $

12 Locate Private Tile 25 STA $ $

13 Exploratory Excavation 2 HR $ $

14  Plug Existing Tile 2 LOC $ $

15  Seeding 1 LS $ $

16  Seeding Warranty 1 LS $ $

DD 9 BASE BID TOTAL (Bid Items 1 — 16 Inclusive) $

P:\6735.1\Spec\5.Bid Form-6735.1.docx
BID FORM
PAGE 3



DD 9 ALTERNATE BID - PROPOSAL TO FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND

EQUIPMENT TO PERFORM THE WORK DESCRIBED BELOW FOR THE DIVERSION OF
MAIN TILE USING CONCRETE TILE, DRAINAGE DISTRICT 9, HARDIN COUNTY, IOWA
INCLUDING PROVIDING A TWO-YEAR MAINTENANCE WARRANTY, PERFORMANCE,
AND PAYMENT BONDS. CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW BID ITEM DESCRIPTIONS IN THE
DETAILED SPECIFICATIONS.

DD 9 ALTERNATE BID

Item Estimated Unit Extended
No. Description Quantity Unit Price Price
1ALT 157 @ RCP Tile 2530 LF $ $
2ALT 187 @ CMP Tile Outlet 40 LF $ $
3ALT Junction Structure with Intake EA $ $
4ALT  Concrete Collar EA $ $
5ALT Private Tile Connection EA $ $
6ALT 12” @ Hickenbottom Intake 2 EA $ $
7ALT Rip-Rap 40 TN $ $
8ALT Tile Removal 10 LF $ $
9ALT Fences 1 LS $ $
10ALT Rebuild Terrace 2 LS $ $
11ALT Outlet Shaping 1 LS $ $
12ALT Locate Private Tile 25 STA $ $
13ALT Exploratory Excavation 2 HR  $ $
14ALT Plug Existing Tile 2 LOC $ $
15ALT Seeding 1 LS $ $
16ALT Seeding Warranty 1 LS $ $
DD 9 ALTERNATE BID TOTAL (Bid Items 1ALT — 16ALT Inclusive) $
DD 9 ADD ALTERNATES BID - PROPOSAL TO FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND
EQUIPMENT TO PERFORM THE ADDITIONAL WORK DESCRIBED BELOW FOR THE
DIVERSION OF MAIN TILE, DRAINAGE DISTRICT 9, HARDIN COUNTY, IOWA
INCLUDING PROVIDING A TWO-YEAR MAINTENANCE WARRANTY, PERFORMANCE,
AND PAYMENT BONDS. CONTRACTOR TO REVIEW BID ITEM DESCRIPTIONS IN THE
DETAILED SPECIFICATIONS.
DD 9 ADD ALTERNATES BID
Item Estimated Unit Extended
No. Description Quantity Unit Price Price
1ADD Mandrel Testing of Tile 2570 LF $
2ADD CCTV Inspection of Tile 2570 LF $ $
3ADD Trench Compaction 25.7 STA $
4ADD Mandrel and CCTV Access Point 2 EA $ $

P:\6735.1\Spec\5.Bid Form-6735.1.docx
BID FORM
PAGE 4




Unit Prices have been computed in accordance with Paragraph 11.03.B of the General Conditions
and the detailed technical specifications.

Bidder acknowledges that estimated quantities are not guaranteed and are solely for the purpose of
comparison of Bids, and final payment for all unit price Bid items will be based on actual quantities,
determined as provided in the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 6 - TIME OF COMPLETION

6.01  Bidder agrees that the Work will be completed on or before the dates stated in the Notice to
Contractors Page N-2.

6.02  Bidder accepts the liquidated damage and bonus provisions as stated in the Notice, Page N-2.
ARTICLE 7- ATTACHMENTS TO THIS BID
7.01  The following documents are submitted with and made a condition of this Bid:

A. Required Bid security in the form of bond or check;

B. List of Proposed Subcontractors (to be submitted by apparent low bidder within 48 hours of bid
opening);

C. List of Proposed Suppliers (to be submitted by apparent low bidder within 48 hours of bid
opening);

D. List of Project References (to be submitted by apparent low bidder within 48 hours of bid
opening);

E. Evidence of authority to do business in the state of the Project; or a written covenant to obtain
such license within the time for acceptance of Bids;

F. Contractor’s License No.: [or] Evidence of Bidder’s ability to obtain a State
Contractor’s License and a covenant by Bidder to obtain said license within the time for
acceptance of Bids;

G. Required Bidder Qualification Statement with Supporting Data (to be submitted by apparent
low bidder within 48 hours of bid opening);

ARTICLE 8 — DEFINED TERMS

8.01  The terms used in this Bid with initial capital letters have the meanings stated in the Instructions to
Bidders, the General Conditions, and the Supplementary Conditions.

P:\6735.1\Spec\5.Bid Form-6735.1.docx
BID FORM
PAGE 5



ARTICLE 9- BID SUBMITTAL

9.01  This Bid is submitted by:
If Bidder is:

An Individual

Name (typed or printed):

By:

(Individual’s signature)

Doing business as:

A Partnership

Partnership Name:

By:

(Signature of general partner -- attach evidence of authority to sign)

Name (typed or printed):

A Corporation

Corporation Name:

(SEAL)

State of Incorporation:
Type (General Business, Professional, Service, Limited Liability):

By:

(Signature -- attach evidence of authority to sign)

Name (typed or printed):

Title:

(CORPORATE SEAL)

Attest

Date of Qualification to do business in _[lowa] is / /

P:\6735.1\Spec\5.Bid Form-6735.1.docx
BID FORM
PAGE 6



A Joint Venture

(SEAL)

Name of Joint Venture:

First Joint Venturer Name:

By:
(Signature of first joint venture partner -- attach evidence of authority to sign)

Name (typed or printed):

Title:

Second Joint Venturer Name: (SEAL)

By:
(Signature of second joint venture partner -- attach evidence of authority to sign)

Name (typed or printed):

Title:

(Each joint venturer must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership,
and corporation that is a party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated
above.)

Bidder's Business Address

Phone No. Fax No.

E-mail

SUBMITTED on , 20

State Contractor License No. . [If applicable]

P:\6735.1\Spec\5.Bid Form-6735.1.docx
BID FORM
PAGE 7



ARDIN COUNTY, IOWA

-
™ .
-

ENGINEER’S REPORT
ON REPAIRS OR
IMPROVEMENTS TO
MAIN TILE
DRAINAGE DISTRICT
NO. 9
HARDIN COUNTY,

IOWA

1 HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS ENGINEERING DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED BY
sttt ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT PERSONAL SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY
\\\\\mll" ’////%,/ LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
\\\\\\\\‘Q?@F_E__S._Slo,y 4”/ IOWA
W R ., y,
ST ek | o o )
§5  LEEO. %% 7 O’// —> PE A, ./26/ 2y Y
g % ! GALLENTINE S LEE O. GALLENTINE, P.E. ] 7 DATE
2R 15745 > LICENSE NUMBER: 15745
S kg MY LICENSE RENEWAL DATE IS DECEMBER 31, 2020
% e @\\\‘ PAGES OR SHEETS COVERED BY THIS SEAL:
%, IOWI R SHOWN ON TABLE OF CONTENTS
Dy OWA
s

CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES OFFICE LOCATIONS

16 East Main Street, PO Box 754 | Marshalltown, IA 50158 779 Paric Avente
1523 S. Bell Avenue, Suite 101 | Ames, IA 50010
5106 Nordic Drive | Cedar Falls, 1A 50613

Phone: 641-847-3273
739 Park Avenue | Ackley, IA 50601 Fax: 641-847.2303
511 Bank Street | Webster City, IA 50595




Engineer's Report on Repairs or Improvements

to Main Tile, Drainage District No. 9

Hardin County, Iowa

Table of Contents

Report

Introduction

Partial District History

Investigation

Discussion and Conclusions

Repair Method

Reroute Method

Opinions of Probable Construction Costs
Ownership and Classifications
Recommendations

Appendices

November 28, 2018 Meeting Minutes

Investigation Summary for Work Order #229

Map — Investigation Limits

Map - Tile Replacement — Repair

Map — Tile Reroute — Improvement

Opinion of Probable Construction Costs — Tile Replacement — Repair
Opinion of Probable Construction Costs — Tile Reroute — Improvement

1

P:\6735.1\PM\DOC\6735.1 - Engineer's Report (Hardin Co) DD 9.docx

)—U
aQ
R0 I N B W

App. A
App. B
App. C
App.D
App.E
App. F
App. G



1.0

Engineer's Report on Repairs or Improvements
to Main Tile, Drainage District No. 9
Hardin County, Iowa

INTRODUCTION

SCOPE OF WORK — The Hardin County Board of Supervisors, acting as District
Trustees, requested Clapsaddle-Garber Associates to investigate and report concerning
repairs or improvements to the Main tile of Drainage District No. 9. This report will
summarize the history of repairs, investigate the necessity and feasibility of said repairs or
improvements, and present opinions of probable construction costs associated with said
repairs or improvements. At the Drainage District Meeting held on November 28, 2018,
the preliminary results of the investigation for Work Order #229 were discussed and
reviewed by the District Trustees. For reference, a copy of the meeting minutes is included
in Appendix A and a copy of the final Investigation Summary for Work Order #229 (as
considered at the April 24, 2019 Drainage District Meeting) is included in Appendix B. As
a result of these meetings, the District Trustees requested Clapsaddle-Garber Associates to
move ahead with an investigation and report concerning repairs or improvements to the
Main tile.

LOCATION — The area of investigation was limited to the middle portion of the Main tile
that is southeast of the existing railroad. Said middle portion is located in Section 6,
Township 88 North (T88N), Range 21 West (R21W) and Section 1, Township 88 North
(T88N), Range 22 West (R22W), Hardin County, lowa. Specifically, the downstream limit
of the investigation is at the southernmost railroad crossing approximately % mile north of
County Highway D-25. Going upstream, the tile then proceeds northeast for approximately
Y4 mile when it turns northwest. It then continues northwest for approximately V4 mile
where it crosses said railroad again. For reference, a map showing the limits of
investigation is included in Appendix C.

2

P:\6735. 1\PM\DOC\6735.1 - Engineer's Report (Hardin Co) DD 9.docx



2.0

PARTIAL DISTRICT HISTORY — The following is a summary of the partial history of

Drainage District No. 9 as obtained from the Hardin County Auditor’s drainage minutes and

records.

1909, June 30
1917, Sept. 12
1959, May 13
1959, May 25
1960, Jun. 1
1962, May 29
1962, Jun. 27
1962, Oct. 12
1968, Nov. 1

1969, Apr. 21
1970, Oct. 20

1970, Sept. 14
1972, Oct. 27
1978, Apr. 27
1991, Oct. 9
1995, Nov. 27

2004, Apr. 28

Contract with S.W. Ansell for construction of original district facilities.
Recommendation of repair of the Main tile outlet.

Bill for repair of tile located in Section 6.

Bill for repair of tile located in Section 6.

Bill for repair of tile located in Section 6.

Bill for repair and cleaning of tile located in Section 6.

Bill for repair of tile located in Section 6.

Bill for repair of tile located in Section 6.

Request for repair of tile located in Section 6 as tile was not working along
railroad tracks.

Request to repair broken tile located in Section 6.

Request for extension of the Main tile at its outlet and possible annexation as a
result.

Bill for repair of Main tile located in Section 1.

Bill for repair of tile blowout located in Section 1.

Bill for repair of broken tile located in Section 6.

Bill for repair of broken Main tile in or near railroad located in Section 1.

Bill for repair of broken Lateral 2 tile located along railroad right of way fence
in Section 6.

Request for repair of broken Main tile located in Section 6.

3

P:\6735. 1\PM\DOC\6735.1 - Engineer's Report (Hardin Co) DD 9.docx



3.0

4.0

INVESTIGATION — All field investigation for this report was performed as part of the
Investigation Summary for Work Order #229. Said investigation was limited repairing a tile
blowout, excavating the tile at regular intervals, locating tile (including GPS survey), and noting
the level of debris in the tile at each excavation. For reference, a copy of the Investigation
Summary is included in Appendix B. The following key issues should be noted:

e At the upstream limits of investigation, another sinkhole was found in or near the railroad
right of way. From this sinkhole, the tile could not be located upstream (i.e. underneath the
existing railroad) due to debris and the Main tile appeared to be approximately %% full of
debris (i.e. rock, sand, soil, silt, etc). It was also noted that the upstream land on the other
side of the railroad tracks was extremely saturated and appeared not to be draining.

e Atthe last excavation (near the downstream limits of investigation), the tile could not be
located downstream (i.e. underneath the existing railroad) due to apparent tree growth inside
the railroad right of way.

A review of district history shows that 15 repairs since the original district construction. These
repairs have consisted of tile replacement in lengths up to 20 feet and repairs of
blowouts/sinkholes. It should be noted that 3 of the repairs have been in or near the existing
railroad. It is also possible that a lack of other repairs is not an indication of lack of repairs, but
instead an indication of lack of documentation.

DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSIONS — Based on the above, it is obvious that the Main tile
has a history of failure, especially in or near railroad right of way. Since the original profile for
the Main tile shows installation depths of approximately 3 to 5 feet at the above mentioned
upstream sinkhole, the issue is probably not attributable to lack of ground cover. Instead, it is
probably due to the utility installation, tile age, or both. Differentiating between these causes
would be hard at best.

Regardless of the cause of the tile failure, if repairs or improvements are not performed the Main
tile will not properly drain any of the land upstream of the railroad track due to its plugged or
restricted state. This will likely prevent crop production on a large portion of the field upstream
of the same location. Also, depending upon the condition of said Main tile under the existing
railroad tracks, there may be a liability exposure by the drainage district if a sinkhole were to
develop in the existing railbed.

4

PA6735.1\PM\DOC\6735.1 - Engineer's Report (Hardin Co) DD 9.docx



5.0 REPAIR METHOD — To repair the existing Main tile, the following option is the most
straightforward available:

Tile Replacement

e Tor the portion of the Main tile in the railroad right of way at the upstream limits of
investigation, install a new Main tile at the location dictated by railroad standards and
abandon the existing Main tile at its current location.

o For the portion of the Main tile in the railroad right of way at the downstream limits of
investigation, jet clean the existing Main tile, CCTV inspect the existing Main tile to
verify its condition and remove the trees inside the railroad right of way.

e Tor reference, the locations of proposed work are shown on the map included in
Appendix D.

With the above-mentioned repair methods, the following should be noted:

The condition of the Main tile at the downstream railroad crossing is unknown.

o For the above option, the current railroad crossing would not be removed, but would be
abandoned and a new crossing will be installed at a location dictated by railroad
standards.

e For the above option, trees within 50 of the locations of the existing or replaced Main
tile inside railroad right of way would be removed to stop infiltration of tree roots.

e The pipe sizes used are those that are currently manufactured that most closely meet the
current Main tile size.

e The above option would only remove soil and debris in the existing Main tile at the areas
of work.

e The above work is for the identified portions of the Main tile only. No work is proposed
for the remainder of the existing Main tile.

e Repairs have historically been viewed as not having an impact on jurisdictional wetlands.
As such, individual landowners should consult with applicable staff at the Hardin County
NRCS offices to verify the existence of said jurisdictional wetlands and that there will be
no impact on them.

Per Iowa Code Chapter 468.126, any of the above actions that do not increase capacity would be
considered a repair. As such, Subsection 1, paragraph ¢ of Chapter 468.126 states "If the
estimated cost of the repair does not exceed fifty thousand dollars, the board may order the work
done without conducting a hearing on the matter. Otherwise, the board shall set a date for a
hearing. . ." The opinion of probable construction cost contained in the next section of this report
exceeds said $50,000 limit. Therefore, a hearing will be required. Per lowa Code Chapter
468.126.1.g, the right of remonstrance does not apply to the proposed repairs.

P:\6735. 1\PM\DOC\6735.1 - Engineer's Report (Hardin Co) DD 9.docx



6.0 IMPROVEMENT METHOD - To improve the drainage capacity for the existing Main tile,
the following option is the most straightforward available:

Tile Reroute

e Sever the existing Main tile upstream of the upstream railroad crossing and plug the
downstream end on northwest side of the railroad right of way.

e  Abandon existing Main tile at said upstream railroad crossing under the railroad tracks.

e Install a new Main tile from the location of severing southwest parallel with the railroad
right of way to the downstream side of the downstream railroad crossing and connect the
new Main tile with the existing Main tile at this location.

e For the portion of the Main tile in the railroad right of way at the downstream limits of
investigation, jet clean the existing Main tile, CCTV inspect the existing Main tile to
verify its condition and remove the trees inside the railroad right of way.

e Tor reference, the locations of proposed work are shown on the map included in
Appendix E.

With the above-mentioned improvement method, the following should be noted:

e The condition of the Main tile at the downstream railroad crossing is unknown.

e For the above option, the current railroad crossing would not be removed, but would be
abandoned as dictated by railroad standards.

o For the above option, trees within 50° of the locations of the existing Main tile inside
railroad right of way would be removed to stop infiltration of tree roots.

e The pipe sizes used are those that are currently manufactured that most closely meet the
current Main tile size.

e The above option would only remove soil and debris in the existing Main tile at the areas
of work.

e The above work is for the identified portions of the Main tile only. No work is proposed
for the remainder of the existing Main tile.

e This improvement would split the current drainage shed of the Main into two different
pieces. As a result, these watersheds should be separated and each have its own
classification.

e Improvements have historically been viewed as having an impact on jurisdictional
wetlands. As such, individual landowners should consult with applicable staff at the
Hardin County NRCS office to determine the existence of said jurisdictional wetlands
and what said impact may be on them.

Per Iowa Code Chapter 468.126, the above actions would be considered an improvement. As
such, Subsection 4, paragraph ¢ of Chapter 468.126 states "If the estimated cost of the
improvement does not exceed fifty thousand dollars, the board may order the work done without
conducting a hearing on the matter. Otherwise, the board shall set a date for a hearing on whether
to construct the proposed improvement and whether there shall be a reclassification of benefits
for the cost of the proposed improvement." The opinion of probable construction cost contained
in the next section of this report exceeds said $50,000 limit. Therefore, a hearing will be
required. Per Towa Code Chapter 468.126.4.¢, the right of remonstrance may apply to the
proposed improvements.

6

P:\6735. 1\PM\DOC\6735.1 - Engineer's Report (Hardin Co) DD_9.docx



7.0

OPINIONS OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS — Using the above methods of
repair and improvement, an itemized list of project quantities and associated opinions of probable
construction cost for each option were compiled and are included in Appendices F and G of this
report. A summary of said costs are as follows:

METHOD DRAINAGE | CONSTRUCTION
COEFF. COST
Tile Replacement — Repair Existing $195,600
Tile Reroute — Improvement Existing $154,200

It should be noted that said costs include materials, labor, and equipment supplied by the
contractor to complete the necessary repair and include applicable engineering, construction
observation, and project administration fees by Clapsaddle-Garber Associates. However, said
costs do not include any interest, legal fees, county administrative fees, crop damages, other
damages, previous repairs, engineering fees to date, wetland mitigation fees, or reclassification
fees (if applicable). As always, all costs shown are opinions of Clapsaddle-Garber Associates
based on previous lettings on other projects. Said costs are just a guideline and are not a
guarantee of actual costs.

7

P:A6735. 1\PM\DOC\6735.1 - Engineer's Report (Hardin Co) DD 9.docx



8.0

9.0

OWNERSHIP AND CLASSIFICATIONS — Any and all information concerning ownership
of lands and classifications of said lands within Drainage District No. 9 can be obtained from the
Hardin County Auditor’s office.

It should be noted that Iowa Code Chapter 468.65 states “When, after a drainage . . . district has
been established . . ." and ". . . a repair . . . has become necessary, the board may consider
whether the existing assessments are equitable as a basis for payment of the expense of . . .
making the repair . . . " and "If they find the same to be inequitable in any particular . . . they shall
... order a reclassification . . . " Based on this, it is our opinion that a reclassification may be
required if the repair were to move forward.

It should also be noted that since the Main tile is being split into two watersheds, a
reclassification of at least the Main tile would be required if the improvement were to move
forward.

The final note is that lowa Code Chapter 468.131 states “When an assessment for improvements .

. exceeds twenty-five percent of the original assessment and the original or subsequent
assessment . . . did not designate separately the amount each tract should pay for the main ditch
and tile lateral drains then the board shall order a reclassification . . .” Since the proposed project
does not involve the laterals, it is not clear if a reclassification separating the laterals would be
required or out. Therefore, it is our recommendation that the District Trustees seek advice from
their legal counsel.

RECOMMENDATIONS — There is a definite need to perform one of the above-mentioned
actions. The repair would remove the current restrictions and impediments to the Main tile and
extend the lifespan of the same. The improvement would do the same and increase the capacity
of the Main tile east of the railroad. Therefore, it is recommended that the Hardin County Board
of Supervisors, acting as District Trustees, should take action to accomplish the following:

o Approve the Engineer’s Report as prepared by Clapsaddle-Garber Associates.

o Hold the required hearing on the proposed repairs or improvements.

e Adopt one of the recommendations of the Engineer’s Report.

e Direct plans and specifications for the proposed repairs or improvements be prepared by
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates.

Proceed with receiving bids from interested contractors by Clapsaddle-Garber Associates.
Award contract to the lowest responsible contractor.

o Ifdesired or required by Iowa Code, proceed with reclassification proceedings

P:\6735.1\PM\DOC\6735.1 - Engineer's Report (Hardin Co) DD 9.docx



REGULAR DRAINAGE MEETING

11/28/2018 - Minutes

. Open Meeting

Hardin County Board of Supervisor Chairman, BJ Hoffman, opened the meeting. Also present were
Supervisors, Lance Granzow and Renee McClellan; Hardin County Attorney, Darrell Meyer; Contractor,
Jacob Handsaker with Hands On Excavating; Lee Gallentine with Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (CGA);
Drainage Clerk, Tina Schlemme.

. Approve Agenda
McClellan moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the agenda as presented. All ayes. Motion carried.

. Approve Minutes
McClellan moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the minutes of the November 14, 2018 regular drainage
meeting. All ayes. Motion carried.

. Approve Claims For Payment

McClellan moved, Hoffman seconded to approve the claims for payment with pay date of Friday, November
30, 2018. All ayes. Motion carried.

DD H-S 3-58 Assessments 2018 Story County Auditor $ 943.90
DD H-H 1-103 ASSESSMENTS 2018 Hamilton Co Auditor $ 781.00
DD H-F 4-53 ASSESSMENTS 2017 Frankiin Co Auditor $ 6.00
DD 22 ENG SVCS 9/15-10/20/18 Clapsaddie-Garber Assoc  $ 660.00
DD 55-3 LAT 9A WO 29 ENG FEES Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc  $ 544.65
DD 136 WO 146 POSTAGE Hardin County Auditor $ 7.98
DD 25 CANCEL CONTRACT BONDING COSTS Farm Tile Pro LC $5,336.00
DD 52 Legal Advice for filing petition The Davis Brown Law Firm $ 57.00
DD 148 WO 211 Repair R D Customs LLC $ 967.00

. DD 41, 77, 123, 128, 143 & Big 4 Main - Approve Change Order #2

Hoffman stated there were concerns with Hands On completing some municipal projects and not working
on the contracted drainage projects to meet the deadline. Handsaker replied that due to the weather, they
were only able to work on the municipal projects because they were rock surfaces. They completed the
streets and waterway drainage projects but did not get the excavator work done due to wet soil conditions.
He added that they were hoping to get it done yet this winter or early spring. McClellan moved, Hoffman
seconded to approve Change Order #2 for a time extension from November 30, 2018 to May 1, 2019. Ali
ayes. Motion carried.

. DD 48 - Approve Work Order Request #237
McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve Work Order Request #237 for an outlet problem in section
23-88-21. CGA is to investigate and report back. All ayes. Motion carried.

. DD 21 - Approve Work Order Request #239 For Reclassification
McClellan moved, Granzow seconded to approve Work Order Request #239 for a reclassification to result
as discussed at the June 13, 2018 regular drainage meeting. All ayes. Motion carried.

. DD 9 - Discuss, With Possible Action, Updates To Work Order #229

Gallentine presented a few problems discovered: 1) Trees in the RR right of way with some water flow on
the south track crossing of the main tile. 2) A sinkhole in/near RR right of way with fiber optic warning tape
in hole. Tile 1/2-3/4 full of dirt and rock and no water flow on the north track crossing of the main tile. 3) A
sinkhole in field with tile 1/4-1/2 full of dirt and sand and some water flow on the main tile east of tracks. A
couple options were discussed, both being over $50,000. McClellan moved, Granzow seconded for CGA to



10.

1.

prepare an engineer's report. All ayes. Motion carried.

Discuss, With Possible Action, Drainage Clerk Position

Much discussion was had regarding changing the drainage clerk position to a full-time position under the
Board of Supervisors. Meyer submitted Code of lowa sections pertaining to drainage clerk position. After
many ideas were discussed, the Trustees agreed for Meyer to draft an agreement between the Auditor and
the Board. The position will begin January 1, 2019 and the clerk will then track all time spent on drainage
districts, which will be assessed to the districts annually based off of the calendar year. The current budget
will be used for January 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019 and then 100% of the salary will be taken out of a new
line item under the Board from the general fund and will be reimbursed when assessments are collected
(first collecting in 2020). The Trustees understood that the salary would not be 100% reimbursed due to
general administrative duties.

Other Business

DD 55-3 Lat 12 - Schlemme updated the Trustees that the Notice of Repair Across Railroad Right-of-Way
was mailed to the UPRR on September 27, 2018, giving them 30 days notice. Granzow moved, McClellan
seconded to perform the additional actions recommended of removing the trees within 50 feet of the tile,
root cleaning and jetting the lateral tile and televising the lateral to verify the condition, as shown in the
Repair Summary for Work Order #201. All ayes. Motion carried.

Adjourn Meeting
Granzow moved, McClellan seconded to adjourn the meeting. All ayes. Motion carried.



Drainage District:
9

Repair Summary: ‘

e Tenantin SWX% Section 6, Township 89 North, Range 22 West reported two blowouts/sinkholes on Main tile.

e Visually searched area and found one blowout/sinkhole, approximately 225 feet southeast of railroad right of
way (see attached spot repair map).

s Tile blowout/sinkhole is missing one section of VCP tile and is 1/3 full of debris.

e located Main tile upstream for 590’+ and downstream for 1430’+ from blowout/sinkhole.

e Upstream found broken VCP tile in sinkhole/blowout just downstream of railroad. The tile appears to have
possibly been broken when fiber optic line was installed (see attached spot repair map). '

e During location of main tile, excavated 7 observation holes. Excavation of one of the observation holes
damaged a 4” private tile. Repaired private tile with 2‘of 6” Dual Wall HDPE tile.

e Repaired first blowout/sinkhole with 18.3’ of 15” Dual Wall HDPE tile with concrete collars.

e Repaired observation hole approximately 150’ south railroad right of way with 6.25” of 15” Dual Wall HDPE tile

with fabric wrapped joints.
o Filled holes as much as possible with on-site soil.
o Note: Contractor was changed midway through repairs from Randy Brown per 1-16-2019 Drainage Meeting
minutes. McDowell and Sons Contractors completed the work after this date (see breakdown on attached).
e In April, backfilling of excavation was completed by McDowell with un-frozen soil.

Contractor Time and Materials (spent while CGA was on-site):

See attached Tabulated Contractor Time and Materials Sheet.

Additional Actions Recommended:

The unrepaired broken tile in the railroad right of way is severely limiting the drainage upstream and will
eventually cause additional blowouts/sinkholes and ponding. Moving forward, we would recommend abandoning
the current railroad crossing, install a new crossing meeting Union Pacific Railroad standards/permits to restore
the drainage to its original design or install a bypass tile on the north side of the railroad right of way. Based on
either of these options, it is my opinion that the construction cost would be well over $50,000. This cost is high
enough that a hearing and engineering report would be required.

P:\6735\PM\DOC\6735-REPAIR SUMMARY.docx



XS[X'S[el1BI ¥ Swll J0joenu 0D-G£/9\[99xI\INd\SEL9\:d

SBOAIAUNS AN - SHISNIDNS

VIO

|[PMOQIIN Swoisn) (Y
rd Z (ves) 1gjj0D @32.10U0)
€8T ST'9 QST ("4) 3dQH Ifem [end ,ST
S SLT STT sT'e q's LT (s1y) soyxoeg
ST §'s S T STT q'S L 6€ (s1y) ueunpop
6T0C/8/€ |8102/6¢/1T|{8107/9T/TT|8T0C/€Z/1T |810Z/TZ/TT{810Z/6T/TT |8T0Z/9T/1T sjejol ajeq

S|elda1ejAl pue awl] Jo3deliuo) paieinge|



P:\6735\CADD\Quantltles\6735-repalr_summary3.dwg - CGA Plan - 04-10-19 - 4:45pm - ZJS343

| LATERAL NO. 1 TILE
|LEGEND: T N
L e OBSERVATION HOLE
= . (BROKEN TILE APPEARS TO BE |
DRAINAGE DISTRICT FACILITY (LOCATED) CAUSED BY FIBER OPTIC LINE) Lh g
DRAINAGE DISTRICT FACILITY (5 FULL OF DEBRIS) (TEMP. REPAIR) i |
: | | y .I I i:' i ot
kil |
th .~ OBSERVATION HOLE |
!(REPAIRED WITH 6,25' OF 15"% DUAL WALL
| HDPE WITH FABRIC WRAPPED JOINTS)
LATERAL NO. 2 TILE s FULIL OF DEBRIS)
.| OBSERVATION HOLE "/} ']
(CLEAR OF DEBRIS) ' | |
(TEMP. REPAIR) {24
|
|
: OBSERVATION HOLE - BLOWOUT
AN (CLEARVOF EEBQE) (REPAIRED WITH 18.3' OF 15" DUAL WALL
L " TEMP. REPAIR) HDPE WITH CONCRETE COLLARS)
- () FULL OF DEBRIS)
_\_ 1
OBSERVATION HOLE il
(CLEAR OF DEBRIS) '
(TEMP. REPAIR)
\ \_ e
S ' - [LATERAL NO. 4 TILE
| |
| |
| |
I
| ; [
+ | OBSERVATION HOLE ‘ fli] |
: |(CLEAR OF DEBRIS) (TEMP. REPAR) [ flhf i ;
|(DAMAGED 4"p PLASTIC PRIVATE TIE REPAIRED ! [ . '
WITH 2' OF 6" DUAL WALL HDPE) - | s
! ; " | | i | I
| } :' ] .! el \ Y | il |
| H
. ! | . |
! . . ) i
OBSERVATION HOLE il i A !
(CLEAR OF DEBRIS) | ! pen i ' t
(TEMP. REPAIR) . flr 4 | . ' |
1l ¥
.f..l |
1] v :
Al | !
| f i |
I | \
MAIN TILE | -

NO. REVISION B DATE NO. REVISION BY DATE 7 Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc | DESIGNED: #E##E  DATE: #### PROJECT NO.
e RO o e IDRAINAGE DISTRICT #9
0 75 150 :::.';::mo CHECKED: ####  DATE: #### HARDIN IOWA SPOT REPAIRS SHEET NO.

v cgaconm il coim APPROVED: #### _DATE: #### > 1




Date: 10/26/2018

Drainage Work Order Request For Repair
Hardin County

Work Order #: WQ000000229

Drainage District: Drainage Districts \DD 9 {51022)

Sec-Twp-Rge: 06-88-21 Qtr Sec:

Location/GIS: 88-21-06-300-002

Requested By: Scott Renaud (Tenant)

Contact Phone: (641) 751-4734

Contact Email:

Landowner (i different): Tom Roberts

Description: DD 9 - Huge lake (approx 15 acres) of corn under water. Blowout approximately 300-

500 yards southeast of RR and another one NW of RR along fenceline. All crops are out
except those around blowouts.

Repair labor, materials and equipment:

Repaired By:

Please reference work order # and send statement for services to:

For Office Use Only

Date:

Hardin County Auditor's Office
Attn: Drainage Clerk

1215 Edgington Ave, Suite 1
Eldora, IA 50627

Phone (641) 939-8111

Fax (641) 939-8245

Approved:

Date:




Hardin County "
Auditor's Office o

Date: 10/26/201
0 0.075 0.15 0.3 0.45 08
B Py ey iles

The Data is provided "as is" without warranty or any representation of accurac
merchantability and fitness for or the appropriatenéss for use rests solely on t 2 :
There are no implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. The requester acknowledges and accepts the limitations of the Data, including the fact
that the Data is dynamic and is in a constant state of maintenance, correction and update. Cadastral Data represents land
ownership, but does not define it. This Data does not replace a legal survey.

, timeliness or completeness. The burden for determining accuracy, completeness, timeliness,
e requester. Hardin County makes no warranties, express or implied is to the use of the Data.



{1/‘9%8

CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING DATE: (e 8
OBSERVATION REPORT
l DAYS OF WEEK: ' T
PROJECT NUMBER: . 18 WITAEAS
COUNTY, ROUTE, ROAD: “m SHEELNO. L OF
JUNLY, SO ODG . Hevon Co :
LOCATION: D25 “Recae” | UPRR

DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND MATERTAL USED F OR EACH OPERATION INCLUDING CONTRACTOR/SUE
NAME, ITTEMNO. AND LOCATION

%:00 2omn CRewo ol Sir o doc un T & Bleo. eur Ara) RS Ta

T

e

g 1
Farenn  Tug  fobra. 177 CRosse.  UPEC  ddegond Siggser 7T 'io)

- ///‘ ‘ wbe ) E supawe £ /19-3 34
~ {( . /ﬁ 344 nsugwﬁ'f
'%g:\;g )m“’ ///éf//sfuw ;’:anu“of‘ﬂs >
&( . /,__,V/'/}/// " A3 s cuwy The Bu /10,78 @'f?%i"""r
u//// Bt s ey Eue, 140,18 B Rwmuo
- m/ﬁy A Tigeny B .88 N Ccan B iy conmn

$ : //,/;I /"1% fLis'cany e 130 2l — Cegqp & 2" warpe Fasy
STRANVDISG TREEs 7//// “ bE T L u's . ~J

Y 7/ A

g

3¢ 3 'T.l% «..u\\;i By, il.')'l.qﬁ - 2’)”‘1«&)1—&)7(( S

ey Ok |

MQ__LQQM;% AT Tk oy s diok. OFW
ol 4 for ies pun lownmn wnm Comi. igum Bas-cor 7o vece
Setors, SO0~ AHY lbrr Foa@ 330

WAER on W, SRR i

 nrBke @341 Hes BRoxks Beamwe  Bur B s ey (osser ww@

;d(je;t;ﬁ that the work descnba thls report was incorporated into this contract unless ofhetwise noted.
Observer’s Sipnature: —Z A A Date Prepared: u e /18 n/1a/18
Reviewed by: : DEngfneer .

" Date Revievwed

Users\Ryken Standard Forms and Procedures\Company Forms\Construction Enginesring Observation Repoti (1)















—
¢ .{( P ﬁﬁi.’gﬁr'*rn ‘f"-u).'-' 3("I

-




‘0,05772‘6»%7 F%'l] £33y } /-/cc1<£4? ?.‘ PE. worrid IBUL‘JCE,T" f?'fpfﬂf( g gN'R‘P C;Cu\fiaﬁg_

L




Tiwe @ 343




¢ *313

7rek




RS T
S
= S

S .... =













Dow oot Har @ =340
i 'gg. “:vﬁ NN }H‘%}







CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING DATE: [(=2] — 16

OBSERVATION REPORT
DAYS OF WEEK:
PROJECT NUMBER: £735 s ImlT @ [F s |
COUNTY, ROUTE, ROAD: S (75" SHEET NO. | OF ’
) ) | . ‘)l’) 17 . - v
LOCATION: 5(5 y‘_, SéCCA — 8(2 _Z;

DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND MATERIAL USED FOR EACH OPERATION, INCLUDING CONTRACTOR/SUB
NAME, ITEM NO. AND LOCATION

93> SCT JP BAsE 7T 87 /1000

i 45 AAA WED o S rE | /9An 1M RACK o&E

1009 OPEMEYN  Hove 3380 34" cléaw whosr Flors me
THR o v G H EHE

IMrAKe B 39] CoMc  INTAKE @ iN Good (201w 1 ops
14
W/ G LAY AUNING A DRY BEEH/CE 0 nr

0L 1s [FRE KEN

[01US  IPENED HveE A 3S T ConiRaauR_ FrokE |

PIECE pF TIte &7 BRCk HOE BoTH 7/e& @R

B powN CTAEAN HACE K /N TIECE  LATER FC

CRACkS rleE /s feow, G R =YY CLEQRs
i ATER LOCATE D Too THE OPEN THRE @ 87y
Jlioo fHote 3499 Dowrd SFREAm 1S HALE Fuce OF
DIRT UP YR €an, ,5 34 Fuee Rock w/ A
TRICUALE eF wWATER LWATER AV THS  SPET
LS Sbops/ r~ocinvg B 7 " pEgp
I 95 Pl gD VP [PASE ¥+ LEFT S ITE

LEE  SHBW 1 TEmPorpmriLyY Pprcd  POT Ho LES AMY) Feee

THE HocfS 1M, RANAY Stin  HE woct? po (T FRigaY

I Certify that the work described in this repgrt was incorporated into this contract unless otherwise noted.
Observer’s Signature: /A;:-, d‘vy/ Date Prepared: \ (—Z /- /s
£ ,

D Engineer

Reviewed by:

Date Reviewed

Users\Ryken Standard Forms and Procedures\Company Forms\Construction Engineering Observation Report (1)



_»-'_V :5_‘:.‘ i C S (o “/’

=

SRt
















[s 14 G

/]
L @G

sS4

3

'LE‘

H




359 took

Ho

67 35"







/

4

PIIAYETT A

'35 Lé JfeA LoDE g )\




COMSTRUCTION ENGINEERING DATE: ' VS AS

OBSERVATION REPORT
= DAYS OF WEEK: LLLH_L@:
PROJECT NUMBER: S ’M TIWIT 8
G135 SHEETNO. oLor
COUNTY, ROUTE, ROAD: '
- DO 9
LOCATION: - - D2

DESCRIPTION OF WORK. AND MATERIAL USED FOR EACH OPERATION, INCLUDING CONTRACTOR/SUR

NAME, TTEM NO. AND LOCATION - waps S ‘M ey Sols , 350; Bres s/ o &.E.

k}‘lj{), Ao CErs cvmy STE

— —

Ao vy @ Jonr &
) Cos _

G X" Mass sn  Tig =9 A.ﬂgxznla, A 12 % 12" Pice ar LD o B> o

i)
./

A . - 2 72

J

< - - > — Vo)
S UFER UULFL EnnD Bﬂcﬂ’/!ci e (2 a2d Ado ([/.’7‘)7953;?71.’\1 2 St P T D0 0cr ek T '\.zﬂr/)ﬁo?ﬂ-u-'

s <

el SB, AR Cdhngs s T .;/u V7 r/»:?r—‘e;;( =o' .'ﬁaqmm CdHrEg A

~

S i . —
s 187 Fuou. e J/)W‘) (. Corwerwr  (Coer /Q7u/} E =TVt 76X 9)2 7% W

teget Jon @ IO 20 oo DN igsk W

T Certify that the work described in this report was incorporated info this confract unless oftheiwise noted.

. ) 2 /
Observer’s Sighaturer .~ )/ £/ 2 Dato Preparod: _ufesfig o
) = N;/l_\,é/" \\/ - . -

Reviewed by: DEngineér

" Date Reviewed

Users\Ryken Standard Forms and Procedures\Company Forms\Consimetion Engineering Observation Report (1)



L Roecond B 5B HO o ) ;
CICHOE. (o o e '
T - e S FAxs ors OO 9D "/ 23 /)8
.. I i _ \ TEw N - -=
BT L =4 ‘

ey l| M 1




Repmans Temp (%S




CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING " DATE: i1/26 /201D
OBSERVATION REPORT

‘ DAYS OF WEEK: |] '

) HARDW &0 1S TIWITIE IS
PROJECT NUMBER: — < MI’M; zé"? |
COUNTY, ROUTE, ROAD! 1, 29

< o TN A YT Ees - mip TEEWS To  row Zole ~oyEkcasi
No z—aomu Y] 3 a
LOCATION: 201 "0 oty po2s & o 7v cion o WDy LoiTH uéHT‘léLwQRIQS

6735 DD H.SURV:
DESCRIPTION OF WORKAND MATERIAL USED FOR EACH OPERATION, INCLUDING coﬁ CTOR/SUB

NAME, TTEM NO. AND L@GATION

SHEET NO. /| . OF /_

(50 _pume rQﬁNDt/ ERpra DUR,_CFIEE /n/FﬁmeD ME TaaT LEE RECEIVED.

AN EMAIL rﬂom RM{JL’/@K@&M/ TH&T T - Wi 8€” anmxé
——  TEmMPA 2 : : Fo 673\5‘/029-#9 /ODHW Aor DLl il £

BE ON s i T AR e /2 1000 /41«’14
BISS A, Rawny 64AvE mE THE woRt pior FoR 6735 /00#9
Ao Al sp niws mE_ THE wWorl Fiy ErFoR €952, Op #1483
[ //«/(,(1 DI €67~ TO T1487 REPHALR T o0 -
UOOA, M, 0BSERVER_TRIED cell Prow n/um,ée-,z Eok Rppdy Seouwa.
L0 VERIE (o 1E HE WAS Sriel. PL»‘rWn/o/Vé’ ow BEjE @ Tor s e
ALoww (10000 A, . BT MESSAEE CAML- ©lP THAr TH(S
W B ER il ¢ O [OwEER s SERV IS, [TRIED PHONE MNUmBER
THAT RANDY RELEWED A Ciil Fiepm RA n/p/c/ BRow ) O 11/23/&/8'
BT LEWIT T /0t CE 1 ot L LEFT MESSALE oN tH%?—T‘ CELL PHoME
0 VERIEY JF F%M/Dl/ o> BE. SN _SITE. _ARCUND 1O AeMy_
‘:leLO A/,ML OBSQ’RVER LE/C7’ OB ENRouU7TE 770 SiTE
9:i56 A, OBscrver ARRIVED on SiTE. LIL T 2O BT T /uz)a/ S/n;s
1025 Aum RPNDY AWD NicK ARRIVED oW SITE [J(TI{ <I2E
580 surRer'W) BACK MpE AL READy lw FIELD  CREL SAID
71—/6/V WERE RUNN e LATE SINVEE FICKUP Lodep ol STIVHRT
THIS racRevéne ANZ Hip T TUMP STHRT IT, CREW pPrUucel/d
EWE [ WE 5@@( HEATER iwrp GENERATOR. ., ’
WYY pp, cREW tinp BACK HoE RUWWING

1. QO Ay, CREW. Fouwr FRoZe Soil. AROL(A/Z? CLA-/‘__TI'L{ REPAIR. . CREW THoUGHT

THE/&» Loulpp HE MpRE PAM AL THEW £ODD WHILE - Tizlvmjé 70 eaM_aVE'
FRozzn]) So1l. S0 THEY WLl tonll” TILL ASouT 'AJED/VESDﬁr/V 76 FIhISH

REPHIRS ivien) TEMPERATURES ARE WwALRLMEL. .
W00 A v, OBSERyvER LEFT7T Si78, CREW wWAS MEARSURING UP PIFE NEEDED For. 'TE”M

I Cextify that the work described in this report was incorporated into this conffact unless otherwise noted.

Observer’s Signature: ) = Date Prepared: /! / 2.6 /Zo (5
aai g'[ga,a,éjﬁ,i,‘: ' ,
Reviewed by: : Ij Engineer :

. Date Reviewed

Users\Kyken Standard Forms and Procedures\Commpany Forms\Construction Engineering Observation Report (1)



COMBSTRUCTION ENGINEERTING DATE: _ w /= /e
A

OBSERVATION REPORT
) DAYS OF WEEK: N
PROJECT NUMBER: 4 s bl lwiedw Is
- SHEET NO. [oLoE
COUNTY, ROUTE, ROAD:
.- DY Hewdin -
LOCATION: 2o 0 y

DESCRIPTION OF WORK. AND MATERTAL USED FOR EACH OPERATION INCLUDING CONTRACTOR/SUER
NAME, ITEM NO. AND LOCATION T Fanay Sremn. 3 5C_caim, , _
J

Argrng ¢ Joo Sar (2 /0:00 Ky r?,«mm/ B?oaw Coauenr St Kre coxmor
Be_mutae Tiue 12.00 Noend. lget Forl DNGR H. @ Once Loxe. ‘
-Aﬂﬁ;.m Boex & Top, DG 145, Na CRfud é)ﬁ:r

%)Aif( " Rpasrc Tuc

. > o
[245 Ll Kanuy G Niew  <pons v s Jarss To

%, )
el 0RATIOn ) dig @ %324 Bor s a B, f?mm/ .

Acenentrus Hokeo  Auginsd
Bt Pl To CJE.,T F}\(u"( Fm A ”Tli <hra Firan A-y\j (sep A ?lr,wlliuf or
T 5" SiNGre st Tiour _Far e FAsec ousd_

fr | Mo

G _doee e . Ko o ysd

gL X

is_or _Oer #re Frozen, 1’ mucc, /émo 75 _Bpexiro .
130 Pl (bt 10 Lhonge 53 cum? Reowta C\-A.u Tie e Toous our R5 oF. ol a,ﬁ

_M_MM@E mo%/grmﬂ (¢ 37 )

300, ShAr S _Oows  wan f\?eomm Fox 'B\e&m Rf—b\.ﬂ/\%uh\l SRuD #mjz.ﬁ)u:j
RIETTERNES Keci_ s QPFL lommwQ .

T Certify that the ‘work deseribed inthis report was incorporated into this contract wnless othelwise noterd.

Obsetvet’s Signatare: m\ﬂg /\ Date Prepared: / {;2 ﬁg o

Reviewed by: ‘ K2 DEng'meér

" Dafe Reviewed

Users\Ryken Staudard Forms and Procedures\Company Forms\Construction Englueering Observation Report (1)









e Y m——

(42
Wk
S







CONSTRUCTTION ENGINEERING DATE: 5 /2 /19

OBSERVATION REPORT ' =/
: DAYS OF WEEK: LJJ:H_[@E
PROJECT NUMBER: S JM T W S

@735 SHEET NO. . . OF

COUNTY, ROUTE, ROAD:
- oD 9 o

LOCATION:

DESCRIPTION OF WORX AND MATERIAT, TUSED FOR. BACH OPERATION INCLUDIN G CONTRACTOR/SUE
NAME, ITEM INO. AND LOCATION C’wuoq , /'oécv 25, G nin Penm SE f’?"”‘/ Bm

o Tom i o @

2! of (Tozgn Fdgm M Azuos

a0 Aepuiunn @ TGop sin @ “Racine " Guiost /ow._am__m_é&z&sﬁ

@mm_&-\n "‘ms Cownd B s duar i T .
_@Z&Aém.mm.&m:z%m/ #3400 4s /:tju oF Sﬁa«) lrvee. Frn!

Lot o Rxx wis Existing. an Snfg . 247

M@M AN \\
Bosc Pow 1w K, N

/130 . Zith 2% /aﬂct,.
BAaK LrukQ wni# Ak,

M_gs____fﬁé__z__&u_ﬁ_&&d cher /ﬂc.rs ‘ /

/N_gzzﬂgg THALkD our :
/334
& 7m0 1" cigon ek

5 - e ;MMM \

31

> 18-§ oe Ouac tace 15" (4 OPE
(2 Bacts Cove,

ig report was incorporated into this contract unless otheiwise noted.

Date Prepated: 3 _/EE 513 '
DEngineér ) .

Users\Ryken Stemdard Forms and Procedures\Company Formms\Construction Engineering Observation Report: (1)

1 Certify that the work descti
Observet™s Signature:

Reviewed by:

" Date Reviewed




__(?émov;u(. Saupew FErmv

e

Episrine /louz__e ’%90

iR




&’
3
K




COMDI 77005 @



B, e

“S40

Ca_nﬂl_'ﬂonls @ Jo Sorx.









Racioe Kbak Aromo 15" HOPE

]

& sy ¥ il



o 15" YOPE dunc U

i

8.3



CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING DATE: . /= /i€

OBSERVATION REPORT 43 L)
DAYS OF WEEK:
PROTECT NUMBER: o s vl dwdr e s
— R SHEET NO. . L OF
COUNTY, ROUTE,ROAD: L x
T L‘f)\ )Y H.
LOCATION:

DESCRIPTION OF WORK. AND MATERIAL USED FOR EACH OPERATION INCLUDING CONTRACTOR/SUE
NAME, ITEM NO. AND LOCATION »~ :

N LG "u.' LY
7
‘ \ Y - —— {
WAO\E, A ) - Hw \ i ) AHOD\ 1 » 12 o H--'--'-' :
J N \
R 11 b = ~ \ il A .y =f
U OF _CBT 1S \oinge,  HOLR ynuet [E- DVOED ; LU; L ,\_-.J- T ¢ ‘ ,‘!’(—:-L,;LJL- L e THCH|
3 W\ Q ~ < gy i mae ey -1 1 o] g ) A
md B LAY L|lvduv\--|.u NN S J LMIUSS PN D Somdi"€RMES() (Sl l'bw—. [EF1areY hwq '37\4{.) SN

IMPORRO 2T [ )zeNe ()

g
’—Cerﬁfy that the work descnbed in thlsgapoﬁ was mcoxporated into this contract unless ofherwise noted.
Observer’s Signaire: o= ’-,-1 Y s 25 :,'_X Date Prepared: g A5 /s
Reviswed by: B o D Engineer
" Date Reviewed

Users\Ryken Standard Forms and Procedures\Company Forms\Constuction Engineering Observation Report (1)



P:\6736\nbox\Survey\6735 DD9 H 11-21-2018 cs.ixt

3,3618723.499,4931323.978,1161.577,CONMON 8005

4,3624567.908,4967262.956,1167.807,CP 3/4
300, 3629737.
301, 3629822.
302, 3629791.
303,3629758.
304,3629753.
305,3629774.
306,3629802.
307,3629810.
308,3629822.
309,3629859.
310,3629870.
311,3629891.
312,3629925.
313,3629938.
314,3629966.
315,3630000.
316,3630032.
317,3630060.
318,3630086.
319,3630110.
320,3630134.
321, 3630145.
322,3630165.
323,3630184.
324,36302009.
325,3630233.
326,3630260.
.883,4962948

327,3630284

328,3630309.
329,3630329.
330,3630340.
331,3630387.
332,3630393.
333,3630413.
334,3630437.
335,3630463.
336,3630485.
337,3630507.
338,3630526.
339,3630540.
340, 3630555.
.429,4963280.

341,3630929

342,3630928.
343,3631016.
.255,4963167.

344,3631020

345,3630999.
346,3630614.
.646,4963417

347,3630650

348,3630708.
349,3630756.
350, 3630790.
351,3630800.
352,3630850.
353,3630901.
354,3630917.
355,3630925.
356,3630967.
357,3631010.
358,3631028.
359,3631042.

028,4962244.
903,4962308.
707,4962284.
052,4962260.
034,4962225.
811,4962248.
148,4962282.
400,4962298.
735,4962312.
081,4962343
624,4962355.
427,4962375.
863,4962404.
454,4962416.
977,4962450.
822,4962485.
434,4962523.
547,4962561.
093,4962598.
060,4962639.
112,4962679.
419,4962699.
561,4962736.
950,4962772.
546,4962815.
486,4962858.
767,4962906.

102,4962994.
428, 4963029.
493,4963046.
704,4963129.
247,4963137.
212,4963174.
412,4963217.
134,4963259.
395, 4963300.
477,4963337.
017,4963368.
580,4963386.
208,45963401.

602,4963282.
362,4963171.

195,4963158.
913, 4963420.

938, 4963395.
966, 4963375.
418,4963361.
420, 4963356.
131,4963334.
850, 4963302.
044,4963287.
850, 4963277.
858,4963229.
898, 4963176.
257,4963156.
449,49631309.

618,1146.
404,1146.
913,1147.
329,1146.
981,1147.
609,1146.
548,1146.
964,1147.
159,1147.

.846,1146.

908,1146.
437,1146.
629,1146
585, 1137.
914,1146.
614,1146.
364,1146.
809,1146.
790,1146.
449,1146.
895,1146.
671,1138.
783,1146.
002,1146.
860,1146.
464,1146.
353,1147.

.292,1147.

641,1147.
441,1147.
219,1139.
871,1140.
165,1146.
386,1146.
367,1146.
309,1146.
163,1146.
687,1146.
056,1146.
775,1146.
223,1140.
734,1143.
665,1145.
872,1146.
827,1142.
235,1146.
609,1145.

.231,1146.

887,1146.
972,1147.
690,1141.
626,1146.
822,1146.
566,1146.
278,1141.
378,1145.
027,1146.
712,1146.
684,1146.
401,1150.

788,GS FO

891, FNL RR
160, FNL RR
995, FNL RR

. 5DOWN

Tuesday, April 02, 2019 2:45 PM

279,GS
216,GS
295, GS
030, GS
277,6GS
943,GS
838,GS
813,GS

.573,GS

943, FL
365,GS
076,GS
174,GS
201, GS
213,GS
103,GS
022,GS
867, FL
293,GS
211,GS
642,GS
934,GS
113, GS
262,GS
441,GS
266,GS
845, FL
181, FL
271,GS
167,GS
018,GS
716,GS
670, GS
238,GS
568, GS
581, GS
781, FL
344, FL
920, GS

TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
18"CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
15"CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
15"CLAYTILE
I5"CLAYTILE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE
TILELOCATE

15"CLAY@BLOWOUT
INTAKE BEEHIVE

759, FNL RR

396, FL
570,GS
835,GS
017,GS
757,GS
574,GS
512, f1
844,GS
385,GS
282, GS
856, £l
963,GS
672,GS
134,GS
702,GS
590, GS

15"CLAYTILE
FO

TILE
TILE
TILE
TILE
clay
TILE
TILE
TILE
clay
TILE
TILE
TILE
TILE
TILE

LOCATE
LOCATE
LOCATE
LOCATE
15"

LOCATE
LOCATE
LOCATE
15"

LOCATE
LOCATE
LOCATE
LOCATE
LOCATE

8016,3618659.060,4946889.650,1169.720,GPS MON

8016 GNSS,3618659.060,4946889.650,1169.720, Autonomous Setup

4-



AT

o.0%.9
Total Acs: s50

Scafe
/" = 600 fE.

/‘ﬁ,.o'gé: Erg'c Co.
[Eh 195G

Traced by -

FHlis

JL diHsanol miabve
- =
3 1]
1
i =
x iy Q
TES ()
BS | -
LTI et
® ! w
s =
1 forme]
. o
i
] | = ©
=N - o N
M m H-.r _ Z |mm .lgl L.I@l\.\lﬂ—_.— s1m7a
a 3 . ONUDBAY | e |
¥ i : . P e————
D : I =N __ g | “
n,ﬁ_u -\ .//l 1 o “ | e
= 1l UWM : 1 .—..._
1 ' B : L
1 M3 T > " 32
1 Al R
e e T |
| | E ' E
ox} ! P 0 = ! o,
— 1 4 - 4 .
po = I.HMII —_—— “ 2 _.uw “ ﬁ..z.
0 " ; s D | Ly
T ! > h
1
_ R E |
W w NI H [
1 ! 1Q 3 !
Z._ 1 4 ﬁ 1
1 | b —
s + £ 3
- |
g S &
llllllll L 2
- BN A G W U | A N
! 1
|||||||||| ) : 1
= : o=
V.i__ S -
O b N\ ~ :
| I | ) !
| - 1
u :
__ 3 i < _// ; ¥ 3
QN q S _ o A ) :
= I N N
__ T | 8 ) T g N
an | SR, R < L /-3 S &
H 1 et e e i e R b e A e i - e
2 S 2 L 3
S| ..f.._u i Q “u:.:.n._.m UM Qm
M._“ | 1 T
| I L
S." 1 I = !
SN — _ " |
< L - + +
= [ [ /
T___ | " N __ /;
1
! Lo ! g g : 3
_ P l e = ! T
| = ! - [ I = ~ ! 'S
i x o — = |
i : | = = | 2 2 ; o
ar — = = & ) =
bmm - gy - e e ||II.T|If.H||Il|||||H..I|I|14||||||Hr llllll
i : ! I o a ~J
z &G Li (5 i =~ 3 !
7 _ ) o : & & ; 4
3 _ “ il S
7 " ! !
§ | | :
> dVHE MAsDL LFE WER:] *

N-62 =L

Mo

e [nvestigation Limits




Fls

Q
[y
T B
m%m,mm
(T
PM._;ws__
~ ¥
fm % 0
$
..W.v
g
g8
Sy
&
J
3 -
g
N

N-68 <L
g1 diHS Ao L MIaEYH
= ~
BN l
& ) - N
T s O
TS (O] s
BX | . =
w ! == ~
20 )
|
h
= 3
<
X == 3 =
P m < __ 2 lmm 1LI diHS Aol S1773
X : INUBAY | Fle———il |
e
ﬁ;«..u “ B | - _ " m =
an : 4 // __ 3 m “ o .m
-~ = 3 Hm. 1 . @ (]
R W3 4 S Q
= < __ > 1 s o)
v N S S il £ i W o |
4 A S T A 3l i e s
“ ﬂﬂ.. = \-.JT. % = 1 o, uw
ST O 5 P iy : % ©
s JENN I A R
r ' ke |
" &Y NT |
1
“ e B~
T i I 1l O _ N
1 ! 2 j :
..-Z..-.. £ LA cn ! W \ C Awu _
A 2 1 = 3 =1 !
i ! S x| { N o
! o i = i : i
I S
g oMo RN 6 RSN U
Wnu_ C//I..rrruf/\kw.rw_\\ A | Z
- _ - — }
. N AN \. _ &
S R N i _
! A ! ./... e i “
! S Tt NG : !
1 = ! — -Ill-.._ >
a\ | S | o ™ 9
N -
; e ! & ! N al
an | o s ) = _ 3
: (== =SS ¥ SRS e s ey e Wik
2| . S o
S) 3 ; (] “uc.._.rn._.m N o a
o) iV ! 1 M .
LR | 1 z
ui'l | | < 1
1 |
M_ L 1 —-
3 | i | “
I
| “ : g ; >
“ S S o g " =
Ly o x =
! S 1@ = | & = S -
o . = ' s T H m mn._ " ,ﬂ._a
T = T w... “m ] | ~
Pt ...Dll.”.tlln.._llll.lllnuu ——=r= |-.M|I|| Bl et it Ee S e LRt
: 9 1w 5 P d 5 i Wy
3 * s g ! & g ! 2
M 1 [ “ =l
= __ “ ;
g 1 !
= ._ | ]
; __ _, "
HUHE AL A NG !




/s

PA.&’T
0.0 0.9

Total Acs. s50
Scafe
/Y = 4oo fr.

/ﬁ,_'q,ér Eng'n Co.
feh 1956

Traced by -

N-€g =L

2 W

J1 diHSANed MIadYH
! 1
& | - R
Tl ) :
T o 3
B3 $= s
21 n
---..|..!:|||_-.,|l|||...hl_ = -
Lox S 2
1 = e
1
B i = [ N -88& =i dingNAnoL  S1NT4 m
- : SNUBAY | e |9
an LR —~ _ j ——— | &
H I i 1 )|
ﬂ.‘ 1 | 2 " !
u i .dn i 1 e |.‘||.
“ R | T j 0 =
™~ I T 3 ' = (4))
R 1 Y
w ,/ Tl £ | < =
e et vl It i ol e —ea == ()]
W (@) = 1 a uﬁvu
S Ny« o
& @) = _ i =
| \“ /vaﬁw 3 “ S
' \ —
m ,./.f = < L * B~
i . f..f...... Tt O “ |
_ o] & |
7 _, i ! 3 !
_ £ N Y 5
_ \ & | :
gl . @ N ! 3 i X
! 3 :
o W —]
! /. N
IIIIIIIIII il e s -, R
S =
V|
1
_ o
[ =]
! =
ﬁlL | S
r _ <
a0 “ [N S 1 P RS
]
21 = _
ol 3 1
gy AN |
T |
wil | !
e e — = Ilhb.l_. IIIIIIIII I .
= " I
< | + f
R | _ “ N
! ! N
| i L 1 I~
“ Ly _ I 3 y : 3
[t
| m.rl... ! 7 m | M m | _.....M
g : = | = T i @ | ! Ly
ar M T S = M “ ._._.H
[T TS RS RS Sy Sy | S S N -
| .
z S L B | E ot _ 5
: < =
3 _ K 5 : 3 g ﬂ 3
z f ' ' =
] [ !
bt 1 ! )
& ! ; '
5 i ! "
L 1 n i
d1HE NAMMDL 3L BSNE




By: L.O.G.
Date: 4/30/2019
e . Checked By: L.O.G.
ENGINEERS * LAND SURVEYORS Date: 4/30/2019
Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
Project: Main tile Repair for D.D. #9
Location: Section 6, T88N, R21W and Section 1, T88N, R22W Hardin County, lowa
ITEM # DESCRIPTION Unit Cost | Units | Quantity | Units Total Cost
CONSTRUCTION COSTS
1 15" DIP TILE $ 80.00 | LF 120 LF |3 9,600.00
2 |30" JACK AND BORE TILE (RAILROAD CROSSING) $ 600.00| LF 110 LF | $ 66,000.00
3 INTAKE JUNCTION STRUCTURE $ 4,000.00 | EA 2 EA | $ 8,000.00
4  |CONCRETE COLLARS $ 30000 | EA 2 EA | $ 600.00
5  |TILE REMOVAL $ 10.00 | LF 10 LF |3 100.00
6  |ABANDON EXISTING TILE (RAILROAD CROSSING) $ 30.00 | LF 110 LF | $ 3,300.00
7 RAILROAD REQUIREMENTS $ 20,000.00 | LS 1 LS | $ 20,000.00
8 LOCATE EXISTING DISTRICT TILE $ 1,000.00 | LOC 2 Loc| s 2,000.00
9  |TILE JET CLEANING $ 50.00 | LF 200 LF | $ 10,000.00
10 [TILECCTV $ 400 | LF 200 LF |'s 800.00
11 |TREE REMOVAL $ 10,000.00 | LS 1 LS | $ 10,000.00
CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL $  130,400.00
Contingency (20%) $  26,080.00
CONSTRUCTION TOTAL $ 156,480.00
Engr. & Const. Observation (25%) $ 39,120.00
TOTAL COST $ 195,600.00

P\6735.1\PM\Excel\6735.1 - Report Opinion of Const Cost - DD# 9-MAIN.xIsx 4/30/2019



By: L.O.G.
Date: 4/30/2019
Checked By: L.O.G.
ENGINEERS + LAND SURVEYORS Date: 4/30/2019
Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
Project: Main tile Improvement for D.D. #9
Location: Section 6, T88N, R21W and Section 1, T88N, R22W Hardin County, lowa
ITEM # DESCRIPTION Unit Cost | Units | Quantity | Units Total Cost
CONSTRUCTION COSTS
101 |15" RCP OR DUAL WALL TILE $ 30.00 | LF 1900 LF | $ 57,000.00
102 |INTAKE JUNCTION STRUCTURE $ 4,000.00 | EA 2 EA | 8,000.00
103 JCONCRETE COLLARS $  300.00 | EA 2 EA |3 600.00
104 |TILE REMOVAL $ 10.00 | LF 10 LF | $ 100.00
105 |ABANDON EXISTING TILE (RAILROAD CROSSING) $ 30.00 | LF 110 LF | s 3,300.00
106 JRAILROAD REQUIREMENTS $ 10,000.00 | LS 1 LS |$ 10,000.00
107 |LOCATE EXISTING DISTRICT TILE $ 1,000.00 | LOC 3 Loc| s 3,000.00
108 |TILE JET CLEANING $ 50.00 | LF 200 LF | $  10,000.00
109 [TILE CCTV $ 400 | LF 200 LF |s 800.00
110 JTREE REMOVAL $ 10,000.00 [ LS 1 LS | $ 10,000.00
CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL $ 102,800.00
Contingency (20%) $  20,560.00
CONSTRUCTION TOTAL $  123,360.00
Engr. & Const. Observation (25%) $ 30,840.00
TOTAL COST $ 154,200.00

P:\6735.1\PM\Excel\6735.1 - Report Opinion of Const Cost - DD# 9-MAIN.xlsx 4/30/2019



e ey vt e it

ARDIN COUNTY.IOWA 20
I 5 LTy

|

SUPPLEMENT TO
ENGINEER’S REPORT
ON REPAIRS OR
IMPROVEMENTS TO
MAIN TILE
DRAINAGE DISTRICT
NO. 9
HARDIN COUNTY,

i

SHOWN ON TABLE OF CONTENTS

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS ENGINEERING DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED BY
ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT PERSONAL SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY

“\\“mmmlll/ll%
&\\\\“\\Q\QFESSI ,Vf LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF
............. IOWA
AR %
S5’ LEEo. 2% o o ,
SS GALLENTINE s : :
s 15745 : :’g & |LEE O. GALLENTINE, P.E.
2k Sk
Z LICENSE NUMBER: 15745
%,4 : & MY LICENSE RENEWAL DATE IS DECEMBER 31, 2020
. PAGES OR SHEETS COVERED BY THIS SEAL:

AN i

CLAPSADDLE-GARBER ASSOCIATES OFFICE LOCATIONS
16 East Main Street, PO Box 754 | Marshalltown, IA 50158
1523 S. Bell Avenue, Suite 101 | Ames, IA 50010
5106 Nordic Drive | Cedar Falls, IA 50613

739 Park Avenue | Ackley, IA 50601
511 Bank Street | Webster City, IA 50595

ENGINEERS * LAND SURVEYORS

Project Office
739 Park Avenue
Ackley, IA. 50601

Phone: 641-847-3273
Fax: 641-847-2303




Supplement to Engineer's Report
on Repairs or Improvements
to Main Tile, Drainage District No. 9
Hardin County, lowa

Table of Contents

Report

Introduction

Tile Sever Method

Opinion of Probable Construction Costs
Recommendations

Appendices
Map — Tile Sever — Improvement
Opinion of Probable Construction Costs — Tile Sever — Improvement

1

Pg. 2
Pgs. 2-3
Pg. 3
Pg. 3

App. H
App. 1

P:\6735.1\PM\DOC\6735.1 - Supplement Engineer's Report (Hardin Co) DD 9.docx



Supplement to Engineer's Report
on Repairs or Improvements
to Main Tile, Drainage District No. 9
Hardin County, Iowa

1.0 INTRODUCTION

e SCOPE OF WORK — The Hardin County Board of Supervisors, acting as District Trustees,

requested Clapsaddle-Garber Associates to investigate and report concerning repair or
improvements to the Main tile of Drainage District No. 9. At the regular drainage meeting
held on May 22, 2019, the original Engineer’s Report along with the options that it contains
were discussed by the District Trustees. As a result, the District Trustees requested
Clapsaddle-Garber Associates to move ahead with this supplement to explore an additional
option requested by one of the landowners.

2.0 IMPROVEMENT METHOD - To improve the drainage capacity for the existing Main tile,

the following option is an additional option available:

Tile Sever

Sever the existing Main tile upstream of the upstream railroad crossing and plug the
downstream end on northwest side of the railroad right of way.

Abandon existing Main tile at said upstream railroad crossing under the railroad tracks.
Install a new separate Main tile from the location of severing west and southwest to a
new separate outlet in the existing water course (approximately & mile downstream of
the outlet of the existing main tile).

For the portion of the Main tile in the railroad right of way at the downstream limits of
investigation, jet clean the existing Main tile, CCTV inspect the existing Main tile to
verify its condition and remove the trees inside the railroad right of way.

For reference, the locations of proposed work are shown on the map included in
Appendix H.

With the above-mentioned improvement method, the following should be noted:

The condition of the Main tile at the downstream railroad crossing is unknown.

For the above option, the current railroad crossing would not be removed, but would be
abandoned as dictated by railroad standards.

For the above option, trees within 50 of the locations of the existing Main tile inside
railroad right of way would be removed to stop infiltration of tree roots.

The pipe sizes used are those that are currently manufactured that most closely meet the
current Main tile size.

The above option would only remove soil and debris in the existing Main tile at the areas
of work.

The above work is for the identified portions of the Main tile only. No work is proposed
for the remainder of the existing Main tile.

2

P:\6735.1\PM\DOC\6735.1 - Supplement Engineer's Report (Hardin Co) DD 9.docx



3.0

4.0

e The above work would turn the drainage area upstream of the upstream railroad crossing
into a separate Drainage District.

e  The proposed tile on the above work would be installed at some depths slightly larger
than the Tile Reroute Method from the original report.

e The above work may require annexation to extend the district boundary to the West and
Southwest to allow for installation of the proposed tile.

e Improvements have historically been viewed as having an impact on jurisdictional
wetlands. As such, individual landowners should consult with applicable staff at the
Hardin County NRCS office to determine the existence of said jurisdictional wetlands
and what said impact may be on them.

Per Iowa Code Chapter 468.126, the above actions would be considered an improvement. As
such, Subsection 4, paragraph ¢ of Chapter 468.126 states “If the estimated cost of the
improvement does not exceed fifty thousand dollars, the board may order the work done without
conducting a hearing on the matter. Otherwise, the board shall set a date for a hearing on whether
to construct the proposed improvement and whether there shall be a reclassification of benefits
for the cost of the proposed improvement.” The opinion of probable construction cost contained
in the next section of this report exceeds said $50,000 limit. Therefore, a hearing will be
required. Per Jowa Code Chapter 468.126.4.¢, the right of remonstrance may apply to the
proposed improvements.

OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS — Using the above method of
improvement, an itemized list of project quantities and associated opinion of probable
construction costs was compiled and is included in Appendix I of this report. A summary of said
costs are as follows:

METHOD  TOTALCOST
Tile Sever - Improvement ‘ $187,800

It should be noted that said costs include materials, labor, and equipment supplied by the
contractor to complete the necessary repair and includes applicable engineering, construction
observation, and project administration fees by Clapsaddle-Garber Associates. However, said
costs do not include any interest, legal fees, county administrative fees, crop damages, other
damages, previous repairs, engineering fees to date, or reclassification fees (if applicable). As
always, all costs shown are opinions of Clapsaddle-Garber Associates based on previous lettings
on other projects. Said costs are just a guideline and are not a guarantee of actual costs.

RECOMMENDATIONS — There is a definite need to perform the above-mentioned action or
one of those mentioned in the original Engineer’s report. The actions would remove the current
restrictions in the Main tile and extend the lifespan of the same. Therefore, it is recommended
that the District Trustees should take the actions stated in the original report.

It should be noted that if the Tile Sever option from this supplement is selected, the following
additional recommendations apply:

e Confirm that Drainage District 9 should be split into two separate districts.

e Confirm if annexation is necessary to the West and Southwest.

3

P:\6735.1\PM\DOC\6735.1 - Supplement Engineer's Report (Hardin Co) DD 9.docx






%00 £t.

FLAT
0.0 9
Total Acs. 550
Scale

P

. Ee/:g/cf Eﬂy’r.' Co.
feb 19256

Traced bY¥:

N-68 =L

=1 diHs~NMmolL N1a8vH
- 3T =l
il = P
T o)
T e
w1 - e
2 (dp) -+
1 = |
L LT AR ¥ o O
- s e
I
aQz
4 g © @
N sl ~ —
N E [ Z lmm ||Nl dInS~NAoL  S1ana -
o 5 : 9NUBAY/ | ] e—
B _ e ! ! Pl '8
| N\ > '
‘ ! ' L
o ™. ! 55 | : 5 =
K S — . — N ! 1
/Rﬁl. e N~ S o : $ o
~1 - 1 a2 m J X ! Ty e
n I||!||f~||!. L il L 2 ! m..:u “ W _Q'U
E = B W T R
X 2N = ! \§
s St MR L g ! o i N Ui ! @ =
£ ! ; . ! w
O | -1 .
£ K N
1 7 1 ]
| \ 4 /d\ywwv«v S !
“ 4 N\ !
i L |
3 ! | S /w T B~
] i i /| |
-~ + N 2 !
] | // ¢ < \\ O 9 I
1 ! S 1 .—/m ety
a m \ & g | S
s = i x !
m_ L < 1 3 1 W
gl = -||--/ﬂ:-||x V/ ! $
M_ 9% = B PR et o
o/ A | n/_u
|||||||||| e 1 (6
Ql '
bar] ;
Ol i
“ 1
: 1
l 2 W
a\ _ 3 _
1 ] Z
40 | : .
“ e O et
21 ! 3
erw_ | ]
y] | :
X I
ui | | 1
et Ir.ﬂwlulllll|l|L | __ L
| : _
_M. 1 ! ! /../-I~
| “ o | 3
! Ly | S DU w _ 3
| = Ly i I | >
H iy ! v ~ | = > ®
i ! = = x | Q 4 __ i
Y M T wl N M 1 W
L = 1 SIS L e | | SR LIS eI S P UG | R R R . RN S R
y PN s . ks
z d oo L S ! & =i ;
; kK s } & & SO
z 1 [ ] i
0 | |
e : | “ _
g : ! !
5 | “ "
: diHS NMmoL 3A dNE i

Existing Water Course






By: Z.J.S.
Date: 5/30/2019
Checked By: L.O.G.
ENGINEERS ~ LAND SURVEYORS Date: 6/3/2019
Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
Project: Main tile Improvement for D.D. #9
Location: Section 6, T88N, R21W and Section 1, T88N, R22W Hardin County, lowa
ITEM # DESCRIPTION Unit Cost | Units | Quantity | Units Total Cost
CONSTRUCTION COSTS
201 15" RCP OR DUAL WALL TILE $ 30.00 | LF 2640 LF | $ 79,200.00
202 |18" CMP OUTLET $ 30.00 | LF 40 LF |'s 1,200.00
203 |REVETMENT $ 40.00 | TN 50 TN | 8 2,000.00
204 |INTAKE JUNCTION STRUCTURE $ 4,000.00 | EA 1 EA | $ 4,000.00
205 |CONCRETE COLLARS $  300.00 | EA 2 EA |'$ 600.00
206 |TILE REMOVAL $ 10.00 | LF 10 LF |$ 100.00
207 |SEEDING $ 1,000.00 | LS 1 LS | s 1,000.00
208 |ABANDON EXISTING TILE (RAILROAD CROSSING) $ 30.00 [ LF 110 LF | s 3,300.00
209 [RAILROAD REQUIREMENTS $ 10,000.00 | LS 1 LS | $ 10,000.00
210 |LOCATE EXISTING DISTRICT TILE $ 1,000.00 | LOC 3 Loc| s 3,000.00
211 |TILE JET CLEANING $ 50.00 | LF 200 LF | $ 10,000.00
212 |TILE cCcTV $ 400 | LF 200 LF |3 800.00
213 |TREE REMOVAL $ 10,000.00 | LS 1 LS [ $ 10,000.00
CONSTRUCTION SUBTOTAL $  125,200.00
Contingency (20%) $  25,040.00
CONSTRUCTION TOTAL $  150,240.00
Engr. & Const. Observation (25%) $ 37,560.00
TOTAL COST $  187,800.00
P:\6735.1\PM\Excel\6735.1 - Supplement Report Opinion of Const Cost - DD# 9-MAIN.xIsx 6/3/2019



HARDIN COUNTY 1215EDGINGTON AVE., SUITE 1

. ELDORA, IA50627
Board of Supervisors (641)939-8219
SUPERVISORS@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

RE: Consent Letter Dated June 10, 2019, Folder 03141-19

February 24, 2020

Real Estate - Utilities

% Union Pacific Railroad
1400 Douglas St, Stop 1690
Omaha, NE 68179

Attn: Norma J. Reynolds

To Whom It May Concern:

Please reference the Hardin County Board of Supervisors, application for a maintenance on a
drainage tile at Mile Post 128.84, on the Mason City Subdivision near Radcliffe, Hardin County,
lowa, requesting approval from the Union Pacific Railroad Company to inspect, root clean, and
jet the existing lateral tile.

In our Drainage Engineer’s Investigation Summary done in order to determine the cause of our
plugged drainage tile, the Engineer’s investigator noted existing damage to a box culvert that
belongs to the Railroad for surface water drainage. There is a significant failure in the roof of
the cement box culvert. The damage can barely be seen from the surface of the tracks, however
when viewed from the inside of the box culvert, a large 4’ to 6’ section of concrete has fallen
out of the roof of the box culvert. The investigator was concerned as this may pose a significant
safety risk for the tracks above. | have referenced the Consent letter provided to Hardin County
from the Railroad, so that you may note the location of this box culvert, as it was found nearby
the tile location for this project.

It was reported to our Board of Supervisors, acting as Drainage Trustees, by Clapsaddle-Garber
Associates, our drainage engineering firm. It was our Trustees wishes to bring to your attention
the damaged box culvert, as it was unknown to them if the Railroad was already aware of the
damage. Our Trustees, and Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, feel it is their duty to share this
information with you to protect both the Railroad and the general public.

Enclosed you will find copies of the Investigation Summary, which includes photos of the

damaged box culvert, please reference pages 19 and 20 for those photos. | have included
additional copies of those images at the front of the report.

HTTP://WwWW.HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

LANCE A. GRANZOW, SUPERVISOR CHAIR RENEE MCCLELLAN, SUPERVISOR BJ HOFFMAN, SUPERVISOR
RRICKELS@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV RMCCLELLAN@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV BHOFFMAN@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV
641-939-8221 641-939-8222 641-939-8220



HARDIN COUNTY 1215EDGINGTON AVE., SUITE 1

. ELDORA, IA50627
Board of Supervisors (641)939-8219
SUPERVISORS@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV

If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact the Hardin County Drainage
Clerk at (641) 939-8111 or by email at drainage@hardincountyia.gov. You may also contact the
Drainage Engineer, Lee Gallentine, with Clapsaddle-Garber Associates at (641) 847-3273 or by

email at lgallentine@cgaconsultants.com.

Sincerely,

Lance Granzow
Chairman, Board of Trustees

Enclosure

CC: Lee Gallentine

HTTP://WwWW.HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV
LANCE A. GRANZOW, SUPERVISOR CHAIR RENEE MCCLELLAN, SUPERVISOR BJ HOFFMAN, SUPERVISOR
RRICKELS@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV RMCCLELLAN@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV BHOFFMAN@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV
641-939-8221 641-939-8222 641-939-8220



mailto:drainage@hardincountyia.gov
mailto:lgallentine@cgaconsultants.com

Drainage Work Order Request For Repair
Hardin County

Date: 2/24/2020

Work Order #: WO000000285

Drainage District: DDs\DD 158 (51175)

Sec-Twp-Rge: Qtr Sec:

Location/GIS:

Requested By:

Contact Phone:

Contact Email:

Landowner (if different):

Description: DD 158 - Ground intake on W side of road has silted in w debris, and intake is boiling
out & water is flowing overland to culvert and continues to overland once it is on the E
side of road. May need intake cleaned out and standpipe installed.

Repair labor, materials and equipment:

Repaired By: Date:

Please reference work order # and send statement for services to: Hardin County Auditor's Office
Attn: Drainage Clerk
1215 Edgington Ave, Suite 1
Eldora, IA 50627
Phone (641) 939-8111
Fax (641) 939-8245

For Office Use Only

Approved: Date:




872104400002

>

87,21 04400001

@‘h

%§§? D!DN o9 Eﬁ
8721044000 03] 872104400004




	No1_DateTime[0]: 
	No2_Transmittal[0]: 
	No3_To[0]: 
	No8_Pro_Title[0]: 
	No7_Specification[0]: 
	No4_From[0]: 
	No5_Cont_No[0]: 
	No6a_CheckBox[0]: Off
	No6b_CheckBox[0]: Off
	No6_Transmittal[0]: 
	No9a_CheckBox[0]: Off
	No9b_CheckBox[0]: Off
	No9c_CheckBox[0]: Off
	No9d_CheckBox[0]: Off
	No9e_CheckBox[0]: Off
	No9f_CheckBox[0]: Off
	No10a[0]: 
	No10b[0]: 
	No10c[0]: 
	No10d[0]: 
	No10e[0]: 
	No10f[0]: 
	No10g[0]: 
	No10h[0]: 
	No10i[0]: 
	No10a[1]: 
	No10b[1]: 
	No10c[1]: 
	No10d[1]: 
	No10e[1]: 
	No10f[1]: 
	No10g[1]: 
	No10h[1]: 
	No10i[1]: 
	No10a[2]: 
	No10b[2]: 
	No10c[2]: 
	No10d[2]: 
	No10e[2]: 
	No10f[2]: 
	No10g[2]: 
	No10h[2]: 
	No10i[2]: 
	No10a[3]: 
	No10b[3]: 
	No10c[3]: 
	No10d[3]: 
	No10e[3]: 
	No10f[3]: 
	No10g[3]: 
	No10h[3]: 
	No10i[3]: 
	No10a[4]: 
	No10b[4]: 
	No10c[4]: 
	No10d[4]: 
	No10e[4]: 
	No10f[4]: 
	No10g[4]: 
	No10h[4]: 
	No10i[4]: 
	No10a[5]: 
	No10b[5]: 
	No10c[5]: 
	No10d[5]: 
	No10e[5]: 
	No10f[5]: 
	No10g[5]: 
	No10h[5]: 
	No10i[5]: 
	No10a[6]: 
	No10b[6]: 
	No10c[6]: 
	No10d[6]: 
	No10e[6]: 
	No10f[6]: 
	No10g[6]: 
	No10h[6]: 
	No10i[6]: 
	No10a[7]: 
	No10b[7]: 
	No10c[7]: 
	No10d[7]: 
	No10e[7]: 
	No10f[7]: 
	No10g[7]: 
	No10h[7]: 
	No10i[7]: 
	No10a[8]: 
	No10b[8]: 
	No10c[8]: 
	No10d[8]: 
	No10e[8]: 
	No10f[8]: 
	No10g[8]: 
	No10h[8]: 
	No10i[8]: 
	No10a[9]: 
	No10b[9]: 
	No10c[9]: 
	No10d[9]: 
	No10e[9]: 
	No10f[9]: 
	No10g[9]: 
	No10h[9]: 
	No10i[9]: 
	Remarks[0]: 
	Contractor_Name[0]: 
	Authority_Name[0]: 
	Authority_DateTime[0]: 
	Enclosures[0]: 


